Joint Meeting of the
~ Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
19| and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
: v~ 190 Greenhorn Road
T Yreka, California 96097

Agenda of the December 18, 2025 Special Meeting
Start Time: 9:00 AM

Remote Participation and Public Comment Teleconference:

Conference Call In Number: +1.669.444.9171 US

Meeting ID: 837 3382 7659

All agendas are available at: https://siskiyoucoltc.org/docs-category/meeting-agenda/

Commissioners & Directors

Representatives of the Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors

Michael Kobseff, Chair 2025 County Supervisor — District 3
Nancy Ogren County Supervisor — District 4
Ed Valenzuela County Supervisor — District 2
Jess Harris (Alternate) County Supervisor — District 1

Representatives of the League of Local Agencies

Matthew Bryan Councilmember, City of Dunsmuir
Cliff Munson Councilmember, City of Etna

Pat Vela, Vice Chair 2025 Councilmember, City of Montague
Mercedes Garcia (Alternate) Councilmember, Town of Fort Jones

The Commission may take action sitting as the Local Transportation Commission and
the Siskiyou Transportation Agency.

The agenda items are as follows:
1) 9:00 AM — Pledge of Allegiance (LTC/STA)

2) Roll Call (LTC/STA)
3) Presentations from the Public (LTC/STA)

PLEASE NOTE: This time slot is for information from the public. No action or
discussion will be conducted on matters presented at this time. You will be allowed
three (3) minutes for your presentation. The Chair can extend the time for appropriate
circumstances. When addressing the Commission, please state your name for the
record prior to providing your comments. Please address the Commission/Board, as

1|Page



Joint Meeting of the
~ Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
19| and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
: v~ 190 Greenhorn Road
T Yreka, California 96097

a whole, through the Chair. Comments should be limited to matters within the
jurisdiction of the Commission/Board.

4) Consent Agenda (LTC/STA)

LTC Regqular Informational ltems

A. Fiscal Reporting - Reports of Expenditures and Revenues from November 1,
2025, to November 30, 2025, for:

Local Transportation Commission (Fund: 2505)

Regional Transportation Planning (Fund: 2506)

Local Transportation Funds (Fund: 2536)

Regional Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (Fund: 2537)

State Transit Assistance (Fund: 2538)

SB 125 TIRCP/General Fund (Fund: 2546)

SB 125 Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (Fund: 2547)

SB 125 Public Transit Account (Fund: 2548)

ONoGhwWN =

B. Commission Staff Report - Report from Executive Director on activities,
reporting, and other projects since the last meeting.

LTC Consent Agenda Action Items

C. Approve contract with Vestra Resources, Inc. for address and roads data
maintenance, in an amount not to exceed $ 25,000, for the term December
19, 2025, through June 30, 2026.

D. Adopt resolution authorizing a contribution of $ 288.00 of Regional Surface
Transportation Program funding to the ongoing California Statewide Local
Streets and Roads Needs Assessment efforts and authorize the Executive
Director to submit the letter to Caltrans to reduce the region’s allocation.

E. Adopt resolution amending STAGE’s FY 2025/2026 State Transit Assistance
claim and authorize the Executive Director to adjust the FY 2025/2026
budget.

STA Reqular Informational ltems
F. Executive Director Report — Staff report on activities, reporting, and other
projects including the latest ridership report.

G. STAGE Staff Report — Staff report on activities, reporting, and other projects
including the latest ridership report.

2|Page



4OV Cop
/\5",‘_\‘-‘-' Yy
I ‘,/// ) -\‘ \

| I"\ and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Joint Meeting of the
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center

Yreka, California 96097

Joint Consent Agenda Items (Action by LTC and STA)

H.

Approval of the minutes of the special meeting of November 18, 2025.

5) Public Hearings (Public hearing protocol) (LTC)

A.
B.

C.
D. Presentation of correspondence, which correspondence may be read,

m

Tem

oOzZZrxe—

Opening of the hearing by the Chair;

Reading Order of Presentation into the record or identification of the Order of
Presentation as being that which is set forth in the associated Agenda;
Presentation of staff report, if any;

circulated or acknowledged and made part of the record;

Presentation of reports, arguments, or evidence by staff of other county
departments or public agencies;

Proponents arguments and/or evidence;

. Opponents arguments and/or evidence;

Public comments (The Commission reserves the right to reasonably limit the
length of time of individual comments and/or the total amount of time allotted
to public comments.)

Rebuttal by proponents;

Rebuttal by opponents;

Close of hearing;

Discussion by members of the Commission, if any;

. Entertainment of motion and second;

Discussion of the question;
Decision.

1) Public hearing to consider adoption of the Siskiyou County Coordinated

O 8
) ®)
190 Greenhorn Road NN cows

Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan and determine the

project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

6) Discussion/Action (LTC) - Appointment of Legal Counsel for the Commission

7) Discussion/Action (LTC) — Draft Joint Power Agreement formally creating the Siskiyou

County Local Transportation Commission and discussion regarding transition of staff

from County employment.

8) Discussion/Action (STA) — Draft first amendment of the Siskiyou Transportation

Agency Joint Powers Agreement and discussion regarding transition of staff from

County employment.

3|Page



Joint Meeting of the
~ Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
19| and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
: v~ 190 Greenhorn Road
T Yreka, California 96097

9) Other Business

A. Executive Director — Other Updates

B. Other Business — Iltems from Commission that do not require an agenda item or
requests for future agenda items.

C. Next Reqular Meeting — February 10, 2026 at 10:30 a.m.

10)Adjourn Meeting

NOTE: Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission and Siskiyou Transportation
Agency offers teleconference participation in the meeting via Zoom, or similar technology,
as a courtesy to the public, who have the option and right to attend in person. If no
member of the Commission is attending the meeting via teleconference and a technical
error or outage occurs, or if a participant disrupts the meeting in a manner that cannot be
specifically addressed, the Commission reserves the right to discontinue Zoom, or similar
technology access and continue conducting business.

Topic: Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission and Siskiyou Transportation
Agency Meeting

Time: Thursday, December 18, 2025 — 9:00 a.m. Pacific Time (US and Canada)

Zoom Attendees: Conference Call In Number: +1.669.444.9171 US
Meeting ID: 837 3382 7659

| declare a copy of this agenda was posted at the Siskiyou County Transit Center at 190
Greenhorn Road, Yreka, CA 96097, on December 12, 2025, by 5:00 p.m.

A printed agenda packet will be available for public review by 5:00 p.m. on December 12,
2025, at the Siskiyou County Transit Center and online at:
https://siskiyoucoltc.org/docs-category/meeting-agenda/

NOTE:
Public participation is encouraged. In compliance with Section 202 of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132) and in compliance with the Ralph M.

4|Page



Joint Meeting of the
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
0 ) 190 Greenhorn Road
o Yreka, California 96097

Brown Act, if you plan on attending the public meeting and need a special accommodation
because of a sensory or mobility impairment or disability, or have a need for an interpreter,
please contact Melissa Cummins at 530.842.8238, 48 hours in advance of the meeting
to arrange for those accommodations. (Government Code 53953)

5|Page



Agenda Worksheet

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Report of Revenues and Expenditures

Agenda Item 4A(1), 4A(2), 4A(3), 4A(4), 4A(5), 4A(6), 4A(7), 4A(8)
Dates: November 1, 2025 through November 30, 2025

Fund: Description Revenues Expenses
Fund: 2505 - Local Transportation Admin (ltem 4A(1))
AT&T/MCI $ - $ 10.21
KENNY & NORINE, A LAW CORPORATION $ - $ -
PACIFIC POWER $ - $ 127.09
VERIZON WIRELESS $ - $ 52.50
CAL ORE COMMUNICATIONS $ - $ 75.20
YREKA TRANSFER LLC $ - $ 7.65
CITY OF YREKA $ - $ 24.33
HUE & CRY SECURITY SYSTEMS INC $ - $ 17.58
THE RESILIENCY INITIATIVE $ - $ 970.08
(blank)
HR Payroll 2025 BW 24 0 $ - $ 8,489.96
LTC>RPA SCEPP EXP LCL MTCH FY 24/25 $ - $ 212.44
25/26 1ST ALLOC TO LTA & STATE $ 130,000.00 $ -
25/26 UNEMPLOYMENT-NOVEMBER 2025 $ - $ 9.83
25/26 WORKERS COMP-NOVEMBER 2025 $ - $ 125.33
25/26 COST PLAN-NOVEMBER 2025 $ - $ 3,790.08
25/26 DATA PROCESSING-NOVEMBER 2025 $ - $ 207.92
HR Payroll 2025 BW 23 0 $ - $ 8,431.05
DEP#2026-054 ST OF CA 25-26 SGR Q1 $ 19,446.00 § -
PILLON, CHARLES W. $ - $ 1,850.00
WRK PRFMD M CUMMINS OCT 2025 $ 1393421 § -
GS/STA>STAGE CANON CHARGES SEP 2025 $ - $ 0.91
GS/STA>STAGE CANON CHARGES AUG 2025 $ - $ 2.87
ACH FRAUD RESILIENCY INITIATIVE $ - $ 41,566.16
FRAUD 12608726 RETURNED FUNDS $ 476764 § -
Fund: 2505 - Local Transportation Admin (ltem 4A(1)) Total $ 168,147.85 $ 65,971.19
Fund: 2506 - Overall Work Program (ltem 4A(2))
KENNY & NORINE, A LAW CORPORATION $ - $ 220.50
NICHOLS CONSULTING ENGINEERS, CHTD $ - $ 4,968.30
LSC TRANSPORTATION CONSULTANTS, INC $ - $ 701.19
THE RESILIENCY INITIATIVE $ - $ 7,487.42
LTC>RPA SCEPP EXP LCL MTCH FY 24/25 $ - $ 212.44
WRK PRFMD M CUMMINS OCT 2025 $ - $ 11,626.00
GS/STA>STAGE CANON CHARGES SEP 2025 $ - $ 45.53
GS/STA>STAGE CANON CHARGES AUG 2025 $ - $ 68.21
FRAUD 12608726 RETURNED FUNDS $ 36,798.52 § -
J2604694 CORR SEQ 13 ACTG $ - $ 5.37
J2604694 REV SEQ 13 INCORRECT $ 537 § -

1of2



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Report of Revenues and Expenditures

Agenda Item 4A(1), 4A(2), 4A(3), 4A(4), 4A(5), 4A(6), 4A(7), 4A(8)
Dates: November 1, 2025 through November 30, 2025

Fund: Description Revenues Expenses
Fund: 2506 - (DEP#2026-057 ST OF CA SHA/CAPG Q1 $ 32,34887 § -
DEP#2026-057 ST OF CA OWP Q1 $ 32,817.26 $ -
GS/STA>STAGE CANON CHARGES JUL 2025 $ - $ 7.84
Fund: 2506 - Overall Work Program (ltem 4A(2)) Total $ 101,970.02 $ 25,342.80

Fund: 2536 - Local Transportation Funds (Item 4A(3))

25/26 1ST ALLOC TO LTA & STATE $ - $ 333,914.12
24/25 FINAL ALLOC LTF > CITIES $ - $ 460,292.67
2ND ALLOC TO STAGE $ - $ 205,753.00
STATE 3RD QTR 2025 ALLOC 1/4% LTF $ 205,753.00 $ -
Fund: 2536 - Local Transportation Funds (Item 4A(3)) Total $ 205,753.00 $ 999,959.79
Fund: 2537 - Regional Surface Transportation Block Grant (Item 4A(4))
TOWN OF FORT JONES $ - $ 31,147.55
Fund: 2537 - Regional Surface Transportation Block Grant (Iltem 4, $ - $ 31,147.55
Fund: 2538 - State Transit Assistance (Iltem 4A(5))
25/26 1ST QTR ALLOC STA>STAGE $ - $ 97,485.00
24/25 4TH QTR STA>STAGE FINAL $ - $ 117,358.37
TRANS INTEREST EARNED 772003>2538 $ 31791 § -
J2604840 REV DUPLICATE ENTRY $ - $ 19,446.00
STATE 070125-093025 PUC SECT 99313 $ 112,061.00 $ -
STATE 070125-093025 PUC SECT 99314 $ 487000 $ -
Fund: 2538 - State Transit Assistance (Item 4A(5)) Total $ 117,24891 $ 234,289.37
Fund: 2546 - SB 125 TIRCP/General Fund (ltem 4A(6))
WRK PRFMD M CUMMINS OCT 2025 $ - $ 914.20
PLANETERIA MEDIA LLC $ - $ 25,200.00
Fund: 2546 - SB 125 TIRCP/General Fund (Item 4A(6)) Total $ - $ 26,114.20
Fund: 2547 - SB 125 Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (Item 4A(7))
None
Fund: 2547 - SB 125 Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (Item 4A(7)) Total
Fund: 2548 - Public Transit Account (Iltem 4A(8))
WRK PRFMD M CUMMINS OCT 2025 $ - $ 133.65
Fund: 2548 - Public Transit Account (Item 4A(8)) Total $ - $ 133.65
Grand Total $ 593,119.78 $ 1,382,958.55

20f2



Item 4B Executive Director Staff Report
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Summary of Activities for Period
11/01/2025~11/30/2025

Non-Billable LTC Work
Process Commission projectinvoices.
Update timecard tracking for week.
Fraud Case - Draft summary for Commission meeting.
LTF 24/25 Allocation
LTF 24/25 & 25/26 Allocations
Print various reports/documents for FY 24/25 audits.
Finish pulling reports for FY 24/25 audits.
STA 25/26 tracking sheet, log deposits, run additional reports for audits.
TRI Fraud/Gather Materials for Claim
Consult w/Counsel, follow up with emails re:direction from 11/18 meeting.
Draft and send notice of cancellation to Kenny & Norine.
Prep materials for LTF training w/Auditor's Office
Training on LTF @ Auditor's Office
Revised LTF allocation instruction letter.
STA Training w/Auditor's office
Update STA tracking & file journal copies
Draft MOU for LTC

WE 601 - Administration
Commissioner travel claims.
Send email to Planning re:road abandonment process and template project approval and next steps.
Review draft minutes for final revisions and consent agenda items for LTC.
LTC Agenda Items - 11/18/2025
Draft agenda list for Chair/Vice Chair review and submit.
Consult w/Counsel re:agenda items for 11/18/2025.
Draft agenda for 11/18/2025.
Final agenda for 11/18/2025 meeting and required postings.
Agenda notification to interested stakeholders.
Process invoices for various projects.
Review upcoming due dates for various OWP projects.
Draft notes for various agenda items for 11/18/25 meeting.
Prep materials for 11/18/2025 meeting.
Create meeting invite, website event & FB event for 12/18 special meeting.
Review docs for formalizing LTC as RTPA.
Post meeting processing of resolutions for Chair signature.
Consult w/other RTPA on Commission matters.
Process Q1 payment for OWP/SHA-CAPG.
Brown Act Training
Draft minutes for LTC 11/18/2025 meeting.

WE 602 - OWP Development/Monitoring
Update expense tracking, copies of OWP/SHA-CAPG invoices to files
RTPA Statewide OWP Meeting

10f3



Item 4B Executive Director Staff Report
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Summary of Activities for Period
11/01/2025~11/30/2025

Draft and submit budget appropriation to adjust budget for OWP FY 24/25 carryover.

WE 603 - Coordination & Public Engagement
Callw/N Fortner/CT re:PPM allocation & RTIP
Discussion on McCloud intersection safety project.
Karuk Regional Transportation Consortium Stakeholder Meeting
Send RMRA Report Reminders to Local Agencies
Climate Plan/SCEDC
Update website w/minutes, add OWP for current FY, add other dates.

WE 604.1 - Regional Transportation Systems Planning
Respond to Counsel on I5 Wildlife Project/CEQA Lead Agency
Draft GIS road layer contract with Vestra Resources, Inc.
Climate Collaborative Meeting @ Rain Rock
Vestra Contract to vendor for review.

WE 604.2 - Pavement Management System

Process NCE invoice

WE 605.1 - Multimodal & Public Transit Planning
Correspondence with LSC on CPTHSTP presentation and public hearing.
Process LSC invoice for Coordinated Plan Update.Draft public hearing notice for CEQA exemption.
Public Hearing Notice for Coordinated Plan Update
Process LSC invoice for Coordinated Plan Update.

Send notice of public hearing to agenda notification email distribution list.

WE 604.3 - RTIP
Finalize 2026 RTIP fact sheet.

Work on drafting the 2026 RTIP document.
Draft ePPRs for 2026 RTIP.

Finalize and review final draft of 2026 RTIP.
Complete final review of draft ePPRs.
Revisions to 2026 RTIP document.
Finalrevisions to agenda item for 2026 RTIP.
Staff report for RTIP agenda item.

Finalize ePPRs for RTIP package, Submit package to Chair for signatures.
Prepare hard copy RTIP packets and submit electronically to required agency representatives. Posted approved document to website

Send adopted RTIP to Local Agencies

CTC agenda deadline reminder to local agencies.

WE 606 - SC Evacuation & Preparedness Plan
Comments on draft evacuation vulnerability assessment memo.
Draft comments on evacuation vulnerability assessment and submit back to TRI.
Project Team Meeting / ACH Payment Issue

Attend Evacuation Plan Steering Committee meeting (11/13/2025).

20f3



Item 4B Executive Director Staff Report
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Summary of Activities for Period
11/01/2025~11/30/2025

Revise Q1 invoice to correct local match figures.

PPM Funding (STIP)_2425

Respond to inquiries about PMS reports
PPM Funding (STIP)_2425_RTP Update

Draft RFP for RTP Update
Grand Total

30f3



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Item: 4C
Voting Agency: SCLTC

Subject: Approve contract with Vestra Resources, Inc., for address and roads data maintenance, in an
amount not to exceed $ 25,000, for the term December 19, 2025 through June 30, 2026.

Past Action:

None.

Summary of Item:

The proposed contract with Vestra Resource Inc. will provide ongoing maintenance and support for the County’s
road and address datasets. The current data, finalized by GeoComm in February 2024 and formatted in the
NG911 schema, will serve as the base dataset for this work. Vestra will update road and address information
using County-verified sources such as plat maps, with a primary focus on incorporated cities. The project is
supported by Siskiyou County’s GIS Coordinator and carried out in partnership with their department. The scope

may also include submitting updated data to Caltrans for the CaRS Initiative and re-submitting revised datasets
as part of the NG911 update process.

Financial Impact: Yes X No [
2506-303030-723000 $ 25,000

Recommended Action:
- Approve contract with Vestra Resources, Inc. and authorize the Chair to execute.

Attachments (1)
- Contract for services between Vestra Resources, Inc., and the Commission.



Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

1.01

2.01

3.01

3.02

SISKIYOU COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (SCLTC)

CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES
Address and Roads Data Maintenance

This Contract made this day of , 2025 between:

SCLTC: Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
190 Greenhorn Road
Yreka, California 96097
(530) 842-8238

And

CONTRACTOR: Vestra
5300 Aviation Drive
Redding, CA 96002

ARTICLE 1. TERM OF CONTRACT
Contract Term: This Contract shall become effective on December 19, 2025 and shall

terminate on June 30, 2026, unless terminated in accordance with the provisions of Article
7 of this Contract or as otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE 2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

Independent Contractor: It is the express intention of the parties that Contractor is an
independent contractor and not an employee, agent, joint venture or partner of SCLTC.
Nothing in this Contract shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the
relationship of employer and employee between SCLTC and Contractor or any employee
or agent of Contractor. Both parties acknowledge that Contractor is not an employee for
state or federal tax purposes. Contractor shall retain the right to perform services for
others during the term of this Contract.

ARTICLE 3. SERVICES

Specific Services: Contractor agrees to furnish the following services:
Contractor shall provide the services described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

No additional services shall be performed by Contractor unless approved in advance in
writing by the SCLTC stating the dollar value of the services, the method of payment, and
any adjustment in contract time or other contract terms. All such services are to be
coordinated with SCLTC and the results of the work shall be monitored by the SCLTC.

Method of Performing Services: Contractor will determine the method, details, and means
of performing the above-described services including measures to protect the safety of




Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

the traveling public and Contractor's employees. SCLTC shall not have the right to, and
shall not, control the manner or determine the method of accomplishing Contractor’s
services.

ARTICLE 4. COMPENSATION

Compensation: In consideration for the services to be performed by Contractor, SCLTC
agrees to pay Contractor in proportion to services satisfactorily performed as specified in
Exhibit “A”. Payment shall not exceed the amount appropriated by the SCLTC for such
services for the fiscal year.

Invoices: Contractor shall submit detailed invoices for all services being rendered.
Date for Payment of Compensation: SCLTC shall pay within 30 days of receipt of invoices

from the Contractor to the SCLTC, and approval and acceptance of the work by the
SCLTC.

Expenses: Contractor shall be responsible for all costs and expenses incident to the
performance of services for SCLTC, including but not limited to, all costs of materials,
equipment, all fees, fines, licenses, bonds or taxes required of or imposed against
Contractor and all other of Contractor’'s costs of doing business. SCLTC shall not be
responsible for any expense incurred by Contractor in performing services for SCLTC.

ARTICLE 5. OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR

Contractor Qualifications: Contractor warrants that Contractor has the necessary licenses,
experience and technical skills to provide services under this Contract.

Contract Management: Contractor shall report to the SCLTC who will review the activities
and performance of the Contractor and administer this Contract.

Tools and Instrumentalities: Contractor will supply all tools and instrumentalities required
to perform the services under this Contract. Contractor is not required to purchase or rent
any tools, equipment or services from SCLTC.

Workers’ Compensation: Contractor shall maintain a workers’ compensation plan covering
all its employees as required by California Labor Code Section 3700, either through
workers’ compensation insurance issued by an insurance company or through a plan of
self-insurance certified by the State Director of Industrial Relations. If Contractor elects to
be self-insured, the certificate of insurance otherwise required by this Contract shall be
replaced with a consent to self-insure issued by the State Director of Industrial Relations.
Proof of such insurance shall be provided before any work is commenced under this
contract. No payment shall be made unless such proof of insurance is provided.




Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

5.05

5.06

5.07

Indemnification: Contractor shall indemnify and hold SCLTC harmless against any and all
liability imposed or claimed, including attorney’s fees and other legal expenses, arising
directly or indirectly from any act or failure of Contractor or Contractor's assistants,
employees or agents, including all claims relating to the injury or death of any person or
damage to any property. Contractor agrees to maintain a policy of liability insurance in the
minimum amount of ($1,000,000) One Million Dollars, to cover such claims or in an amount
determined appropriate by the SCLTC. If the amount of insurance is reduced by the
SCLTC such reduction must be in writing. Contractor shall furnish a certificate of
insurance evidencing such insurance and naming the SCLTC as an additional insured for
the above-cited liability coverage prior to commencing work. It is understood that the duty
of Contractor to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in
Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. Acceptance by SCLTC of insurance certificates
and endorsements required under this Contract does not relieve Contractor from liability
or limit Contractor’s liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This
indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for
damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Contract, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this
Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

General Liability and Automobile Insurance: During the term of this Contract, Contractor
shall obtain and keep in full force and effect a commercial, general liability and automobile
policy or policies of at least ($1,000,000) One Million Dollars, combined limit for bodily
injury and property damage; the SCLTC, its officers, employees, volunteers and agents
are to be named additional insured under the policies, and the policies shall stipulate that
this insurance will operate as primary insurance for work performed by Contractor and its
sub-contractors, and that no other insurance effected by SCLTC or other named insured
will be called on to cover a loss covered thereunder. All insurance required herein shall be
provided by a company authorized to do business in the State of California and possess
at least a Best A: VIl rating or as may otherwise be acceptable to SCLTC. The General
Liability insurance shall be provided by an ISO Commercial General Liability policy, with
edition dates of 1985, 1988, or 1990 or other form satisfactory to SCLTC. The SCLTC will
be named as an additional insured using ISO form CG 2010 1185 or the same form with
an edition date no later than 1990, or in other form satisfactory to SCLTC.

Certificate of Insurance and Endorsements: Contractor shall obtain and file with the
SCLTC prior to engaging in any operation or activity set forth in this Contract, certificates
of insurance evidencing additional insured coverage as set forth in paragraphs 5.04 and
5.10 and which shall provide that no cancellation, reduction in coverage or expiration by
the insurance company will be made during the term of this Contract, without thirty (30)

days written notice to SCLTC prior to the effective date of such cancellation. Naming the
SCLTC as a “Certificate Holder” or other similar language is NOT sufficient
satisfaction of the requirement. Prior to commencement of performance of services by
Contractor and prior to any obligations of SCLTC, contractor shall file certificates of



Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

5.08

5.09

5.10

5.11

insurance with SCLTC showing that Contractor has in effect the insurance required by this
Contract. Contractor shall file a new or amended certificate on the certificate then on file.
If changes are made during the term of this Contract, no work shall be performed
under this agreement, and no payment may be made until such certificate of
insurance evidencing the coverage in paragraphs, 5.05, the general liability policy
set forth in 5.06 and 5.10 are provided to SCLTC.

Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS): In the event that Contractor or any
employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor providing services under this Contract is
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the Public Employees Retirement
System (CalPERS) to be eligible for enroliment in CalPERS as an employee of the
SCLTC, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless SCLTC for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions of CalPERS benefits on behalf of Contractor
or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties
and interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of SCLTC.
Contractor understands and agrees that his personnel are not, and will not be, eligible for
memberships in, or any benefits from, any SCLTC group plan for hospital, surgical or
medical insurance, or for membership in any SCLTC retirement program, or for paid
vacation, paid sick leave, or other leave, with or without pay, or for any other benefit which
accrues to a SCLTC employee.

IRS/FTB Indemnity Assignment: Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless
the SCLTC, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any adverse
determination made by the Internal Revenue Service of the State Franchise Tax Board

with respect to Contractor’s “independent contractor” status that would establish a liability
for failure to make social security and income tax withholding payments.

Professional Liability: If Contractor or any of its officers, agents, employees, volunteers,
contactors or subcontractors are required to be professionally licensed or certified by any
agency of the State of California in order to perform any of the work or services identified
herein, Contractor shall procure and maintain in force throughout the duration of the
Contract a professional liability insurance policy with a minimum coverage level of
($1,000,000) One Million Dollars, or as determined in writing by SCLTC’s Risk
Management Department.

State_and Federal Taxes: As Contractor is not SCLTC’'s employee, Contractor is
responsible for paying all required state and federal taxes. In particular:

a. SCLTC will not withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor’'s payments;

b. SCLTC will not make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on behalf
of Contractor.

¢. SCLTC will not withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor.

d. SCLTC will not make disability insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor.

e. SCLTC will not obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf of Contractor.



Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

Records: All reports and other materials collected or produced by the Contractor or any
subcontractor of Contractor shall, after completion and acceptance of the Contract,
become the property of SCLTC, and shall not be subject to any copyright claimed by the
Contractor, subcontractor, or their agents or employees. Contractor may retain copies of
all such materials exclusively for administration purposes. Any use of completed or
uncompleted documents for other projects by Contractor, any subcontractor, or any of
their agents or employees, without the prior written consent of SCLTC is prohibited. It is
further understood and agreed that all plans, studies, specifications, data magnetically or
otherwise recorded on computer or computer diskettes, records, files, reports, etc., in
possession of the Contractor relating to the matters covered by this Contract shall be the
property of the SCLTC, and Contractor hereby agrees to deliver the same to the SCLTC
upon request. It is also understood and agreed that the documents and other materials
including but not limited to those set forth hereinabove, prepared pursuant to this Contract
are prepared specifically for the SCLTC and are not necessarily suitable for any future or
other use.

Contractor’s Books and Records: Contractor shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of
account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged
to the SCLTC for a minimum of five (5) years, or for any longer period required by law,
from the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Contract. Any records or
documents required to be maintained shall be made available for inspection, audit and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
SCLTC.

Assignability of Contract: It is understood and agreed that this Contract contemplates
personal performance by the Contractor and is based upon a determination of its unique
personal competence and experience and upon its specialized personal knowledge.
Assignments of any or all rights, duties or obligations of the Contractor under this Contract
will be permitted only with the express written consent of the SCLTC.

Warranty of Contractor: Contractor warrants that it, and each of its personnel, where
necessary, are properly certified and licensed under the laws and regulations of the State
of California to provide the special services agreed to.

Withholding for Non-Resident Contractor: Pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation
Code Section 18662, payments made to nonresident independent contractors, including
corporations and partnerships that do not have a permanent place of business in this

state, are subject to 7 percent state income tax withholding. Withholding is required if the
total yearly payments made under this contract exceed $1,500.00. Unless the Franchise
Tax Board has authorized a reduced rate or waiver of withholding and SCLTC is provided
evidence of such reduction/waiver, all nonresident contractors will be subject to the



Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

6.01

7.01

withholding. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to submit the Waiver Request (Form
588) to the Franchise Tax Board as soon as possible in order to allow time for the
Franchise Tax Board to review the request.

Compliance with Child, Family and Spousal Support Reporting Obligations: Contractor’s
failure to comply with state and federal child, family and spousal support reporting
requirements regarding contractor's employees or failure to implement lawfully served
wage and earnings assignment orders or notices of assignment relating to child, family
and spousal support obligations shall constitute a default under this Contract. Contractor’s
failure to cure such default within ninety (90) days of notice by SCLTC shall be grounds
for termination of this Contract.

Conflict of Interest: Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not
acquire an interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in any
manner or degree with the performance of the services hereunder. Contractor further
covenants that, in the performance of this Contract, no subcontractor or person having
such an interest shall be used or employed. Contractor certifies that no one who has or
will have any financial interest under this contract is an officer or employee of SCLTC.

Compliance with Applicable Laws: Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state
and local laws now or hereafter in force, and with any applicable regulations, in performing
the work and providing the services specified in this Contract. This obligation includes,
without limitations, the acquisition and maintenance of any permits, licenses, or other
entitlements necessary to perform the duties imposed expressly or impliedly under this
Contract.

Bankruptcy: Contractor shall immediately notify SCLTC in the event that Contractor
ceases conducting business in the normal manner, becomes insolvent, makes a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors, suffer or permits the appointment of a receiver for
its business or assets, or avails itself of, or becomes subject to, any proceeding under the
Federal Bankruptcy Act or any other statute of any state relating to insolvency or protection
of the rights of creditors.

ARTICLE 6. OBLIGATIONS OF SCLTC
Cooperation of SCLTC: SCLTC agrees to comply with all reasonable requests of

Contractor (to provide reasonable access to documents and information as permitted by
law) necessary to the performance of Contractor’s duties under this Contract.

ARTICLE 7. TERMINATION

Termination on Occurrence of State Events: This Contract shall terminate automatically
on the occurrence of any of the following events:




Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

7.02

7.03

7.04

8.01

8.02

8.03

1. Bankruptcy or insolvency of Contractor
2. Death of Contractor

Termination by SCLTC for Default of Contractor: Should Contractor default in the
performance of this Contract or materially breach any of its provisions, SCLTC, at
SCLTC’s option, may terminate this Contract by giving ten (10) days written notification to
Contractor.

Termination for Convenience of SCLTC: SCLTC may terminate this Contract at any time
by providing a notice in writing to Contractor that the Contract is terminated. Said Contract
shall then be deemed terminated and no further work shall be performed by Contractor.
If the Contract is so terminated, the Contractor shall be paid for that percentage of the
phase of work actually completed, based on a pro rata portion of the compensation for
said phase satisfactorily completed at the time of notice of termination is received.

Termination of Funding: SCLTC may terminate this Contract in any fiscal year in that it is
determined there is not sufficient funding. California Constitution Article XVI Section 18.

ARTICLE 8. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Notices: Any notices to be given hereunder by either party to the other may be effected
either by personal delivery in writing or by mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid or
return receipt requested. Mailed notices shall be addressed to the parties at the
addresses appearing in the introductory paragraph of this Contract, but each party may
change the address by written notice in accordance with the paragraph. Notices delivered
personally will be deemed communicated as of actual receipt; mailed notices will be
deemed communicated as of two (2) days after mailing.

Entire Agreement of the Parties: This contract supersedes any and all contracts, either
oral or written, between the Parties hereto with respect to the rendering of services by
Contractor for SCLTC and contains all the covenants and contracts between the parties
with respect to the enduring of such services in any manner whatsoever. Each Party to
this Contract acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises, or contract,
orally or otherwise, have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any Party,
which are not embodied herein, and that no other contract, statement, or promise not
contained in this Contract shall be valid or binding. Any modification of this Contract will
be effective only if it is in writing signed by the Party to be charged and approved by the
SCLTC as provided herein or as otherwise required by law.

Partial Invalidity: If any provision in this Contract is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provision will nevertheless
continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.




Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

8.04

8.05

8.06

8.07

8.08

8.09

8.10

8.11

Attorney’s Fees: If any action at law or in equity, including an action for declaratory relief,
is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Contract, the prevailing Party will
be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees, which may be set by the court in the same action
or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which that
party may be entitled.

Conformance to Applicable Laws: Contractor shall comply with the standard of care
regarding all applicable federal, state and SCLTC laws, rules and ordinances. Contractor
shall not discriminate in the employment of persons who work under this contract because
of race, the color, national origin, ancestry, disability, sex or religion of such person.

Waiver: In the event that either SCLTC or Contractor shall at any time or times waive any
breach of this Contract by the other, such waiver shall not constitute a waiver of any other
or succeeding breach of this Contract, whether of the same or any other covenant,
condition or obligation.

Governing Law: This Contract and all matters relating to it shall be governed by the laws
of the State of California and the County of Siskiyou and any action brought relating to this
Contract shall be brought exclusively in a state court in the County of Siskiyou.

Reduction of Consideration: Contractor agrees that SCLTC shall have the right to deduct
from any payments contracted for under this Contract any amount owed to SCLTC by
Contractor as a result of any obligation arising prior or subsequent to the execution of this
contract. For purposes of this paragraph, obligations arising prior to the execution of this
contract may include, but are not limited to any property tax, secured or unsecured, which
tax is in arrears. If SCLTC exercises the right to reduce the consideration specified in this
Contract, SCLTC shall give Contractor notice of the amount of any off-set and the reason
for the deduction.

Negotiated Contract: This Contract has been arrived at through negotiation between the
parties. Neither party is to be deemed the party which prepared this Contract within the
meaning of California Civil Code Section 1654. Each party hereby represents and
warrants that in executing this Contract it does so with full knowledge of the rights and
duties it may have with respect to the other. Each party also represents and warrants that
it has received independent legal advice from its attorney with respect to the matters set
forth in this Contract and the rights and duties arising out of this Contract, or that such
party willingly foregoes any such consultation.

Time is of the Essence: Time is of the essence in the performance of this Contract.

Materiality: The parties consider each and every term, covenant, and provision of this
Contract to be material and reasonable.



Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

Authority and Capacity: Contractor and Contractor’s signatory each warrant and represent
that each has full authority and capacity to enter into this Contract.

Binding on Successors: All of the conditions, covenants and terms herein contained shall
apply to, and bind, the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of
Contractor. Contractor and all of Contractor's heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assigns shall be jointly and severally liable under the Contract.

Accumulation of Remedies: All of the various rights, options, elections, powers and
remedies of the parties shall be construed as cumulative, and no one of them exclusive of
any other or of any other legal or equitable remedy which a party might otherwise have in
the event of a breach or default of any condition, covenant or term by the other party. The
exercise of any single right, option, election, power or remedy shall not, in any way, impair
any other right, option, election, power or remedy until all duties and obligations imposed
shall have been fully performed.

No Reliance On Representations: Each party hereby represents and warrants that it is not
relying, and has not relied upon any representation or statement made by the other party
with respect to the facts involved or its rights or duties. Each party understands and
agrees that the facts relevant, or believed to be relevant to this Contract, may hereunder
turn out to be other than, or different from the facts now known to such party as true, or
believed by such party to be true. The parties expressly assume the risk of the facts
turning out to be different and agree that this Contract shall be effective in all respects and
shall not be subject to rescission by reason of any such difference in facts.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS ON NEXT PAGE



Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SCLTC and Contractor have executed this agreement on the
dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to
execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is
made.

SISKIYOU COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Date:

Michael N. Kobseff, Chair
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

ATTEST:
Melissa Cummins
Executive Director, SCLTC

By:

CONTRACTOR: Vestra Resources, Inc.

Signed by:

Date: 121212025 (Nu/JA? Joluson
nehnson, President/ CEO
Date-: 12/2/2025 kiml/wh? (Nilkees

Kimberly Wilkes, Operations Manager/CFO

TAXPAYER I.D.: _68-0150306

rEE?J%Q,VED AS TO LEGAL FORM:
)

slun 12/4/2025
John S. Kenny, Legal Counsel (Date)

ACCOUNTING:
Fund Organization Account Total Contract Amount

2506 303030 723000 $ 25,000

If not to exceed, include amount not to exceed: $ 25,000

Encumbrance number (if applicable):

10



Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

Exhibit A
County of Siskiyou Transportation Commission
Scope of Work and Budget

SCOPE OF WORK

The following scope of work provides a description of the work that will be performed by VESTRA for the
County of Siskiyou Transportation Commission (County) on a time and materials, not to exceed basis. As
such, VESTRA staff will be performing work activities under the direction of the Siskiyou County Project
Manager within the available time and budget constraints.

TASK 1: NG911 ADDRESS AND ROADS DATA MAINTENANCE

VESTRA will provide maintenance and support to the County for their address and roads data. The
County’s roads and address data was finalized by GeoComm in February 2024. This data has been put into
the NG911 schema and will be used as the base date for work under this project. VESTRA staff will use
plat maps or other County verified sources to update roads and addresses throughout the County,
primarily in the incorporated cities. The project may also include submitting the data to Caltrans as part
of the CaRS Initiative as well as re-submitting the data as an NG911 update.

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Once a contractis in place, VESTRA and the Siskiyou County Project Manager can mutually agree upon the
project schedule, including specific target dates for project activities. For contracting purposes, it is
expected that all work will be completed by June 30, 2026.

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS AND CONSTRAINTS
This scope and cost estimate is based on the following general assumptions and constraints:

1. Services under this engagement will be provided during VESTRA’s regular business hours of
8:00a.m. to 5:00p.m., Pacific Standard Time, Monday through Friday, except for holiday closures,
unless otherwise arranged.

2. VPN/Remote access will be provided by the County to GIS servers and GIS desktops with required
permissions.

3. The County will provide via email or upload to VESTRA’s ftp site any requested recorded
documents and survey data if needed.

4. This project is not tied to any specific number of hours, updates, or deliverables. The VESTRA
project manager will monitor the budget and keep in contact with the County project manager
regarding budget and project status.

5. Costs do not account for potential bugs or issues arising out of technology stack, architecture
deployment, or other software outside of VESTRA's control. Third party software purchase costs
and/or maintenance fees are not included. Additional requirements requested to resolve
issues/bugs encountered with third party software, hardware, or map data, over and above what
is outlined herein, will be addressed with by a contract addendum at that time.

6. Any additional requests or changes to the scope of work may result in a contract amendment.

7. Upon project completion and acceptance from the County, VESTRA's 30-day warranty period will
commence. After the 30-day warranty period, any issues that are identified may be subject to a
new support agreement.



Docusign Envelope ID: 01A29F 18-E740-4990-B99E-349B1100632D

Exhibit A
County of Siskiyou Transportation Commission
Scope of Work and Budget
BUDGET

The budget for this project is $25,000.00 provided on a time and materials, not to exceed basis. The actual
hours incurred by each staff resources may vary during contract work. The budget amount is not tied to
any specific number of hours, updates, or deliverables. The VESTRA project manager will monitor the
budget and keep in contact with the County project manager regarding budget and project status.

BUDGET FYE 6/30/2026

Hourly
Rate

Staff Classification Hours Cost

1 Address and Roads Data Maintenance
See

Any Classification Rate Schedule TBD $25,000.00

Task Total $25,000.00

BUDGET TOTAL $25,000.00

VESTRA RATE SCHEDULE

VESTRA's current hourly fee schedule is provided below.

Staff Classification m

Administrative Support Senior $48.00

Project Coordinator Senior $123.00
GIS Analyst Staff $127.00
GIS Analyst Senior $152.00
GIS Developer Staff $189.00
GIS Developer Senior $227.00
GIS Project Manager Staff $204.00
Systems Engineer Staff $159.00
Technical Architect Staff $183.00
Solutions Engineer Staff $189.00
Solutions Engineer Senior $227.00
GIS Technician Staff $83.00

GIS Technician Senior $94.00

Travel costs are included in the table below, for any travel that may be required by the County.
TRAVEL EXPENSES

$0.70/Mile Subject to change based on IRS
updates
) $68.00/Day Subject to change based on GSA
Meals & Incidentals $51.00/Day (First & Last Day of Travel) updates
. . Subject to change based on GSA
L .

Note: Rates above are based on GSA and IRS rates for 2025 and are subject to change




Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Item: 4D
Voting Agency: SCLTC

Subject: Adopt resolution authorizing a contribution of $ 288.00 of Regional Surface Transportation
Program funding to the ongoing California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs
assessment effort.

Past Action:

The Commission previously approved a reduction of Regional Surface Transportation Program to help fund the
2024 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment Report.

Summary of Item:

Since 2007, CSAC, the League of California Cities, CEAC, and California’s RTPAs have partnered to produce a
comprehensive assessment of the state’s local streets and roads. Their most recent effort, the 2024 California
Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment Report, provides updated information on system
conditions, current funding levels, and remaining funding gaps. It also supplies essential data for Caltrans’ State
and Local Transportation System Needs Assessment required by SB 1121.

Published every two years, the LSR Needs Assessment evaluates the condition of the local network, analyzes
available revenues, and estimates the funding shortfall needed to protect the state’s $188 billion investment. Its
purpose is to inform the public and policymakers about the infrastructure needs required to maintain a safe,
efficient, and multimodal transportation system.

Work is now underway on the next edition—the 2026 LSR Needs Assessment Report—led by the Oversight
Committee, which includes the project manager and representatives from counties, cities, and RTPAs.

Value of the Report

Beyond informing the public and policymakers about the condition and needs of the local streets and roads
system, CSAC and the League use the Report’s data to protect local transportation funding. The findings have
helped prevent major funding cuts and supported advocacy efforts such as securing a share of cap-and-trade
revenues for complete streets and active transportation projects aligned with SB 375 and other greenhouse-
gas-reducing plans. The Report will continue to be a key tool for counties and cities as they work to secure and
allocate new transportation revenues.

Financial Impact: Yes X No [
Reduction of annual Regional Surface Transportation Program funds.

2537-303022-540800

Recommended Action:
- Adopt resolution authorizing a one-time contribution of $ 288.00 of Regional Surface Transportation
Program funds to the 2026 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs assessment.
- Authorize the Executive Director to submit the letter to Caltrans to reduce the region’s allocation.

Attachments (1)
- Resolution approving the contribution of Regional Surface Transportation Program funds.



Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Resolution No. 25-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONTRIBUTION OF REGIONAL SURFACE
TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM FUNDING TO THE ONGOING CALIFORNIA
STATEWIDE LOCAL STREETS AND ROADS NEEDS ASSESSMENT EFFORT

WHEREAS, a regional transportation network is comprised of local streets and roads, highways,
mass transit, airports, seaports, land ports, and bicycle and pedestrian facilities; and

WHEREAS, each transportation component is critical in ensuring a seamless, safe, and efficient
multi-modal transportation network in all local communities across the state; and

WHEREAS, 80% of the roads in California are locally owned and operated by cities and counties,
where every trip begins and ends, and the local system is critical for safety and mobility of the
traveling public, farm to market needs, multimodal needs, and commerce; and

WHEREAS, while federal and state governments regularly assess their transportation system
needs, until 2008, no such data existed for the local component of California’s transportation
network; and

WHEREAS, transportation infrastructure is underfunded and deteriorating and existing funding
sources are not sufficient to meet even basic maintenance needs, but without credible and
defensible data, efforts to advocate for increased funding for transportation purposes are difficult
at best; and

WHEREAS, the California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment provides
critical analysis and information on the local transportation network’s condition and funding needs;
and

WHEREAS, the results of the 2024 Assessment Update, which indicate that the condition of the
local transportation network is deteriorating as predicted in the 2008 California Statewide Local
Streets and Roads Needs Assessment, are being used in the California Transportation
Commission’s efforts to study alternatives to the state gas tax as a mechanism to pay for
transportation infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, it costs approximately $715,000 to update the California Statewide Local Streets and
Roads Needs Assessment report every two years; and

WHEREAS, California’s regional transportation planning agencies have been financial partners
since 2010 and provided ongoing technical support since 2008; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission will contribute its proportional share towards the effort in support of the positive work
that has been done to date, the usefulness of the findings of the report, and the continued use
the report will serve as the collective transportation community advocates for scarce
transportation revenues.

SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE



Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of December 2025 by the Siskiyou County Local
Transportation Commission by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
Michael N Kobseff, Chair
Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission

ATTEST:

Melissa Cummins, Executive Director
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

By




Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Item: 4E
Voting Agency: SCLTC
Subject: Amendment of STAGE'’s State Transit Assistance Claim for FY 2025/2026 and revision of LTC’s
budgets.
Past Action:

On April 8, 2025, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 25-06 approving STAGE’s FY 2025/2026 State
Transit Assistance Claim for $ 460,179.00.

Summary of Item:
The State of California released revised estimates for the FY 2025/2026 State Transit Assistance program.
The revised estimates received reflect lower anticipated receipts resulting in the need to revise the approved

claim amount for this year.

This item also includes approval of revisions to the adopted budget to reflect the reduced anticipated revenues
and expenditures for FY 2025/2026.

Financial Impact: Yes X No [
Amended claim to STAGE from $ 460,179 to $ 455,157

2538-303023-540800 Reduce to $ 455,157
2538-303023-751002 Reduce to $ 455,157

Recommended Action:
- Adopt resolution amending STAGE’s State Transit Assistance claim for FY 2025/2026 to $ 455,157.
- Ratify modifications to the State Transit Assistance budget for FY 2025/2026 (Fund: 2538).

Attachments (1)
- Resolution amending STAGE’s State Transit Assistance claim for FY 2025/2026.



Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Resolution No.

State Transit Assistance (STA) Amended Claim for FY 2025/2026

WHEREAS, the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission (SCLTC) is the designated
local planning agency for the area otherwise known as the County of Siskiyou; and

WHEREAS, the Siskiyou Transportation Agency (STA) is required to file annual transportation
claims for funds, if any, from the State Transit Assistance Fund (STA); and

WHEREAS, the Auditor of said County is instructed to pay monies in the fund to the claimants
pursuant to allocation instructions received from SCLTC, and

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2025, the State Controller’s Office issued a revised estimate for STA
funds for FY 2025/2026, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission approves the following allocations of the State Transit Assistance Funds to:

Siskiyou Transportation Agency the estimated amount of $ 455,157

Upon receipt of the executed resolution the County Auditor-Controller shall issue all available
funds and do so upon receipt of all future funds up to, but not exceeding, the claim maximum.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, appointed by the Commission, is
authorized to sign the allocation instructions and to issue the instructions to the County Auditor-
Controller to pay the claimants in accordance with the above allocations.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission on this 18™
day of December 2025 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Michael N. Kobseff, Chair
Siskiyou County
Local Transportation Commission
ATTEST:

Melissa Cummins, Executive Director
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

By




Item 4F Executive Director Staff Report
STA Informational Item Siskiyou Transportation Agency
Summary of Activities for Period

11/01/2025~11/30/2025

Siskiyou Transportation Agency/STAGE
STA Minutes - 10/14/2025
STA Agenda Items - 11/18/2025
Draft presentation materials for 11/18/2025 agenda item.
Draft notice to STA member agencies about public hearing.
Board Meeting, Withdrawal Public Hearing
Meeting w/CAO on JPA
Meeting w/CalTIP on JPA issue.

Conference w/CalTIP on insurance coverage.

SB125 - Website
Project Team Meeting - 11/05/2025
V1 Homepage Design Feedback to Planeteria.
Process Planeteria invoice.

Project Team Meeting - 11/26/2025

SB125 - Contactless Payment System

Meeting w/Passio representative

1 0of 1



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Iltem: 4G
Voting Agency: STA

Subject: STAGE Staff Report for December 18, 2025

Past Action:

This is a monthly report from STAGE staff on transit operations.
Summary of Item:
Report for December 2025
o Staff continue to work on the contactless fare payment system and GTFS project.
e Progress is being made on Route 7, which will fulfill the request for service to Lake Shastina and fill
in some gaps in our afternoon services.
o Staff are working on compiling content for the new STAGE website.
Financial Impact: Yes [ No X

Recommended Action: Informational item.

Attachments (0)



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Iltem: 4H
Voting Agency: SCLTC and STA

Subject: Minute Approval

Past Action:

Not Applicable.
Summary of Item:

Approval of the minutes of the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission and Siskiyou Transportation
Agency meeting on:

- November 18, 2025
Financial Impact: Yes [ No X

Recommended Action:
Approve the minutes as presented, or with corrections if necessary.

Attachments (1)
- Draft minutes of the November 18, 2025 meeting.



Agenda
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
: v~ 190 Greenhorn Road
T Yreka, California 96097

Minutes of the special meeting of the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
and Siskiyou Transportation Agency held on November 18, 2025.

The Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission special meeting of November 18,
2025, was called to order by Chair Kobseff at 2:00 PM at the Siskiyou County Transit
Center conference room located at 190 Greenhorn Road, Yreka, California.

Commissioners in attendance included:

Michael N Kobseff Matthew Bryan
Mercedes Garcia (Alternate) Cliff Munson
Nancy Ogren Ed Valenzuela

Commissioners absent from the meeting:
Pat Vela Jess Harris (Alternate)

Other Staff Present In-Person:

Melissa Cummins, Executive Director

Dana Barton, Chief Deputy County Counsel

Angie Stumbaugh, Transportation Services Manager
Andy Gilman, Transportation Services Coordinator

The agenda items included:

1) Roll Call — Chair Kobseff called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM.
Commissioners present in-person included Bryan, Garcia, Kobseff, Munson,
Ogren, and Valenzuela.

2) Pledge of Allegiance

3) Presentation from the Public

None
4) Consent Agenda Items

Regular Informational ltems
A. Fiscal Reporting - Reports of Expenditures and Revenues from October 1,
2025, to October 31, 2025, for:
1. Local Transportation Commission (Fund: 2505)

1|Page



5)

Agenda
. Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
19| and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
190 Greenhorn Road
Yreka, California 96097

Regional Transportation Planning (Fund: 2506)

Local Transportation Funds (Fund: 2536)

Regional Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (Fund: 2537)
State Transit Assistance (Fund: 2538)

SB 125 TIRCP/General Fund (Fund: 2546)

SB 125 Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (Fund: 2547)

SB 125 Public Transit Account (Fund: 2548)

ONOORWN

B. Commission Staff Report - Report from Executive Director on activities,
reporting, and other projects since the last meeting.

Consent Agenda Action ltems

C. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 14, 2025.

D. Approve Addendum to contract for services with Optimize Worldwide, Inc., to
increase the total compensation payable to $ 19,610 and add Exhibit A1 that
includes additional items to the scope of work.

A motion was made by Commissioner Ogren and seconded by Commissioner
Bryan to approve the consent agenda as presented.

Ayes: Bryan, Garcia, Kobseff, Munson, Ogren, and Valenzuela
Noes: None
Absent: Vela
Abstain: None

Motion passed unanimously.

Discussion/Action — Social Services Transportation Advisory Council Appointment

The Executive Director provided a summary of the item, which included an
application for the Council from Karen Bleich. Upon review of the current SSTAC
appointments the Executive Director contacted the applicant about term options,
and she agreed to a 2-year term.

A motion was made by Commissioner Valenzuela and seconded by Commissioner
Bryan to appoint Karmen Bleich to a two-year term ending on November 18, 2027,
as a representative of a local social service provider for seniors.

Ayes: Bryan, Garcia, Kobseff, Munson, Ogren, and Valenzuela

2|Page



o o0 Coup,. Agenda

Ve

™\

~ Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
'\ and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center Ve S
190 Greenhorn Road NING comZ-
Yreka, California 96097

Noes: None
Absent: Vela
Abstain: None

Motion passed unanimously.

Discussion/Action — Siskiyou County 2026 Regional Transportation Improvement
Program (RTIP)

The Executive Director provided an overview of the draft 2026 RTIP including the
coordination with local partners, evaluation of pending and requested projects,
available funding, and discussion regarding continued use of STIP funds for the
pavement management system. She gave thanks to the local partners within the
region (city and County) for their time throughout the development of the proposed
program. She also expressed gratitude to Nicole Fortner and Jessica Pecha with
Caltrans (District 2) for taking time to travel to each jurisdiction and meet with them
individually.

A motion was made by Commissioner Munson and seconded by Commissioner
Ogren to adopt the resolution approving the 2026 Regional Transportation
Improvement Program, direct the Executive Director to submit the approved RTIP
to Caltrans and the California Transportation Commission (CTC), and authorize
the Executive Director to make any non-substantial changes as requested by CTC.

Ayes: Bryan, Garcia, Kobseff, Munson, Ogren, and Valenzuela
Noes: None
Absent: Vela
Abstain: None

Motion passed unanimously.

Discussion and possible action regarding adding additional funds to the contract
between Kenny & Norine for legal services through June 30, 2026.

The Executive Director explained that for the current fiscal year there is
approximately $ 300 remaining in the contract between the Commission and
Kenny & Norine, which doesn’t expire until June 30, 2026.

3|Page



gevcoy, Agenda
VAV ~ Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
| \ and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

\ ) / Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
Norranot 190 Greenhorn Road
o Yreka, California 96097

Chief Deputy County Counsel clarified that County Counsel has served as legal
counsel to the Commission in the past. The Board of Supervisors previously
authorized County Counsel to serve as counsel for the special districts.

Commissioner Bryan voiced support of consolidating counsels due to increased
efficiency and reduced costs. Commissioner Munson also expressed support for
using in-house services including reimbursement to the County.

Staff was asked to bring back an agenda item at the next meeting to designate
County Counsel as legal counsel for the Commission.

Commissioner Munson asked for information on costs for County Counsel to
provide the services. The Executive Director also mentioned that if their time is
billed in the current year for the services those costs can be recouped through
various grants.

A motion was made by Commissioner Bryan and seconded by Commissioner
Ogren to issue a 30-day notice of cancellation of the professional services
retention agreement between the Commission and Kenny & Norine pursuant to
section 16 of the agreement.

Ayes: Bryan, Garcia, Kobseff, Munson, Ogren, and Valenzuela
Noes: None
Absent: Vela
Abstain: None

Motion passed unanimously.

Chair Kobseff adjourned the meeting of the Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission and reconvened as the Siskiyou Transportation Agency at 2:22 p.m.

Directors present in-person included Bryan, Garcia, Kobseff, Munson, Ogren,
and Valenzuela.

8) Public Comment - None

9) Consent Agenda Action Items

4|Page



gevcoy, Agenda
VAV ~ Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
'\ and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center Ve S
) 190 Greenhorn Road NING comZ-
T Yreka, California 96097

Reqular Informational Items

E. Executive Director Report — Staff report on activities, reporting, and other
projects including the latest ridership report.

F. STAGE Staff Report — Staff report on activities, reporting, and other projects
including the latest ridership report.

Consent Agenda Action Items

G. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting on October 14, 2025.

A motion was made by Director Valenzuela and seconded by Director Ogren to
approve the consent agenda as presented.

Ayes: Bryan, Garcia, Kobseff, Munson, Ogren, and Valenzuela
Noes: None
Absent: Vela
Abstain: None

Motion passed unanimously.

10)Discussion — Dissolution of Siskiyou Transportation Agency

The Executive Director advised the Board that a summary of the items that staff
were requested to bring back is included in the staff report enclosed in the agenda
packet.

At the Board’s request the Executive Director went through the staff report starting
with the Organizational Evaluation including the formation and the initial steps
following the final approval on December 3, 2024, how STAGE operated under the
County model versus now, and the various pros and cons to each model. One of
the pros is that a multi-jurisdictional governing body may be more competitive
when seeking grants. Part of the research conducted was submitting public
records act requests to the State Controller’s Office and the Secretary of State to
obtain any formation documents submitted. Prior research was conducted by the
County Clerk’s office on any county records documenting the formation of the LTC.

The Executive Director advised that one of the alternative models would be to
formalize the LTC as a JPA, following the same process used to establish the

5|Page



s ouCoup,. Agenda

N

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission :5 \

1 and Siskiyou Transportation Agency | 4

NN

/s / ¢

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center

O
S

Yreka, California 96097

Siskiyou Transportation Agency (STA), and then modify the STA’'s JPA to
designate the Commission as the Board of Directors. This would essentially create
one body that is the Board for both entities. The agenda would still have all items
with the meeting flowing consecutively. The other models included in the staff
report were also reviewed and discussed including returning to the County
overseeing STAGE and another non-County member assumed the operations.

Commissioner Kobseff voiced disagreement with the characterization that cities
had limited input under the County model. The Executive Director attempted to
clarify the difference between the Commission voting as the RTPA versus transit
operator action items as it related to city representatives.

Commissioner Bryan shared his view which is that the vote was indirect versus
direct in a legal sense. He feels anything that leads to further collaboration and
wants the cities to have a stronger voice.

Additional discussion followed between the Commissioners on the matter of
governance and representation and efficiencies. Many of the County
representatives have cities located within their districts. There was additional
discussion regarding the cities being more vocal and more engaged.

A few Commissioners shared that they thought they were going to be one agency
and break away from the County, but that did not occur. Commissioner Bryan
asked for clarification on what prevented the separation from the County. The
Executive Director advised that it was more than just staffing. As an example, the
transit center is co-owned so how that would look with IT services, etc.

Commissioner Bryan asked the County Supervisors what it was that disappointed
them with the current operation. Commissioner Kobseff stated they thought they
were going to one entity. They are now in the County, plus the new one that has
created redundancies.

Commissioner Bryan asked if there was a way to make the LTC and STA one
agency. Ms. Barton responded to the question posed by Commissioner Bryan.
The LTC can serve as the Transit Operator if it is authorized in the formation
documents of the LTC.

Ms. Barton and the Executive Director to discuss recreating LTC’s formation
documents. They had to exist at some point for the State Controller’s Office to

6|Page

T SPORTIN
/\\\’\\‘\ A &

()'

& S
190 Greenhorn Road NG cowS-



Agenda
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
} and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
: v 190 Greenhorn Road
T Yreka, California 96097

recognize the LTC. The language could be added to designate LTC as the transit
operator. The city representation would also be addressed within the document.

The Executive Director clarified that this would require a new JPA formalizing the
LTC and modification of the existing STA JPA to designate the Board of Directors
as the LTC.

Commissioner Munson asked if there were other existing special districts that
could potentially be consolidated with the STA JPA. Staff were not aware of any
other existing special districts that could be combined.

Following a comprehensive discussion staff were asked to have a draft for review
by the Board at the next meeting. The Executive Director and Ms. Barton
confirmed they would work on drafting the documents for the next agenda.

Commissioner Bryan suggested the employees acting ex officio be defined up front
in the draft documents so there are no surprises.

The Executive Director also addressed the request for the additional position. She
clarified that the requested position would be to support the LTC not the JPA.
There was additional discussion regarding the funds that reverted to the state and
the 2026/2027 Regional Planning Assistance allocations, which will remain at

$ 315,500.

The Executive Director summarized that the direction to staff is to draft a JPA
forming the LTC, draft a revision to the STA JPA designating the LTC as the Board
of Directors, and adding language defining the employee relationship (acting ex
officio) between the JPA’s and the County.

Ms. Barton also clarified during the discussion on Agenda ltem 11 regarding this
item that the LTC would have a new JPA formation document, the STA JPA would
be amended to authorize LTC to serve as the transportation agency. Under this
model it would require the Board of Supervisors to rescind their withdrawal from
the agency. Under this model we would still need the STA JPA in existence.
Commissioner Kobseff asked Ms. Barton to notify the County Administrator about
the direction from the LTC and STA to explore this option as a revamp of the
current structure.

11)Discussion/Possible Action — Setting Additional Meeting Date in 2025

7|Page



gevcoy, Agenda
VAV ~ Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
} and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

\ ) / Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
Norranot 190 Greenhorn Road
o Yreka, California 96097

The Commission discussed the scheduling of upcoming meetings. Staff noted that
the December regular meeting had previously been rescheduled to November 18,
resulting in the next regular meeting not occurring until February. Staff further
reported that several business items, including a required public hearing, would
need Commission action before that time.

Discussion occurred among Commissioners and staff regarding availability for an
additional meeting in December, no earlier than December 15. Commissioners
also discussed the possibility of holding a meeting in January; however, it was
noted that a January date would be too soon for review by Commissioners.
Following discussion, the Commission agreed to hold a special meeting on
December 18 at 9:00 a.m. and to proceed with the next regular meeting in
February.

12)Closed Session — Conference with legal counsel, threat to public services of
facilities pursuant to Government Code §54957(a) commenced at 3:09 p.m.

13)Report on Closed Session

Chief Deputy County Counsel Dana Barton announced the following
reportable action taken following the completion of closed session.

With regard to item 12, Conference with legal counsel, threat to public services of
facilities pursuant to Government Code §54957(a), Ms. Barton advised that the
Commission unanimously approved amending the budget to add $ 41,567 to
professional services and $ 25,000 to Special Departmental.

14)Other Business (This item was heard prior to closed session.)
A. Executive Director

o McCloud Roundabout/State Route 89 — The letter voicing the
Commission’s concerns regarding the proposed roundabout was sent to
Dave Moore, District 2’s Director. He contacted the Executive Director
to advise that his staff would come back and present to the Commission
prior to any further public outreach on the project. It has been tentatively
scheduled for them to present at the April 2026 Commission meeting.
Kerry Molz also contacted the Executive Director to clarify that the

8|Page



Agenda
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
and Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Conference Room at the Siskiyou County Transit Center
g 190 Greenhorn Road
o Yreka, California 96097

roundabout is listed as the programmable alternative, which allows them
to request the maximum amount. The roundabout is not the selected
alternative currently. That decision will not be finalized until additional
outreach has been completed.

o STAGE’s new service truck came in at about $ 10,000 under the
allocated budget.

o Staff provided a preview of the homepage design of STAGE’s new
website.

o Angie and Andy are also working on the contactless fare payment and
GTFS real-time upgrades.

15)Chair Kobseff adjourned the meeting at 3:40 p.m.

9|Page



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Item: 5(1)
Voting Agency: SCLTC

Subject: Public hearing to consider adoption of the 2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Public Transit —
Human Services Transportation Plan and determine the project exempt from California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Past Action:

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc. presented on overview of the draft plan to the Social Services
Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) on October 8, 2025.

Summary of Item:

This is a public hearing to consider adoption of the 2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Public Transit — Human
Services Transportation Plan (Coordinated Plan) and determine the project exempt from CEQA.

The team from LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc. will present an overview of the project and proposed goals
and strategies.

The Coordinated Plan is a strategic framework designed to enhance the efficiency, accessibility, and
sustainability of public transportation services. It involves collaboration among transit agencies, local
governments, human service organizations, and other stakeholders to ensure that transportation services meet
the needs of diverse populations, particularly seniors, individuals with disabilities, and low-income individuals.

After presenting the draft final plan at the October 8, 2025, SSTAC meeting, the document was posted on the
Commission’s website and Facebook page for public comment. Feedback from the SSTAC meeting has been
incorporated into the final plan.

CEQA Exemption Justification:

Senate Bill 922, signed into law in the 2022 legislative session, amended Public Resources Code (PRC) Sections
21080.20 to exempt specific transportation plans and projects from full environmental review under CEQA.

SB 922 statutorily exempts many transportation projects, including improvements for walking, biking, and public
transit from an in-depth CEQA review. Lead agencies must file a Notice of Exemption (NOE) and hold a public
hearing when implemented under SB 922.

Government Code 6061 requires publication of public hearing notice at least once. Since the plan is
multijurisdictional the agency is required to publish the notice in the newspaper of the largest circulation. The
information on the public hearing was posted on the Commission’s website on November 19, 2025, posted on
the Commission’s Facebook page on November 24, 2025, and advertised in the Siskiyou Daily News on
November 26, 2025, added to the Commission’s website on November 19, 2025, and Facebook on March 28,
2025.

Additionally, under CEQA a project must have the potential to result in a significant physical impact on the
environment to require environmental review. The Coordinated Plan qualifies for exemption under the following
CEQA Categorical Exemptions:

1) Feasibility and Planning Studies Exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15262)



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

This exemption applies to projects involving only feasibility or planning studies for possible future
actions that have not been approved, adopted, or funded. The Coordinated Plan is a planning
document that outlines potential improvements but does not commit to or approve any specific projects.

2) Common Sense Exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3)):
This exemption applies when it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility the activity will
have a significant effect on the environment. The Coordinated Plan is a policy document and does not
directly authorize any physical development or construction activities.

While the Siskiyou County Coordinated Plan is exempt from CEQA because it is a long-term planning document
without direct environmental impacts individual projects that are identified in the plan remain subject to CEQA
unless another exemption applies.

Based on the information outlined above it is concluded that the plan is statutorily exempted from CEQA pursuant
to the identified sections.

Financial Impact:

Adopting the Coordinated Plan does not commit the Commission to specific expenditures. However,
implementation of recommended projects will require seeking grant funding, leveraging existing transportation
funds, and coordination by local jurisdictions.

Recommended Action:
Staff recommends adoption of the resolution to:
1) Adopt the 2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Public Transit — Human Services Transportation Plan.
2) Determine the Plan exempt from CEQA under Sections 21080.20, 15262, and 15061(b)(3) of the
CEQA Guidelines.
3) Direct staff to file a Notice of Exemption with the Siskiyou County Clerk and the California State
Clearinghouse.

Attachments (5)
- LSC Transportation Consultants Presentation
- Resolution adopting the plan and determining it exempt from CEQA.
- Notice of Exemption — Siskiyou County Coordinated Plan 2025
- Public Hearing Notice Posted in Siskiyou Daily News — November 26, 2025
- Siskiyou County Coordinated Plan 2025



- s - ="

Siskiyou County Coordinated

Transportation Plan
Special Meeting

TR December 18, 2025

Project Team

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

¢ Melissa Cummins, Executive Director

LSC Transportation Consultants

* Genevieve Evans, Planning Principal, AICP
* Justine Marmesh, Senior Transportation Planner, AICP

-
A Coordinated Plan...

Discovers gaps and needs.
Identifies transportation providers.
Develops coordinated strategies.

Focuses on transportation needs for older
adults, persons with disabilities, and
people with low income.

Creates eligibility for certain Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) grant
programs.



Demographics of Siskiyou County

e Many older adults live in parts of
Granda/Gazelle area, Lake
Shastina/Carrick, and East Mt. Shasta

 Relatively high concentrations of
disabled residents live in Weed, West
Yreka, and Montague

* Most zero vehicle households are
located in census tracts near Weed
(24.5%), West Yreka, and East Mount
Shasta.

Stakeholder and Public Outreach Summary

* Stakeholder and =y
transportation provider What do Yau, tfimﬁ
about _tragsportation

workshop
* Focus group meetings
* Online Community Survey
(143 responses)
* Transportation Informational
Database
Public and SSTAC Workshops

r 8th - 4:30 PM to 6:00 PM
: Si insit Center Conference Room
190 Greenhorn Rd, Yreka, CA 96097

2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Transportation Plan

Siskiyou County Gaps and Barriers

* Connections between Siskiyou County and surrounding
Counties (Shasta County, CA and Jackson County, OR)

* Lack of Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT)
Providers

* Small number of door through door services
* Lack of community understanding of existing services

* Small communities lacking any access to public transit (Lake
Shastina and Fort Jones)



2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Transportation Plan
Evaluation Criteria

* Does the strategy address transportation gaps or
barriers?

* Can this strategy be feasibly implemented given the
timeframe and available resources?

* How does this strategy build upon existing services?

2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Transportation Plan
Proposed Goals
* Goal 1: Maintain a Sustainable,

Efficient, and Effective Public Transit
System in Siskiyou County

¢ Goal 2: Provide Additional
Transportation Services Within and

Beyond Siskiyou County, as Feasible

¢ Goal 3: Expand Public Outreach and

Regional Education of Services

Recommended Strategies

 Strategy 1: Maintain the current level of transportation
services.

« Strategy 2: Improve marketing materials and outreach efforts
to inform public of available transportation services.

 Strategy 3: Seek traditional and non-traditional funding
sources to fund out-of-county transportation.

« Strategy 4: Pilot a mileage reimbursement program as a
program of last resort to fill gaps in transportation service
to/from small outlying communities.



Recommended Strategies

« Strategy 5: Improve regional transportation provider
coordination through database and annual meetings.

« Strategy 6: Improve frequency and coverage of STAGE routes,
as resources allow

« Strategy 7: Expand marketing for existing STAGE voucher
programs to human service agencies.

« Strategy 8: Implement a travel training program.

Priority Strategy Description
High Strategy 1 [Maintain the current level of transportation services.
High Strategy 2 (Improve marketing materials and outreach efforts to inform public of available transportation services.
High Strategy 3 [Seek traditional and non-traditional funding sources to fund out-of-county transportation.
Pilot a mileage reimbursement program as a program of last resort to fill gaps in transportation service
High Strategy 4 & e [.?.g prog 8ap P!
to/from small ying ie:
High Strategy 5 |Improve regional transportation provider c ination through datat and annual meetings.
High Strategy 6 (Implement a travel training program.

Strategy 7 (Improve frequency and coverage of STAGE routes, as resources allow.

Strategy 8 [Expand marketing for existing STAGE voucher programs to human service agencies.

Strategy 9 [Provide transportation information and support to Siskiyou County youth service agencies.

Thank you!

Please contact me if you have any further questions or concerns.

Justine Marmesh
530-448-4083
justine@]Isctrans.com



Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Resolution No.

RESOLUTION OF THE SISKIYOU COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
ADOPTING THE 2025 SISKIYOU COUNTY COORDINATED PUBLIC TRANSIT — HUMAN
SERVICES TRANSPORTION PLAN AND DETERMINING THE PLAN TO BE EXEMPT FROM
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)

WHEREAS, the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission (SCLTC) is the designated
Regional Transportation Planning Agency for Siskiyou County; and

WHEREAS, the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission (SCLTC) recognizes the need
to support and improve public transit and human service transportation options to enhance
mobility, accessibility, and quality of life for seniors, individuals with disabilities, low-income
residents, and other transportation-disadvantaged populations; and

WHEREAS, the Siskiyou County Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation
Plan (“Coordinated Plan”) has been developed to identify transportation needs, gaps, and
priorities, and to guide investment in services, programs, and strategies that improve mobility for
the region’s most vulnerable populations; and

WHEREAS, the Coordinated Plan provides a framework for local agencies, transit operators,
nonprofit organizations, and social service providers to collaborate in building an efficient,
equitable, and integrated transportation network that supports regional connectivity and enhances
access to essential services; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Public Resources
Code § 21000 et seq.) and the CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14,
Chapter 3), the SCLTC has reviewed the Plan and determined that it qualifies for a categorical
exemption under Section 15262 (Feasibility and Planning Studies), Section 15061(b)(3)
(Common Sense Exemption), and Section 21080.20 (Active Transportation Plans); and

WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption has been prepared in accordance with CEQA and will be filed
with the appropriate agencies; and

WHEREAS, SCLTC has conducted a duly noticed public meeting on the adoption of the Plan,
providing an opportunity for public review and comment; and

WHEREAS, after consideration of the Plan, public input, and all written and oral evidence
presented, the SCLTC finds that the adoption of the Plan is in the best interest of Siskiyou County
residents and furthers the goals of active transportation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission hereby:

1) Adopts the 2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Public Transit — Human Services
Transportation Plan

2) Determines that the Plan is exempt from CEQA under Sections 15262, 15061(b)(3), and
Section 21080.20 of the CEQA Guidelines.

3) Directs staff to file a Notice of Exemption with the Siskiyou County Clerk and the California
State Clearinghouse.

SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE



Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of December 2025 by the Siskiyou County Local
Transportation Commission by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
Michael N. Kobseff, Chair
Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission

ATTEST:

Melissa Cummins, Executive Director
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

By




| Print Form l

Notice of Exemption Appendix E
To: Office of Planning and Research From: (Public Agency):
g-o- Box 3044(3{‘:;;121 13%44 Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
acramento, -
190 Greenhorn Road, Yreka, CA 96097
County Clerk
County of: Siskiyou (Address)

311 Fourth Street, Room 201
Yreka, CA 96097

Project Title: 2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Public Transit — Human Services Transportation Plan

Project Applicant: SISKiyou County Local Transportation Commission (SCLTC)

Project Location - Specific:

County of Siskiyou

Project Location - City: Various Project Location - County: S|Sk|you
Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project:

The SCLTC has developed an updated Coordinated Public Transit — Human Services
Transportation Plan to enhance the efficiency, accessibility, and sustainability of public
transportation services.

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project:

Exempt Status: (check one):
O Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268);
O Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a));
OO0 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c));
Categorical Exemption. State type and section number; F€asibility and Planning Studies (15262)
O Statutory Exemptions. State code number:

Reasons why project is exempt:

The Coordinated Plan is a planning document that outlines potential improvements
but does not commit to or approve any specific projects.

Lead Agency . .
Contact Person: Melissa Cummins Area Code/Telephone/Extension: 530.842.8238

If filed by applicant:
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes No

Signature: Date: Tite: EXecutive Director

Signed by Lead Agency Signed by Applicant

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OPR:
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code.

Revised 2011



THE SISKIYOU
DAILY NEWS

Govt Public Notices

Originally published at siskiyoudaily.com on 11/26/2025

Notice of Public Hearing

Notice is Hereby Given that the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission will
hold a Public Hearing on Thursday, December 18, 2025, at 9:00 a.m., or as soon
thereafter as the matter may be heard, in the Siskiyou County Transit Center Conference
Room, 190 Greenhorn Road, Yreka, California, on the project described below.
Participation in this meeting will be available via Zoom/teleconference. The information
necessary to participate via Zoom/teleconference will be set forth on the meeting agenda
the Friday before the meeting. Should you wish to comment on this project, you may
submit a written comment or attend in person.

Project Name: 2025 Coordinated Public Transit — Human Services Transportation Plan
Project Location and Description: The 2025 Coordinated Public Transit — Human Services
Transportation Plan encompasses the entire region (County of Siskiyou). The goal of the
Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation Plan is to improve mobility in
Siskiyou County by enhancing coordination among public, non-profit, and for-profit
transportation providers.

It is anticipated that the proposed plan will be determined to be exempt from CEQA under
Public Resources Code (PRC) 21080.20 and 21080.25, which exempts specific
transportation plans and projects. To qualify for this exemption the lead agency must file a
Notice of Exemption (NOE) and hold a public hearing .

Project documents, which include the plan and all appendices, are available at:
https://siskiyoucoltc.org/docs/coordinated-plan-update-2025/

Documents are also available for public review at the Siskiyou County Transit Center, 190
Greenhorn Road, Yreka, California, 96097, Monday through Friday between 8 a.m. and
12 p.m. or 1 p.m. and 5 p.m. Monday through Friday, excluding County holidays.

All items presented to the Transportation Commission during a public hearing, including
but not limited to, letters, e-mail, petitions, photos, or maps, become a permanent part of
the record and must be submitted to the Executive Director of the Commission. It is
advised that the presenter bring 10 copies of anything presented to the Commission and
that the presenter create copies in advance for their own records.

All public records related to an open session item on the Agenda which are not exempt
from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act that are distributed to a
majority of the legislative body will be available for public inspection at 190 Greenhorn
Road, Yreka, CA 96097, at the time that the public records are distributed or made
available to a majority of the members of the legislative body.

Any concerns or issues relating to the project must be raised during the public review



period or at the public hearing. Public comments can be submitted via mail or hand
delivery to the Transportation Commission (190 Greenhorn Road, Yreka, CA 96097) or
email to general@co.siskiyou.ca.us. Please include your name and physical address.
Comments must be received by the Commission by 5:00 p.m. the day before the public
hearing. If you challenge either the proposed project or the project’s environmental
document in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else
raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence
delivered to the Transportation Commission prior to or at the public hearing.

For more information regarding the proposed project or the public hearing, please contact
Melissa Cummins at (530) 842-8238 or melissa@siskiyoucoltc.org.

Melissa Cummins, Executive Director

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission 11/18/2025

11/26/2025



LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.







2025
Siskiyou County
Coordinated Public Transit -
Human Services Transportation Plan

Prepared for
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
190 Greenhorn Road
Yreka, California 96097

Prepared by
LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
2690 Lake Forest Road, Ste. C
Tahoe City, CA 96145
(530) 583-4053

October 29, 2025



This page intentionally left blank.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTERS PAGE
(04 9 E=Y 01 7<) ol IR0 00 oY 10 U 0 () o 00T 1
T a oY [V 4T ] o RN RSP U PSPPI 1
Coordinated Plan Context and APProach ...t e s bae e e e ebre e e e aaees 1
Siskiyou County Local Transportation COMMISSION ....ceeiiieiiciiiiiiiee e e ececiiete e e e e e ecctrree e e e e e e e seaerre e e e e e e e eeanrsaeees 1
Siskiyou Transportation Agency JOINT POWEIS AZENCY.....cccccuuiiiiiieeeieecciitee e e e e eeecirreee e e e e e esearrreeeeaeeeeeanssaeees 2
Federal Coordination REQUINEMENTS. ....cciii i ieieeee et e e e e e e et e e e e e e s e e neereeeeeseeeennnnnreneeaaaeas 3
Chapter 2: Siskiyou County EXiSting CONAITiONS........ococenecereeneeneeseesseseenesseessssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 5
T a oY [V 4T ] o RN RSP U PSPPI 5
[CT=ToT={ =11 117/ PR 5
[DTT o g oY =4 =T o] o 1ol USRS 5
[Xolo Yo o] 011V P PP PRSP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPRPPPRS 12
5300] o] Lo} 0= | AP 16
Chapter 3: Inventory of TranSportation SEIVICES.......ornreermnemsersessessssssssessesssssesssssssssssssssssenns 21
T} d oo [ ¥ o1 4 e o NSRRI 21
¥ o] [ 1ol N = T o Ty oo =Y 4 o] T 2d e 1VZ T [=T USSR 21
Other Regional TranSPOrtatioNn .......iici ettt e e e e e e et re e e e e e e e s btreeeeeeeseeannstanaeeaaesesnnnes 26
Y LI S oLV T =T oSSR 29
Non-Emergency Medical Transportation ProViders .........cccviiiiiciiie ettt e e vne e e 36
Chapter 4: Recent Planning Document OVEIVIEW .........corrremnmnemnemnernessssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssenns 39
T A oY [V 4T ] o NN PRSPPI 39
2015 Coordinated Plan OVEIVIEW ......ccccuuiiiiiiiiieiiiieeessiiteessteeessiteeessssbeeesssreeessabeeessssseeessnsseeessssenessssens 39
Siskiyou County 2021 Short Range Transportation Plan ..........c.uuveeiiiiieiciiiieeee e eeecreee e e e e e 41
UNMEE NEEUS PrOCESS . vviiiiiiiieeiitiiee ettt e ssitee e s sttt e s sttt e e ssbeeeesaabeeeesanseeeesassaeeesansaeeesansseeesansseeesanssaeessnssenen 43
Chapter 5: Public and Stakeholder OUtreach ... 47
T a oY [V 4 Te] o NN PO 47
Stakeholder and Transportation Provider OULIeach ..........coccvieiiiciiii i 48
Chapter 6: Transportation Gaps, Needs, and Duplicative SErvices ........nnneenenessenenens 51
T} A oo [ 8T o1 4 e o R SRS SP 51
TranSPOrtation GAPS IN SEIVICE ...uuiiiiiiiiiieieieieieeeeeeeteteeereeeeeeeeeee e retereterarereeeteterererererererererererererssssssssssessrnrnres 51
N =Y=Yo E AN =1 YA SRS 52
DUPIICALIVE SEIVICES .ceiiiiiiieee ettt et e e e e e e e te e e e e e e e e e b tateeeeaeeessnstaaaeeaeesesannsrsaasaseseeaassstanneaaaens 53
(@l ToY o ITa T 1uToT o J @ o =1 11T o =L PR UURRN 53
Chapter 7: Recommended Goals and Strate@ies ......cooereeneereenerneenessesseesesssssesssssessessssssssssssssssssens 55
T a oY [V 4T ] o KN PP UORTPPRPR 55
BV [T 1A Te] o WO 41 4T 4 T O PP 55
Coordination Goals for SiSKiYOU COUNTY ....cciiiiiiiiiciiee et e e e e erte e e e e are e e e s aaee e e eneees 56
Recommended Coordination StrateGies........ccuiiiiieiii e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e anaraaeeeaeeas 57

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page i



Chapter 8: Transportation FUNding SOUICES.........oererrenreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesessessssssesssssssssssssssssens 65

T a oY [V 4T ] o KN PP UORTPPRPR 65
Appendix A: Demographic Maps

Appendix B: STAGE Route and Schedule

Appendix C: Online Community Survey Results

Appendix D: Online Community Survey Instrument

Appendix E: Transportation Service Agency Survey Results

Appendix F: Transportation Service Agency Survey Instrument

TABLES PAGE
Table 1: Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Members.........ccccccveeeiiviieeeicciee et 2
Table 2: Siskiyou Social Services Transportation Advisory Council Members..........cccooveeiciieeiiciiee e, 3
Table 3: Historic and Current Siskiyou County POPUIGLioN ........c.eeiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 8
Table 4: Siskiyou County Population Projections by Age CategOry ......ceevciieeiiiiieeeciiieee et e e eeiree e 9
Table 5: Siskiyou County Region Demographic Characteristics by Census Tract - Total Persons............... 10
Table 6: Siskiyou County Region Demographic Characteristics by Census Tract - Total Households......... 12
Table 7: Major Transit Activity Centers in the Siskiyou RegION .........eeevviiiieiciiiiiiiie e, 13
Table 8: Siskiyou County Current and Annual EMployment ............uviiiiiiiie it 16
Table 9: Major Employers in the Siskiyou County REZION .....ccceieiiiiiiiiii et 17
Table 10: Siskiyou County Local and Regional Commute Patterns.......ccccceeeccviieeeeeeieccciiieeee e 18
Table 11: Summary of STAGE Services and FrEQUENCY .....cccuuiiieeciiieeeciieeeeecteeeeecite e e e etee e e eeareeeeeareeeeennnaeeas 22
Table 12: STAGE Fare SChEAUIE. ......cco ittt abee e s s b ee e s sabee e s s sanaeees 25
Table 13: STAGE Fixed Route Services Ridership ........ccueeeecuiieieciiiieeciee ettt e e 25
Table 14: Siskiyou County - Transit SErviCe ProVIAErS ......c..veeieciieiiiiiiieeecieee e scree e eerre e e ssare e e esrree e sssaeeeens 27
Table 15: Routes by Corridor with CoOmMMUNITIES......c.vviiiiciiie e e e e saee e 29
Table 16: Community Transportation OPtioNS ........ccuiieiiciiiiieiiiee e e e e e e e e saaaeeeas 30
Table 17-1, 17-2, 17-3: Siskiyou County - Transportation Providers ........ccccceeveeeeiiiiieeeecieeeeccieee e 31-33
Table 18: 2015 Siskiyou Coordinated Plan Reasonable to Meet Unmet Needs.......c.cccceecvveeeivcieeeincineeennns 40
Table 19: 2015 Coordinated Plan Strategies.....ccuiiiiciiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e s rre e e ssaaaaeeeas 40
Table 20: Siskiyou County Unmet Needs FINAINGS........ciivciiiiiiiiiiiccciiie ettt e s e e srre e s saaee e 45
Table 21: Siskiyou County Identified SErvice Gaps .......cueeciiiieiiiiiie et e e e aaeeeeas 52
FIGURES PAGE

Figure 1:
Figure 2:
Figure 3:

2025

YL L=I T Lo I o Tor- 1 d o o TSP 6
SiSKIYOU TranSit ROULES ..cevieiii ittt ettt e e e et re e e e e e e e e anteae e e e e e e e s nnssaaeeeeaseennnns 23
STAGE Historical Ridership.........uuuiiiiieee ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e e anraae e e e e e e eennes 26

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page ii



Chapter 1
INTRODUCTION

INTRODUCTION

The goal of the Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation Plan for Siskiyou County
(Coordinated Plan) is to improve mobility in Siskiyou County by enhancing coordination among public,
non-profit, and for-profit transportation providers. Benefits of improved coordination include minimized
service redundancy, more efficient use of limited transit funding, and the facilitation of cost-effective
and interagency solutions to address unmet transit needs. The goals and strategies presented in this
Coordinated Plan are designed with a specific focus on improving transportation access for senior
adults, persons living with disabilities, and low-income residents in Siskiyou County.! The Coordinated
Plan describes both capital and non-capital projects that will improve transportation services for these
target demographic groups and are therefore eligible to receive funding through the Federal Transit
Administration’s (FTA) Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities program (Section
5310).

COORDINATED PLAN CONTEXT AND APPROACH

The Coordinated Plan begins with a review of existing conditions in Siskiyou County, including regional
demographics and current transportation providers. The demographics analysis looks at both the
countywide population as well as the underrepresented populations that are the focus of the Section
5310 program. The description of current transportation providers will review the existing services in
Siskiyou County and identify interregional connections and opportunities between neighboring counties,
including Modoc County to the east, Del Norte and Humboldt counties to the west, and Shasta County
to the south.

In the Draft Coordinated Plan, goals and strategies, stakeholder input, transportation service needs, and
gaps, as well as the identification of duplicative services, will be provided. Finally, potential coordination
strategies to enhance regional mobility will be analyzed, and recommended goals and strategies will be
presented, ultimately culminating in the Final Coordinated Plan.

SISKIYOU COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

The Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission (SCLTC) is the Regional Transportation Planning
Agency (RTPA) in Siskiyou County. It was established in 1972 under the Transportation Development Act
(TDA). With these designations, SCLTC is responsible for leading short-term and long-term
transportation planning efforts in Siskiyou County, securing state and federal transportation grants,
overseeing public transit funding, supporting local agencies with funding and coordination, and
approving short-range transportation capital improvement programs.

1 Federal Transit Administration (FTA). (2022). Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plans.
USDOT. https.//www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grants/coordinated-public-transit-human-services-transportation-
plans

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 1



To determine what transportation investments should be made with available funding, SCLTC
continually assesses transportation needs across the region. Planning efforts led by SCLTC include the
Coordinated Plan, Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), and the Short-Range Transit Plan (SRTP), among
others.

SISKIYOU TRANSPORTATION AGENCY JOINT POWERS AGENCY

The Siskiyou Transportation Agency Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) was executed on December 3, 2024,
during a Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors meeting, forming the Siskiyou Transportation Agency
(STA). The STA was formed in late 2024 through a collaboration between the SCLTC, the nine
incorporated cities within Siskiyou County, and the Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors. Throughout
2025, there will be an ongoing effort to finalize details, bylaws, and the agency’s purchasing authority.

Current Council Members and Alternates

As of April 2025, SCLTC is comprised of eight members: four (4) County Board Supervisors and four (4)
representatives from the League of Local Agencies, which represent the nine incorporated communities
in Siskiyou County. The Commission generally meets on the second Tuesday of each month at 10:30 AM
at the Siskiyou County Transit Center. Table 1 shows the current members and the alternate members of
SCLTC.

Table 1: Siskiyou County Local Transportation

Commission Members

Representatives from Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors

County Supervisor — District 1 Jess Harris (Alternate)
County Supervisor — District 2 Ed Valenzuela

County Supervisor — District 3 Michael Kobseff, Chair
County Supervisor — District 4 Nancy Ogren
Representatives of the League of Local Agencies

Councilmember, City of Dunsmuir Matthew Bryan
Councilmember, City of Etna Cliff Munson
Councilmember, City of Montague Pat Vela, Vice Chair
Councilmember, Town of Fort Jones Mercedes Garcia (Alternate)

Source: https://siskiyoucoltc.org/our-commissioners/

Social Services Transportation Advisorv Council

The Siskiyou County Social Services Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) was established per the
requirements of California Senate Bill 498 and is responsible for advising SCLTC on transit issues
pertinent to underserved populations. Focus populations for the SSTAC include the elderly, disabled,
and low-income groups. The SSTAC’s primary responsibility is to identify transit needs in Siskiyou County
through the annual Unmet Transit Needs Assessment process and recommend to the SCLTC Board of
Directors which needs are unmet and reasonable to meet. The SSTAC consists of ten voting members, as
shown in Table 2.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 2



Table 2: Siskiyou Social Services Transportation Advisory

Council Members

Transit User 60 years or Older Denise Patterson
Social Services Provider for Seniors (1) Teri Gabriel
Social Services Provider for Disabled Persons (1) Emily Tuholski
Social Services Provider for Persons of Limited Means Nico Purl
Member-At-Large Misty Rickwalt
Council Vacancies

Potential Transit User With A Disability Vacant

Social Services Provider for Seniors (2) Vacant

Social Services Provider for Disabled Persons (2) Vacant

Consolidated Transportation Service Agency Representative (1) |Vacant

Consolidated Transportation Service Agency Representative (2) [Vacant

Source: SCLTC, 2025 SSTAC Agenda

FEDERAL COORDINATION REQUIREMENTS

The FTA’s Section 5310 program improves mobility for senior adults and people with disabilities by
reducing barriers that prevent the use of existing transportation resources or by developing new
services designed specifically to address unmet transit needs impacting these groups. Section 5310 is a
formula funding award program; funding is awarded to states based on the number of senior and
disabled residents. In California, Caltrans then allocates funding through a competitive award process to
nonprofit organizations, local governments, and other transportation providers. Projects eligible for
Section 5310 funding include both capital and operating assistance.

To receive Section 5310 funding, projects must be “included in a locally developed, coordinated public
transit-human services transportation plan,” also referred to as a Coordinated Plan.? The FTA defines a
Coordinated Plan as a study “that identifies the transportation needs of individuals with disabilities,
older adults, and people with low incomes, provides strategies for meeting those local needs, and
prioritizes transportation services for funding and implementation.” The Coordinated Plan must be
“developed and approved through a process that includes participation” by seniors, individuals with
disabilities, low-income individuals, human services agencies, and transportation providers. FTA circular
9070.1G describes the required components of a Coordinated Plan, which include:

e An assessment of available services that identifies current transportation providers (public,
private, and non-profit).

2 Federal Transit Administration (FTA). (2022). Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plans.
https.//www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grants/coordinated-public-transit-human-services-transportation-plans

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 3



e An assessment of transportation needs and gaps in service for individuals with disabilities, older
adults, and people with low incomes. This assessment can be based on the experiences and
perceptions of the planning partners or on more sophisticated data collection efforts.

e Strategies, activities, and/or projects to address the identified gaps between current services
and needs, as well as opportunities to achieve efficiencies in service delivery.

e Priorities for implementation based on resources (from multiple transportation programs), time,
and the feasibility of implementing the specific strategies and/or activities identified.
This Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation Plan for Siskiyou County complies with
FTA requirements. Federal statutes require a 50 percent local match for recipients to use Section 5310
funds for operations. The local match requirement for capital expenses (including acquisition of public
transit services) is 20 percent.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 4



Chapter 2
SISKIYOU COUNTY EXISTING CONDITIONS

INTRODUCTION

Mobility plays a crucial role in supporting a high quality of life, enabling residents to access the
resources and opportunities they need on a daily basis. Key destinations such as workplaces, healthcare
providers, schools, retail centers, and other public or commercial facilities are essential to daily life, and
the ability to travel to and from these locations efficiently is fundamental to individual and community
well-being. This chapter provides an overview of the geographic layout, population characteristics, and
socioeconomic conditions of Siskiyou County. These factors collectively shape how people move
throughout the region and help determine the overall demand for public transit services.

GEOGRAPHY

Siskiyou County is a predominantly rural, mountainous region characterized by small towns and cities
separated by significant travel distances. It shares its northern border with Oregon and is bordered to
the south by Shasta, Trinity, and Tehama Counties. Centrally located within the county, Mount Shasta
stands as California’s fifth-highest peak and the second tallest in the Cascade Mountain Range. Siskiyou
County has nine incorporated communities and several Native American tribes, including the Klamath,
Karuk, and the Shasta Indian Nation. Many residents live in unincorporated parts of the county.

Interstate 5 (I-5) runs north-south through the county, connecting key communities such as Dunsmuir,
Mount Shasta, Weed, Yreka, and Hornbrook. State Route (SR) 97 serves the northeastern part of the
county, including Macdoel, and continues into Oregon. SR 96 follows the Klamath River through the
western region, providing access to the smaller, Klamath River Corridor communities of Happy Camp,
Somes Bar, and Seiad Valley. In the south, SR 89 extends from Mount Shasta southeast to McCloud and
into Shasta County, while SR 3 links the I-5 corridor with the Scott Valley area and continues into Trinity
County. The study area is illustrated in Figure 1.

DEMOGRAPHICS

According to the 2023 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates, the Siskiyou County population is
43,834. The County is quite rural, with an average population density of only seven people per square
mile (compared to California’s average of 253.7) as of the 2020 US Census3. The county has nine
incorporated communities, including the Cities of Dorris, Dunsmuir, Etna, Fort Jones, Montague, Mount
Shasta, Tulelake, Weed, and Yreka. There are 21 census-designated places (CDPs), many of which can be
seen in Figure 1. This section discusses Siskiyou County population characteristics that influence the
need for transportation services.

3 Source: US Census Bureau Quick Facts
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/siskiyoucountycalifornia,CA/PST045223

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 5



2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 6



Population Characteristics

Table 3 shows historical population data, sourced from the US Census Bureau, for Siskiyou County. Data
for the State of California is also included as a point of reference. Between 2010 and 2023, Siskiyou
County experienced a slight decline in population. The county's total population decreased from 44,690
in 2010 to 43,834 in 2023, with annual growth rates fluctuating modestly: slightly negative through 2020
and turning slightly positive (0.2 percent) by 2023. In comparison, the State of California saw consistent
population growth from 2010 to 2020, increasing from approximately 36.6 million to 39.3 million
residents. However, by 2023, the state saw a slight decline in population (-0.1 percent), marking a subtle
shift in statewide demographic patterns.

Population changes across Siskiyou County’s census tracts between 2020 and 2023 varied significantly,
influenced in part by redrawn tract boundaries and local conditions. Notable changes to census tracts
include:

e The areas covered by Hornbrook and Happy Camp in the 2010 Census (Tracts 4 and 5) were
consolidated into a single tract—Census Tract 13—in the 2020 Census.

e What was formerly Census Tract 9 in 2010, which included Weed, Edgewood, and Carrick, was
divided in 2020 into Tract 9.01 (Weed and Edgewood) and Tract 9.02 (Lake Shastina and
Carrick).

e The Mount Shasta area, originally grouped as Census Tract 10 in 2010, was split into three new
tracts in 2020: Tract 10.01 (west of Mount Shasta), Tract 10.02 (West Mount Shasta), and Tract
10.03 (East Mount Shasta). Some areas experienced notable population growth. For example,
Tract 10.01 (West of Mount Shasta) recorded a substantial annual increase of 7.9 percent
between 2020 and 2023. Similarly, Tract 10.02 (West Mount Shasta) and Tract 10.03 (East
Mount Shasta) grew by 5.9 percent and 2.2 percent annually, respectively, over the same
period. Tract 3 (Montague) also experienced strong gains, with an annual growth rate of 3.7
percent from 2020 to 2023. However, this follows a previous decline of 1.4 percent per year
from 2010 to 2020. These patterns may indicate renewed residential interest, housing
development, or economic activity in the Mount Shasta region and surrounding eastern Siskiyou
County communities.

e Conversely, other tracts experienced notable population declines. Tract 8 (Etna and Greenview)
had the sharpest decrease, with an annual loss of 3.3 percent from 2020 to 2023. Tract 13
(Happy Camp and Hornbrook) declined by 3.1 percent annually, and Tract 11 (Dunsmuir) saw a
similar downward trend with a 2.9 percent annual decrease. These trends may reflect ongoing
economic challenges, aging populations, or limited infrastructure in more remote or isolated
parts of the county. Despite these fluctuations, more urban tracts remained relatively stable.
Tract 7.01 (Grenada and Gazelle) saw moderate growth at 1.3 percent annually from 2020 to
2023, while Tract 6 (Fort Jones and Northeast Greenview) saw slight growth of 0.3 percent per
year from 2020 to 2023. In contrast, Tract 7.02 (West Yreka) and Tract 7.03 (East Yreka) saw only
minor declines.

2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 7



Table 3: Historic and Current Siskiyou County Population

2010 2015 2020 2023
2010 Census % Annual % Annual 2020 Census % Annual % Annual
Tract 2010 Area Description Population  Growth Population Growth Tract 2020 Area Description Population  Growth Population Growth
1 Tulelake* 1,383 -- 1,349 -0.5% 1 Tulelake* 1,097 -4.1% 1,101 0.1%
2 Mount Hebron, Macdoel, Dorris* 1,826 - 1,890 0.7% 2 Mount Hebron, Macdoel, Dorris* 1,674 -2.4% 1,768 1.8%
3 Montague* 3,946 - 4,362 2.0% 3 Montague* 3,891 -2.3% 4,352 3.7%
4 Hornbrook 824 - 657 -4.5%
5 Happy Camp 2,030 - 1,972 -0.6%
6 Fort Jones*, Northeast Greenview 1,561 - 1,922 4.2% 6 Fort Jones*, Northeast Greenview 1,572 -4.0% 1,584 0.3%
7.01 Grenada, Gazelle, Western Yreka* 3,841 - 3,694 -0.8% 7.01 Granada, Gazelle 3,715 0.1% 3,860 1.3%
7.02 East Yreka* 4,445 -- 4,031 -2.0% 7.02 West Yreka* 3,822 -1.1% 3,789 -0.3%
7.03 North Western Yreka* 3,420 - 3,637 1.2% 7.03 East Yreka* 3,700 0.3% 3,683 -0.2%
8 Greenview, Etna* 3,373 - 3,265 -0.7% 8 Etna*, Greenview 3,703 2.5% 3,358 -3.3%
9 Weed*, Edgewood, Carrick* 7,060 -- 6,935 -0.4% Census Tracts 9.01 and 9.02 Combined* 8,024 2.9% 7,607 -1.8%
9.01 Weed*, Edgewood® 4,346 - 4,048 -2.4%
9.02 Lake Shastina, Carrick 3,678 - 3,559 -1.1%
10 Mount Shasta*? 7,024 -- 6,746 -0.8% Census Tracts 10.01, 10.02, and 10.03 Combined? 6,394 -1.1% 7,208 4.0%
10.01 To the West of Mt Shasta*” 1,070 -- 1,358 7.9%
10.02 West Mount Shasta* 1,277 - 1,524 5.9%
10.03 East Mount Shasta* 4,047 - 4,326 2.2%
11 Dunsmuir* 2,398 - 1,987 -3.8% 11 Dunsmuir* 2,207 2.1% 2,022 -2.9%
12 McCloud, Tennant 1,559 - 1,448 -1.5% 12 Tennant, McCloud 1,127 -5.0% 1,145 0.5%
Census Tracts 4 and 5 Combined? 2,854 2,629 -1.6% 13 Happy Camp, Hornbrook® 2,590 -0.3% 2,357 -3.1%
Siskiyou County 44,690 -- 43,895 -0.4% 43,516 -0.2% 43,834 0.2%
State of California 36,637,290 -- 38,421,464 1.0% 39,346,023 0.5% 39,242,785 -0.1%
Note 1: Census Tract 9 in 2010 is broken out into Census Tract 9.01 and Census Tract 9.02 in 2020. The 2015 Annual Change is calculated by combining the 2020 Census Tracts.
Note 2: Census Tract 10 in 2010 is broken out into Census Tract 10.01, Census Tract 10.02, and Census Tract 10.03 in 2020. The 2015 Annual Change is calculated by combining the 2020 Census Tracts.
Note 3: Census Tract 4 and Census Tract 5 in 2010 were combined into Census Tract 13 in 2020. The Annual Change is calculated by combining the 2010 Census Tracts.
Note: * Indicates an incorporated city or town.
Source: US Census and California Department of Finance.

2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 8



Population projections by age group for Siskiyou County, sourced from the California Department of
Finance (DOF), are shown in Table 4. As indicated, the total Siskiyou County population is projected to
shrink by 6 percent from 2020 to 2030. The fastest-growing age group during this period will be senior
adults: the population of mature retirees (those between 75 and 84 years old) is forecasted to grow by
76 percent, and the population of older seniors (those ages 85 and older) is projected to grow by 46
percent from 2020 to 2030. The older senior population is expected to continue growing in the following
decade as well, more than doubling between 2020 and 2040 (182 percent growth). The forecasted
expansion of Siskiyou County’s senior adult population is significant, as many older adults depend on
accessible transportation options. This demographic shift is likely to drive increased demand for senior-
focused mobility services, including non-emergency medical transport and paratransit.

Table 4: Siskiyou County Population Projections by Age Category

School Age
to Young Young Mature Older
Total Preschool Adult College Age Working Age Retirees Retirees Seniors
(All Ages) (0-4 years) (5-19 years) (20-24 years) (25-64 years) (65-74 years) (75-84 years) (85 or older)
2010 44,690 2,279 8,178 2,145 23,552 4,692 2,860 983
2020 43,516 2,232 7,565 1,923 20,813 6,840 3,075 1,068
2030 41,063 1,582 6,445 3,060 17,342 5,674 5,400 1,560
2040 38,990 2,009 4,987 2,373 18,513 3,553 4,539 3,016
2010 to 2020 Change
Number -1,174 -47 -613 -222 -2,739 2,148 215 85
Percent -3% -2% -7% -10% -12% 46% 8% 9%
2020 to 2030 Change
Number -2,453 -650 -1,120 1,137 -3,471 -1,166 2,325 492
Percent -6% -29% -15% 59% -17% -17% 76% 46%
2030 to 2040 Change
Number -2,073 427 -1,458 -687 1,171 -2,121 -861 1,456
Percent -5% 27% -23% -22% 7% -37% -16% 93%
Sources: California Department of Finance. Report P-2B: Population Projections by Individual Year of Age, 2020-2070, California Counties and Total
Population Only By Age, American Community Survey 2010 and 2020 5-Year Estimates

Transit Dependency

This Coordinated Plan analyzes the following potentially transit-dependent groups: senior adults (ages
65 or older), people with a disability, people living below the poverty level, unemployed individuals,
people who live in households with no available vehicle, and limited English-speaking households. This
study uses U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey (ACS) definitions to define these population
groups.

Tables 5 and 6 detail the number of transit-dependent persons living in Siskiyou County by census tract
using data from the ACS 2023 5-Year Estimates. While there is some overlap between categories, for
example, a person might be both a senior and live in a zero-vehicle household, the ACS data still reveals
important geographic trends that help highlight where those with the potentially greatest need for
mobility services reside in Siskiyou County. Additional demographic maps that accompany Tables 5 and
6 are included in Appendix A.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 9



Table 5: Siskiyou County Region Demographic Characteristics by Census Tract - Total Persons

Youth American Indian or Persons with a Persons Below

Census Communities Included Inhabited Sq. Total (Under 18) Senior Adults (65+) Veterans Alaskan Native Disability Poverty Level
Tract in Census Tract Mi. Miles Persons
1 Tulelake* 336 1,101 268 3% 272 2% 61 2% 13 0% 179 2% 288 4%
2 Mount Hebron, Macdoel, Dorris* 507 1,768 392 4% 300 3% 74 2% 112 3% 246 3% 348 5%
3 Montague* 555 4,352 988 11% 892 7% 406 11% 406 12% 854 11% 730 10%
6 Fort Jones*, Northeast Greenview 214 1,584 335 4% 431 4% 135 4% 140 4% 246 3% 263 4%
7.01 Grenada, Gazelle 279 3,860 628 7% 1,091 9% 429 12% 228 7% 630 8% 410 6%
7.02 West Yreka* 14 3,789 921 10% 951 8% 214 6% 639 19% 823 11% 917 13%
7.03 East Yreka* 2 3,683 1,035 12% 881 7% 349 10% 172 5% 560 7% 827 11%
8 Etna*, Greenview 1,250 3,358 671 8% 990 8% 431 12% 437 13% 559 7% 462 6%
9.01 Weed*, Edgewood 120 4,048 739 8% 844 7% 146 4% 123 4% 860 11% 757 11%
9.02 Lake Shastina, Carrick 119 3,559 673 8% 997 8% 419 12% 104 3% 553 7% 366 5%
10.01 To the West of Mt Shasta* 53 1,358 347 4% 360 3% 78 2% 19 1% 170 2% 46 1%
10.02 West Mount Shasta* 6 1,524 150 2% 585 5% 110 3% 27 1% 161 2% 54 1%
10.03 East Mount Shasta* 100 4,326 786 9% 1,466 12% 303 8% 117 4% 573 8% 718 10%
11 Dunsmuir* 91 2,022 362 4% 598 5% 126 3% 209 6% 468 6% 322 4%
12 Tennant, McCloud 1,244 1,145 148 2% 545 5% 124 3% 75 2% 330 4% 216 3%
13 Happy Camp, Hornbrook 1,453 2,357 384 4% 700 6% 219 6% 493 15% 425 6% 472 7%

Siskiyou County Total 6,342 43,834 8,827 20% 11,903 27% 3,624 8% 3,314 8% 7,637 17% 7,196 16%

State of California 39,242,785 8,729,012 22% 5,994,486 15% 1,355,918 3% 1,112,439 3% 4,364,431 11% 4,610,600 12%
Note: * indicates an incorporated community
Source: American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 10



Key takeaways from Table 5 include:

Youth (Under 18) — Approximately 20 percent of Siskiyou County residents are under the age of
18, slightly lower than California’s statewide youth population of 22 percent. Communities with
the highest percentages of youth include Census Tract 7.03-East Yreka (12 percent), Census
Tract 3-Montague (11 percent), and Census Tract 7.02-West Yreka (10 percent).

Senior Adults (65+) — Over one-quarter (27 percent) of Siskiyou County residents are senior
adults over the age of 65. This is nearly double the statewide average of 15 percent, reflecting a
significantly aging population in the region. The highest concentrations of older adults are
located in Census Tract 10.03-East Mount Shasta (12 percent), Census Tract 7.01-
Grenada/Gazelle (9.2 percent), and Census Tract 8-Etna/Greenview (8.3 percent).

Veterans — Veterans make up 8 percent of the county's population, compared to 3 percent
statewide. Notable areas with the highest percentages of veterans include Census Tract 8-
Etna/Greenview (12 percent), Census Tract 7.01-Grenada/Gazelle (12 percent), Census Tract
9.02-Lake Shastina, Carrick (12 percent), and Census Tract 3-Montague (11 percent).

American Indian or Alaskan Native Residents — About 8 percent of Siskiyou County’s population
identifies as American Indian or Alaskan Native—substantially higher than the California average
of 3 percent. The largest shares are found in Census Tract 7.02-West Yreka (19 percent), Census
Tract 13-Happy Camp/Hornbrook (15 percent), and Census Tract 8-Etna/Greenview (13
percent).

Persons with Disabilities — Approximately 17 percent of Siskiyou County residents have a
disability, higher than California’s statewide average of 11 percent. Notably high concentrations
of disabled residents live in Census Tract 9.01-Weed/Edgewood (11 percent), Census Tract 3-
Montague (11 percent), and Census Tract 7.02-West Yreka (11 percent).

Persons Living Below the Poverty Level — About 16 percent of Siskiyou County residents live
below the federal poverty level, which is slightly higher than the statewide average of 12
percent. Census tracts with the highest poverty rates include Census Tract 7.02-West Yreka (13
percent), Census Tract 7.03-East Yreka (11 percent), and Census Tract 9.01-Weed/Edgewood (11
percent).

Zero-Vehicle Households — While just 2 percent of Siskiyou County households report having no
vehicle, below the state average of 5 percent, this still represents over 380 households with
potential access barriers to essential services and opportunities. The highest concentrations are
Census Tract 9.01-Weed/Edgewood (24 percent), Census Tract 10.03-East Mount Shasta (18
percent), and Census Tract 7.02-West Yreka (15 percent).

Limited English-Speaking Households — Only about 1 percent of Siskiyou County households are
considered limited English-speaking, significantly lower than California’s statewide rate of 8
percent. However, certain areas have notably higher rates, including Census Tract 2-Mount
Hebron/Macdoel/Dorris (25 percent), Census Tract 1-Tulelake (22 percent), and Census Tract
9.01-Weed/Edgewood (21 percent).

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 11



These demographic insights can help guide future investments in transit infrastructure, demand-
response services, and accessible mobility options for those who are most likely to rely on public or
specialized transportation.

Table 6: Siskiyou County Region Demographic Characteristics by Census Tract

- Total Households
Zero-Vehicle Limited English

Census Communities Included Inhabited  Total Households Speaking Households
Tract in Census Tract Sq. Miles Households # % # %
1 Tulelake* 336 374 30 8% 45 22%
2 Mount Hebron, Macdoel, Dorris* 507 668 0 0% 51 25%
3 Montague* 555 1,701 5 1% 16 8%
6 g‘::;:’l‘:\i’* Northeast 214 738 0 0% 0 0%
7.01 Grenada, Gazelle 279 1,653 37 10% 0 0%
7.02 West Yreka* 14 1,712 60 15% 0 0%
7.03 East Yreka* 2 1,486 0 0% 0 0%
8 Etna*, Greenview 1,250 1,384 1 0% 2 1%
9.01 Weed*, Edgewood 120 1,662 95 24% 43 21%
9.02 Lake Shastina, Carrick 119 1,496 16 4% 8 4%
10.01 To the West of Mt Shasta* 53 562 0 0% 7 3%
10.02 West Mount Shasta* 6 777 6 2% 12 6%
10.03 East Mount Shasta* 100 2,137 69 18% 17 8%
11 Dunsmuir* 91 973 39 10% 0 0%
12 Tennant, McCloud 1,244 565 0 0% 0 0%
13 Happy Camp, Hornbrook 1,453 1,019 30 8% 4 2%

Total 6,342 18,907 388 2% 205 1%

State of California 13,434,847 614,932 5% 1,118,772 8%
Note: * indicates an incorporated community
Source: American Community Survey 2023 5-Year Estimates

ECONOMY

Demographic factors may influence who needs transportation services, but it is often the economic
features of a region that determine where people need to travel on said services. This section
summarizes important Siskiyou County activity centers that are highly visited by local residents.

Transit Activity Centers

Transit activity centers refer to locations that are commonly visited by transit riders. Activity centers
include commercial retail, public and private educational institutions, medical centers, government
facilities, cultural and tourist attractions, and consolidated residential areas (e.g., high-density housing
with a high percentage of transit-dependent residents). Table 7 depicts activity centers in the major
communities being considered in this Coordinated Plan. It should be noted that the list presented is not
inclusive of all Siskiyou activity centers. Many Siskiyou County residents will also travel to Humboldt
County, Shasta County, Sacramento, Redding, Medford, OR, or Klamath Falls, OR if they need an amenity
not available locally. Local services are discussed in detail below.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 12



Table 7: Major Transit Activity Centers in the Siskiyou Region

Census Human Services Affordable & Nutritional
Tracts Community & Tribal Agencies Government Senior Housing Assistance Education Medical
9.02 Carrick
Butte Valley Community Resource Center [County Sheriff, Dorris City Hall, Siskiyou Dollar General Butte Valley Elementary, Butte Valley|Butte Valley Health Center
2 Dorris* County Library -Butte Valley Branch Middle School, Butte Valley High
School, Cascade High School
Dunsmuir Community Resource Center Dunsmuir City Hall, Siskiyou County Rustic Trailer Park, Riverwood Mobile |Dunsmuir Community Resource |Dunsmuir Supermarket, Dollar [Dunsmuir Elementary,
11 Dunsmuir* Library Dunsmuir Branch Home Park, Shadow Mountain Mobile [Center General Dunsmuir High School
Home Park
9.01 Edgewood Butteville Elementary
Etna Police Department, Etna City Hall,  |Etna Creekside Mobile Estates Loaves & Fishes, Scott Valley Ray's Food Place Etna High School, Scott Valley Rural Health Clinic
*
8 Etna Siskiyou County Library Etna Branch Berean Church Lunch Program Scott River High School
" Scott Valley FOCUS Family Resource Center|Fort Jones City Hall, Siskiyou County Fort Jones Food Pantry Ray's Food Place Fort Jones Union Elementary, QVIR Anav Tribal Health Clinic
6  |Fortlones Library Fort Jones Branch Scott Valley Jr High School
7.01 Gazelle Gazelle Mobile Home Park Gazelle Elementary
8 Greenview Mean Gene's Market
7.01 Grenada Grenada Elementary
Happy Camp Family Resource Center Siskiyou County Library Happy Camp Klammath River RV Park Karuk Tribal Nutrition Center Ray's Food Place Happy Camp Elementary, Karuk Community Health and
3 Happy Camp Branch Happy Camp High School Dental Clinic
13 Hornbrook Hornbrook Community Services District  [Hornbrook Trailer Park Menotti's Market Hornbrook Elementary
9.02 Lake Shastina Lake Shastina Police Department Shastina Mobile Estates Dollar General Mercy Lake Shastina Community
Clinic
2 Macdoel
McCloud Community Resource Center, Siskiyou County Library McCloud Branch, First Baptist Church McCloud Market McCloud Elementary, McCloud Health Clinic
12 McCloud American Legion Cheula Post 92 Mc Cloud Community Services District McCloud High School
The HUB Communities Family Resource Montague City Hall, Montague-Yreka Horizon Hills Mobile Home Park, Maker's Market, Big Springs Elementary, Bogus
N Center Airport, Siskiyou County Library Cascade Sun Mobile Home Estate Cortright Market Elementary, Delphic Elementary,
3 Montague Montague Branch and Deli Little Shasta Elementary, Montague
Elementary
Mt. Hebron General Store
2 Mount Hebron
Mt. Shasta Community Resource Center, Mt. Shasta DMV, Siskiyou County Mental |Eskaton Washington Manorin Mt. Shasta Community Café Mt. Shasta Super Market, Food |Mt. Shasta Elementary, Sisson, Mercy Mt. Shasta Community
Mt Shasta Recreation Center Health Services, Siskiyou County Special [Mt Shasta, Rockfellow House, Shasta Mart, Berryvale Grocery, Ray's |School, Golden Eagle Charter, Mount |Clinic, Mercy Hospice
10.02, Mount Shasta* Education Services, Mount Shasta City Horizon Mobile Home & RV Park Food Place, Rite Aid Shasta High School
10.03 Hall, Siskiyou County Library Mount
Shasta Branch
12 Tennant
Tulelake/Newell Family Resource Center, [Tulelake DMV, Tulelake City Hall, Tulelake Senior Center Jock's Supermarket Tulelake Health Clinic
*
1 Tulelake Tulelake Senior Center Siskiyou County Library Tulelake Branch
Family and Community Resource Center of |Weed City Hall, Siskiyou County Library  |[Mountain View Manor, Siskiyou Food Assistance Grocery Outlet, Ray's Market, Weed Elementary, Weed High Weed Health Center
9.01 |Weed* Weed, STEP Office (Siskiyou Trainingand |Weed Branch Cal-Ore Mobile Estates, Edgewood Coupas Grocery School, College of the Siskiyous
Employment Program) Estates
Siskiyou County Health and Human Siskiyou County Administration, Siskiyou|Yreka Guest Home, Deer Creek Madrone Senior Services, St. Raley's, Walmart, Grocery Golden Eagle Charter, Fairchild Medical Clinic, Yreka
Services, Siskiyou County Veterans Service |County Library Yreka Branch, Yreka DMV, |Apartments, Emerald Point Senior Joseph's Catholic Church, Yreka |Outlet, Dollar General Yreka High School, Immediate Care, Fairchild Medical
Yreka* Office, Karuk Tribal Housing, Yreka Yreka City Hall Apartments, Juniper Terrace United Methodist Church, Yreka Discovery High School, Center, Mercy Medical Center,
7.02,7.03 (County Seat) Community Resource Center, Siskiyou Apartments, Sierra Vista Retirement |Food Bank, Siskiyou Community College of the Siskiyous Madrone Hospice, Inc., Siskiyou
Family YMCA, PSA2 Area Agency on Aging, Center, Nikels Mobile Park, Oak Ridge |Food Bank Home Health, Karuk Tribal Yreka
Madrone Senior, Services Estates Medical and Dental Offices
Out-of-County Locations: Modoc County, Lassen County, Humboldt County, Shasta County, Sacramento, Redding, Medford, OR, Klamath Falls, OR
Source: LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page 13




Human Services & Tribal Agencies

Health and human services, along with tribal agencies, are distributed across several communities in
Siskiyou County, with the highest concentration located in Yreka, the county seat. Yreka hosts a broad
range of services, including Siskiyou County Health and Human Services, Veterans Service Office, Karuk
Tribal Housing, the Yreka Community Resource Center, the PSA2 Area Agency on Aging, and other senior
and family-focused programs.

Smaller community resource centers are found in many other towns, including Dunsmuir, Fort Jones,
Happy Camp, McCloud, Montague, Mount Shasta, Tulelake, Weed, and Dorris. These centers, such as
the HUB Communities Family Resource Center in Montague and the Scott Valley FOCUS Family Resource
Center in Fort Jones, offer localized access to essential services. Mount Shasta includes a recreation
center supporting community wellness.

Government / Public Services

Yreka serves as the primary government hub in Siskiyou County, housing key services including Siskiyou
County Administration, Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV), City Hall, and the main branch of the
Siskiyou County Library. Other major communities such as Mount Shasta, Weed, Tulelake, Montague,
Fort Jones, Dunsmuir, and Etna also provide access to public services through city halls, police
departments, and local library branches.

Affordable and Senior Housing

Affordable and senior housing options are distributed across Siskiyou County. Most are located in Yreka,
including both senior apartments (like Sierra Vista Retirement Center and Emerald Point) and mobile
home communities. Mount Shasta features a mix of independent senior housing and mobile parks,
including Eskaton Washington Manor and Shasta Horizon Mobile Home & RV Park. There are several
housing communities in Weed, such as Mountain View Manor and Edgewood Estates. Additional
affordable and low-income housing is available in smaller communities such as Dunsmuir, Etna,
Montague, and Hornbrook.

Nutritional Assistance Programs

Although food and meal assistance programs are available to low-income individuals, senior adults, and
vulnerable households, access varies significantly based on location. In many communities, food pantries
and meal programs help address food insecurity. Programs range from prepared meals offered to
seniors to emergency food banks organized by local churches and other organizations. Expanding
outreach, transportation options, and food distribution in these underserved areas may help improve
access to basic nutritional support across the county.

Yreka, the county seat, has the most robust array of services, including multiple food banks such as the
Yreka Food Bank and the Siskiyou Community Food Bank, as well as senior nutrition programs operated
by Madrone Senior Services and local churches. Weed residents have access to Siskiyou Food Assistance,
while Fort Jones supports families through the Fort Jones Food Pantry. Etna’s Loaves & Fishes and Scott
Valley Berean Church Lunch Program provide prepared meals, and Happy Camp is served by the Karuk
Tribal Nutrition Center. The Tulelake Senior Center provides meal services, while in Mount Shasta, the

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 14



Mount Shasta Community Café offers accessible meals for residents of all ages. Several smaller
communities, such as McCloud, Montague, and Dorris, are served by their local family or community
resource centers, which often distribute food or connect individuals to regional assistance programs.

Shopping

Retail and grocery access varies in Siskiyou County. Yreka, as the county seat, has many major retailers,
including Walmart, Grocery Outlet, and Raley’s. Mount Shasta and Weed offer a combination of
supermarkets, pharmacies, and local markets, such as Ray’s Food Place, Berryvale Grocery, and Grocery
Outlet. Smaller communities, including Dunsmuir, Fort Jones, Tulelake, and Happy Camp, have at least
one general store or market, while other rural communities such as Mount Hebron, Gazelle, and
Hornbrook maintain essential supply points like general stores and mini-marts. Dollar General stores are
also found in several towns, helping bridge basic retail gaps in more isolated areas.

Education

Siskiyou County offers comprehensive K-12 education through local elementary, middle, and high
schools. Specialized education options are available through institutions like Golden Eagle Charter
School in Mount Shasta and Yreka, and Scott River High School in Etna. Higher education is offered by
the College of the Siskiyous, which maintains campuses in both Weed and Yreka.

Many students attending school in Siskiyou County are far from their campus and must travel varying
distances to attend. Transportation may be an issue or even a barrier for these students.

Healthcare and Medical Access

Access to healthcare in Siskiyou County depends a lot on where people live. Bigger towns like Yreka,
Mount Shasta, and Weed have the most services, including hospitals, clinics, senior care, and tribal
health centers. Yreka has the county’s main hospital, Fairchild Medical Center, along with urgent care
and other support services. Mercy Medical Center in Mount Shasta also provides major medical services
for the southern portion of Siskiyou County.

Some smaller towns, like Etna, Fort Jones, Tulelake, and Happy Camp, have local clinics or tribal health
centers that provide basic care. But many areas—like Carrick, Tennant, Macdoel, and Mount Hebron—
don’t have any medical services nearby. This means people often have to travel far for even simple
doctor visits.

Smaller communities like Dorris, Etna, and Montague are served by rural health centers and clinics that
help fill gaps in access. Despite these efforts, many county residents still rely on travel to medical
centers outside Siskiyou County, particularly in neighboring Shasta County or to the Medford/Klamath
Falls areas of Oregon, for specialized care, urgent medical services, or expanded hospital resources.
Transportation access and long distances remain significant barriers to healthcare equity for rural and
underserved populations within the county.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 15



EMPLOYMENT

Employvyment and Unemployvment Statistics

Table 8 shows the current labor force, including the number employed and unemployed, as well as the
historical employment since 2019. Someone is considered unemployed if they are eligible for work, are
not currently employed, but are seeking work. Like many areas, Siskiyou County experienced a higher
unemployment rate during the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 (10.4 percent) and 2021 (8.5 percent).
Unemployment during 2024 ranged from a low of 5.8 percent in May to a high of 9.0 percent in
February.

Table 8: Siskiyou County Current and Annual Employment

Month (2024) Labor Force Employment Unemployment Unemployment Rate
January 16,050 14,660 1,390 8.7%
February 16,290 14,820 1,470 9.0%
March 16,370 15,020 1,350 8.2%
April 16,360 15,300 1,060 6.5%
May 16,320 15,390 940 5.7%
June 16,540 15,510 1,030 6.2%
July 16,120 15,010 1,120 6.9%
August 16,220 15,120 1,110 6.8%
September 16,500 15,550 950 5.8%
October 16,980 15,980 1,000 5.9%
November 15,880 14,820 1,060 6.7%
December 15,690 14,490 1,200 7.6%
Labor Force Employment Unemployment Unemployment Rate
2024 16,280 15,140 1,140 . 7.0% |
2023 16,070 15,010 1,060 B ss%]
2022 15,900 14,930 970 ! 6. 1%
2021 16,020 14,650 1,360 ! 8.5% ‘
2020 16,300 14,600 1,700 ! 10.4% |
2019 16,480 15,350 1,130 t 6.9% |

Source: California Employment Development Department, Unemployment Rates

Large employers often generate high levels of transportation demand, from both employees as well as
clients/customers. Major employers in Siskiyou County are listed in Table 9, based on data from the
California Employment Development Department. Although this represents the most current and up-to-
date data, some inaccuracies may be present, particularly regarding seasonal or part-time jobs and
employers listed being miscategorized. Most large employers (250-499 to 400-999 employees) are
within Yreka, with the largest employers being Siskiyou County (400-999 employees) and the Fairchild
Medical Center (250-499 employees).

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 16



Table 9: Major Employers in the Siskiyou County Region

# Of
Employer Name Location Industry Employees

Siskiyou County Yreka County Government 400-999
Fairchild Medical Center Yreka Hospitals 250-499
Rain Rock Casino Yreka Casinos 100-249
Fairchild Medical Clinic Yreka Clinics 100-249
Walmart Supercenter Yreka Department Stores 100-249
Klamath National Forest Yreka Federal Government 100-249
US Forest Service Mccloud Federal Government 100-249
Siskiyou Joint Community College District |Weed Education 100-249
US Forestry Department Happy Camp |Federal Government 100-249
Mercy Medical Center Mt Shasta  |Hospitals 100-249
College of the Siskiyous Weed Education 100-249
Plant Science Inc Macdoel Agriculture 100-249
Roseburg Forest Products Weed Plywood & Veneers 100-249
Mount Shasta Resort Mt Shasta  |Resorts 100-249
Siskiyou Lake LLC Mt Shasta  |Resorts 100-249
Pfeiffer Vacuum Valves & Engineering Yreka Wholesale Supplies 100-249
Hugh Shepard Enterprises LLC Montague |Manufacturers 100-249
Siskiyou Golden Fairgrounds Yreka Fairgrounds 50-99
Dignity Health Pine Street Mt Shasta Health Services 50-99
Timber Products Co Yreka Lumber-Wholesale 50-99
Electro-Guard Inc Mt Shasta Manufacturers 50-99
Source: Employment Development Department, https://labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov. Accessed April 2025

Travel Behavior and Patterns

Major employers can be significant transit trip generators due to the many employees who need to get
to and from work. Siskiyou County is remote and largely rural. As such, many of Siskiyou County’s
residents commute to work within Siskiyou County, and many Siskiyou County workers commute from
another area where they live. Table 10 shows where employees who work in Siskiyou County live and
where residents of Siskiyou County commute for work.

As shown in Table 10, 62 percent of employed Siskiyou County residents work within the county.
Siskiyou County residents commute to Yreka (24 percent of residents), Mount Shasta (9 percent of
residents), Weed (7 percent of residents), Happy Camp (2 percent of residents), Etna (1 percent of
residents), Dunsmuir (1 percent of residents), and McCloud (1 percent of residents). Outside of Siskiyou
County, residents commute to Redding (6 percent of residents), Medford, OR (2 percent of residents),
and Chico (1 percent of residents). Shasta County accounts for 8 percent of Siskiyou County residents
commuting out of the county for work.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 17



Table 10: Siskiyou County Local and Regional Commute Patterns

2022

Where Siskiyou County Residents Work and Commute to

Counties # of Jobs % of Total Cities/Towns # of Jobs % of Total
Siskiyou County, CA 9,737 62% Yreka 3,746 24%
Shasta County, CA 1,228 8% Mount Shasta 1,422 9%
Jackson County, OR 572 4% Weed 1,143 7%
Humboldt County, CA 559 4% Redding 868 6%
Sacramento County, CA 362 2% Happy Camp 269 2%
Klamath County, OR 309 2% Medford, OR 254 2%
Butte County, CA 295 2% Etna 251 2%
Tehama County, CA 238 2% Dunsmuir 212 1%
Sonoma County, CA 155 1% McCloud 194 1%
Alameda County, CA 145 1% Chico 189 1%
All Other Locations 2,181 14% All Other Locations 7,233 46%
Total Number of Jobs 15,781 Total Number of Jobs 15,781

Where Employees In Siskiyou County Commute From

Counties # of Jobs % of Total Cities and Towns # of Jobs % of Total
Siskiyou County, CA 9,737 74% Yreka 2,228 17%
Shasta County, CA 666 5% Mount Shasta 748 6%
Jackson County, OR 400 3% Weed 734 6%
Klamath County, OR 356 3% Lake Shastina 539 4%
Humboldt County, CA 184 1% Dunsmuir 380 3%
Tehama County, CA 141 1% Redding 329 3%
Modoc County, CA 139 1% Montague 264 2%
Del Norte County, CA 120 1% Fort Jones 158 1%
Sacramento County, CA 101 1% Etna 140 1%
Butte County, CA 75 1% Medford, OR 129 1%
All Other Locations 1,159 9% All Other Locations 7,429 57%
Total Number of Jobs 13,078 Total Number of Jobs 13,078

Note: Bold text indicates locations within Siskiyou County.
Source: US Census Bureau LEHD Database, 2022

As shown in the data, a majority of employees working in Siskiyou County—74 percent—also live within
the county. The top cities and towns of residence include Yreka (17 percent), Mount Shasta and Weed (6
percent each), and Lake Shastina (4 percent). Other local communities contributing to workers include
Dunsmuir (3 percent), Montague (2 percent), and Fort Jones, Etna, and McCloud, each with about 1

percent of the workforce.

Among those commuting from outside the county, 5 percent reside in Shasta County, with Redding
being the primary origin (3 percent). Additional out-of-county commuters come from Jackson and
Klamath Counties in Oregon (3 percent each), and smaller shares from Humboldt, Tehama, Modoc, Del
Norte, Sacramento, and Butte Counties, each contributing roughly 1 percent.

The U.S. Census Bureau’s Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics LEHD database (2022) does not
distinguish between remote and in-person jobs. However, reasonable assumptions can be made—such
as Siskiyou County residents holding jobs based in Sacramento County are likely working remotely.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 18



Despite this limitation, the LEHD data remains a valuable tool for identifying common commute patterns
that could inform transit planning. According to 2023 ACS data, about 10 percent of Siskiyou County
residents worked remotely.

Private vehicles are the primary form of commute transportation for Siskiyou County residents, with 85
percent of workers driving alone or carpooling to get to their place of work. In comparison, less than 1
percent (0.3 percent) use public transit to complete their commute*,

4 U.S. Census Bureau. (2023). Sex of Workers by Means of Transportation to Work [BO8006 for 2023].

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 19



This page intentionally left blank.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 20



Chapter 3
INVENTORY OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

This chapter provides a brief overview of existing transportation services in or adjacent to Siskiyou
County by service type (public, tribal, nonprofit/social services, or private). Both local and interregional
services are described.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS

Siskivou Transit and General Express

Public transportation in Siskiyou County is provided by the Siskiyou Transit and General Express (STAGE).
STAGE currently serves communities along the I-5 corridor, including Yreka, Mount Shasta, Weed,
McCloud, Dunsmuir, and Montague (Table 11). Figure 2 shows these routes and the communities that
they serve. Additionally, STAGE operates in outlying communities and corridors, including the Scott
Valley/SR 3 corridor (i.e., Fort Jones and Etna), the Klamath River/SR 96 corridor (i.e., Happy Camp), and
the north valley corridor (i.e., Hornbrook up I-5). While services to Lake Shastina have been temporarily
discontinued, STAGE is currently pursuing grant funding to resume services.

Current Fixed Route Services

The STAGE fixed route system continues to operate six core routes (Routes 1 through 6), each serving
key corridors across Siskiyou County. These routes provide essential connections between population
centers and rural communities, with a consistent emphasis on accessibility and flexibility. Many of the
routes deviate within 3/4 of a mile to provide ADA-compliant pick-up and drop-off, supporting first/last
mile connections for riders who cannot easily reach standard bus stops.

To ensure the safety of passengers, drivers, and the general public, STAGE no longer permits flag stops.
All passengers must board and exit the bus at clearly designated bus stops listed in the schedule, except
for deviations. This policy helps maintain predictable service and reduces the risks associated with
unscheduled stopping.

Some stops along the routes are marked as On-Call only. Buses will stop at these locations only if a
passenger contacts the STAGE office to request a pickup. To use an On-Call stop, passengers must call
the office at least 30 to 60 minutes before the scheduled pick-up time. Appendix B includes the schedule
for all 6 routes and can be referenced to identify which stops are On-Call.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 21



Table 11: Summary of STAGE Services and Frequency

Service Hours *
Weekday Service Start & End Locations Number of Daily
Start End Runs Corridors

Fixed Route

Route 1 - Cascade Flyer Express - Yreka/Weed/Mt Shasta/Dunsmuir

Northbound 7:00 2:40PM Yreka Transit Center Dunsmuir - Manfredi's 3 Runs I-5

Southbound 8:30AM 3:54PM Dunsmuir - Manfredi's Yreka Transit Center 3Runs I-5

Route 2 - Dunsmuir/McCloud/Yreka

Northbound 8:54AM 1:33PM Run 1- Dunsmuir - Manfredi's Yreka Transit Center 2Runs 5
Run 2 - Mt. Shasta - Evergreen Lodge

Run 1- Castella - Castella Post Office
Southbound 6:00 AM 12:27 PM Yreka Tl it Cent 2R I-5
outhboun reka fransit Lenter Run 2- Yreka - Golden Eagle Charter School uns

Route 3 - McCloud/ Duinsmuir/Yreka

Run 1- McCloud - Corner of Shasta & Colombero .
Northbound 2:39PM 8:40 PM . . Yreka Transit Center 2Runs I-5to SR-89to I-5
Run 2 - Dunsmuir - Manfredi's

Run 1- Yreka Transit Center Run 1- McCloud - Reginatos
Southbound 12:55 7:12PM ) ) . 3 . 2Runs I-5
Run 2 - Yreka - N Main St Miner Diner Run2 - Castella” - Castella Post Office

Route 4 - Scott Valley/Yreka/Montague

Run 1- Montague City Hall
Northbound 6:40 AM 1:51PM Etna - Etna City Yard/Howell/Church St. Run 2 - Yreka Dollar General 3Runs SR-3, I-5
Run 3 - Hornbrook - Post Office

Southbound 8:34 AM 3:30PM Yreka - N Maint St Miner Diner Etna - Ray's Food Place 3Runs SR-3,1-5

Route 5 - Yreka/Montague/Scott Valley

Run 1- Yreka - Raley's Shopping Center .
Run 1- Mont: - City Hall
Run 2 - Yreka Transit Center un ontague - ¢ty ha

Run 3 - Yreka Transit Center Run 2- Montague - City Hall
Northbound 10:55 AM 6:51 AM ) Run 3 - Yreka - Dollar General 5Runs SR-3, I-5
Run 4 - Etna - Etna City Yard/ .

Run 4 - Montague - City Hall

Howell/Church St. X
X Run 5 - Yreka Transit Center
Run 5 - Etna - Ray's Food Place

Run 1- Yreka Transit Center
Southbound 11:30AM 6:17PM Yreka - N Maint St Miner Diner Run 2- Yreka Transit Center 4Runs SR-3, 15
Run 3 - Etna - Ray's Food Market

Run 4 - Etna - Ray's Food Market

Route 6 - Happy Camp/Yreka

Northbound 7:56 AM 10:10AM Happy Camp - Karuk Museum Yreka Transit Center 1Run SR-96, SR-263/1-5

Southbound 3:00PM 5:14PM Yreka - Raley's Happy Camp - Karuk Museum 1Run SR-96, SR-263/1-5

Note 1: Summary accurate as of May 2025. No service on New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, Presidents Day, Cesar Chavez Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Thanksgiving Friday, Christmas Eve,
Christmas Day. No Weekend Service.

Note 2: For the safety of passengers and STAGE Staff, STAGE no longer offers flag stops. Passengers must use designated bus stops to board.

Some stops are On-Call only. To be picked up, passengers must call the STAGE office 30—60 minutes in advance. On-Call stop locations are designated on the schedule.

STAGE does not charge extra for deviation pickups. Deviation service is limited to % mile from the route and must be approved in advance by a supervisor for safety reasons.

Note 3: All STAGE service is within Siskiyou County, except for the stop at Castella, which is in Shasta County.

Source: https://www.siskiyoucounty.gov/stage/page/stage-schedule

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 22



2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 23



Route 1 - Cascade Flyer Express

Route 1 — Cascade Flyer Express travels along the I-5 corridor between Yreka and Dunsmuir, with three
northbound and three southbound runs each weekday. This express service connects major hubs and is
a backbone of the STAGE transportation network.

Route 2 - Dunsmuir/McCloud/Yreka

Route 2 — Dunsmuir/McCloud/Yreka operates two northbound and two southbound runs daily, linking
Dunsmuir, Mount Shasta, and Castella to Yreka. It provides both local and longer-distance connections
along the I-5 corridor, also reaching educational institutions like Golden Eagle Charter School.

Route 3 - McCloud/Dunsmuir/Yreka

Route 3 — McCloud/Dunsmuir/Yreka includes two runs in each direction. This route combines SR 89 and
I-5 travel, serving rural locations such as McCloud and Castella, while maintaining connections to larger
towns like Dunsmuir and Yreka.

Route 4 - Scott Valley/Yreka/Montague

Route 4 — Scott Valley/Yreka/Montague serves Etna, Greenview, and Fort Jones (Scott Valley) as well as
Hornbrook, and Montague with three daily runs each way. The route travels along SR 3 and I-5,
providing access to commercial centers, community offices, and post offices across small towns and
cities.

Route 5 - Yreka/Montague/Scott Valley

Route 5 — Yreka/Montague/Scott Valley serves Scott Valley (Etna, Greenview, and Fort Jones) as well as
Montague with five northbound and four southbound trips per day. It serves local and regional
destinations including Raley’s Shopping Center, the Yreka Transit Center, and multiple locations in Etna
and Montague.

Route 6 - Happy Camp

Route 6 — Happy Camp offers one roundtrip on Mondays and Thursdays between Happy Camp and
Yreka, providing access to tribal services, shopping destinations, and health services. When holidays fall
on Mondays, the service is shifted to Tuesdays. Though limited in frequency, it represents a vital link for
the remote Karuk tribal community to broader county resources. This route operated prior to the
COVID-19 pandemic but was suspended during the pandemic. It resumed service in March 2025.

STAGE Fare System

During the COVID-19 pandemic, STAGE suspended fare collection. As of April 2023, fare collection
resumed with rates varying by trip distance and location (Table 12). Basic Fare costs $4.00 (general fare)
or 2.50 (discount fare). In-town trips cost $1.75 (general fare) or $1.25 (discount). One-way trips
between nearby towns—referred to as "Next Town" fares—are $2.50, with no discounts. Qualifying
Next Town pairs include Yreka to Montague, Hornbrook, Grenada, Fort Jones, and Klamath River, as well

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 24



as other adjacent communities across the county. STAGE also offers 10-ride commuter passes and
stored value cards (minimum $20).

Table 12: STAGE Fare Schedule

Fare Type Full Fare Discount Fare

One-way Fares

Base Fare $4.00 $2.75
In Town Fares $1.75 $1.25
Next Town Fares $2.50 --
Commuter Passes

10-Ride Commuter Pass $30.00 --
10-Ride Next Town Pass $25.00 --
Stored Value Card (520 minimum) S20+ --

Note 1: Excludes the Happy Camp route, and applies to trips not considered "Next Town Fares"
Source: STAGE Website, 2025

STAGE Ridership Trends

As illustrated in Table 13 and Figure 3, STAGE has experienced significant ridership fluctuations over the
past several years, with overall declines since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. The system provided
39,422 one-way passenger-trips in FY 2019-20, but ridership fell by 32.6 percent in FY 2020-21 due to
pandemic-related disruptions. A modest recovery occurred in FY 2021-22 with a 6.8 percent increase to
28,360 trips, but numbers declined slightly again in FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24, dropping by 1.5
percent and 33.8 percent, respectively. As of FY 202425, passenger trips have increased by 12.1
percent from the previous fiscal year, highlighting ongoing challenges in restoring pre-pandemic service
levels.

In response to the pandemic, STAGE implemented fare-free service from May 2020 through October
2022 using federal COVID-19 relief grants, followed by a temporary $1 fare through February 2023
before reinstating full fares. While these efforts helped support community recovery by easing financial
burdens, they also coincided with shifting rider demographics. Like many transit systems, STAGE saw an
increase in homeless ridership and a loss of traditional commuters, suggesting that long-term ridership
recovery will require strategic outreach and service adjustments tailored to evolving community needs.

Table 13: STAGE Fixed Route Services Ridership

Performance

FY 2019-20

FY 2020-21

FY 2021-22

FY 2022-23

FY 2023-24

2024-25 YTD

One-Way Passenger-Trips

39,422

26,561

28,360

27,929

18,485

20,728

% Change from Previous Year

-32.6%

6.8%

-1.5%

-33.8%

12.1%

Source: STAGE

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page 25



OTHER REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

Sage Stage

Sage Stage is the primary public transit provider for Modoc County, located northeast of Siskiyou
County. On Tuesdays, it operates a route between Alturas (Modoc County) and Klamath Falls, with a
stop in Tulelake. The one-way fare is $26.00, or $19.40 with discounts for children under 12, seniors
over 60, or those with ADA disabilities. Reservations are required, as the bus will only operate with at
least one confirmed reservation (Table 14).

Greyhound Lines, Inc./FlixBus

The Greyhound bus route along I-5 connects Sacramento to Portland and includes a stop in Mount
Shasta (Table 14). While service used to occur more frequently, service has been condensed to only one
northbound route leaving Redding at 1:20 PM and arriving in Mount Shasta at 2:25 PM. A southbound
run leaves Mount Shasta at 10:10 AM and arrives in Redding at 11:20 AM. The Greyhound bus stop in
Mount Shasta is located at Mount Shasta Shopping Center, close to Starbucks.

Amtrak

The Coast Starlight route serves Siskiyou County at Dunsmuir Station, which is the northernmost Amtrak
station in California (Table 14). The route provides service between Seattle and Los Angeles. Southbound
trains depart Dunsmuir at 12:45 AM daily, while northbound trains arrive at 4:58 AM daily.

Mount Shasta Taxi
Offers shuttle and taxi services 7 days a week with reservations (Table 14).

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 26



Table 14: Siskiyou County - Transit Service Providers

Provider

Website

Phone Number

Service Description

Area(s) Served

Days and Hours of Service

Eligibility

REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

Siskiyou Transit and
General Express (STAGE)

https://www.siskiyoucounty.gov/stage/page/stage-schedule

(530) 842-8220

STAGE is Siskiyou County’s source for
public transportation.

Siskiyou County

Monday - Friday
7AM-12PM, 1PM-5PM
The Sage Stage Bus does NOT
run on weekends.

General Public

Sage Stage

https://sagestage.com/

(530) 233-6410

Sage Stage provides public transit in
Modoc County, offering a Tuesday
route from Alturas to Klamath Falls
via Tulelake, with fares starting at
$19.40 for eligible riders and
requiring reservations.

Modoc County and Tulelake in
Siskiyou County

Reservations:

Monday - Friday

8AMand 5PM

The Sage Stage Bus does NOT
run on weekends.

General Public

INTERREGGIONAL PROVIDERS

Greyhound Lines, Inc.

https://www.greyhound.com/

1(800) 231-2222

Intercity bus services include
Greyhound and FlixBus, with
Greyhound’s |-5 route stopping in Mt.

Mt. Shasta, CA

Sunday-Saturday

General Public

Shasta Taxi offering daily shuttle and
taxi services by reservation.

FlixBus Shasta between Sacramento and Hours Vary by Route

Portland.

The Coast Starlight It

. e, oast Starfight rou eselrves . Southbound trains depart

Siskiyou County at Dunsmuir Station, Dunsmuir at 12:45 AM dail

Amtrak https://www.amtrak.com/home.html 1(800) 872-7245 California’s northernmost Amtrak Dunsmuir, CA . ) i General Public
. Northbound trains arrive at 4:58
stop, connecting Seattle and Los |
AM daily.
Angeles.
Private transportation providers
h t it , with Mt. s s :

Mt Shasta Taxi https://mtshastataxi.com/ (530) 859-3266 enhance transit access, wi Mount Shasta & Siskiyou County 24/7 Availability General Public

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page 27




Public Transportation Provider Summary

Currently, for those wishing to travel beyond Siskiyou County, there are 3 options:

1. Amtrak serves Dunsmuir and will travel north to Klamath Falls, OR, or south to Redding,
where passengers can transfer to other providers to reach other destinations. Passengers
must be able to get to the I-5 corridor to access this option.

2. Greyhound services Mount Shasta and will travel north on I-5 to Medford, OR, or south on I-
5 to Redding, where passengers can transfer to other providers to reach other destinations.
Passengers must be able to get to the I-5 corridor to access this option.

3. Sage Stage serves Tulelake on its route between Alturas in Modoc County and Klamath Falls,
OR. In Klamath Falls, passengers could transfer to Amtrak or other local transportation

options. To access Sage Stage, passengers must be able to travel to Tulelake.

Public transportation coverage options are identified in Table 15 and Table 16.

Table 15 shows what corridors have access to what public transit services. Gaps in the public

transportation services are notable in the SR 97 (Carrick to Dorris) corridor, with no services offered for

any of the communities along this road. The area of Tulelake also has limited options, being served by

Sage Stage only once per week. There is no other option for residents of that area to travel out of the

region on any kind of public transportation.

Table 15: Routes by Corridor with Communities

Corridor

Routes

Corridor Communities

1-5- Corridor

Route 1 SB/NB

Route 2 SB/NB

Route 3 SB/NB

Route 4 SB/NB

Route 5 SB

Route 6 EB/WB

Amtrak (Dunsmuir only)
Greyhound (Mt. Shasta
only)

Hornbrook

Yreka*

Grenada

Edgewood

Weed*

Ignera

Upton

Mt. Shasta*

Dunsmuir*

Castella (Shasta County)

Route 2 SB/NB

Mt. Shasta to McCloud - SR 89 McCloud
Route 3 SB/NB
Etna*
Route 4 SB/NB Greenview
Scott Valley - SR-3 Route 5 SB Ft. Jones*
Montague
Happy Camp*
KI th Ri H C - SR-96/SR- Seiad Vall
amath River/Happy Camp / Route 6 EB/WB eiad Valley
263 Hamburg
Horse Creek
Route 2 SB
Oth A
er Route 3 SB gers
Tulelake/Klamath Lakes SR-139 SAGE Stage Tulelake*
Carrick
Lake Shastina
Carrick to Dorris - SR-97 No Services Tennant
Mt. Hebron
Dorris*

Note: * Indicates an incorporated community.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page 28



Table 16 provides an overview of community transportation options across Siskiyou County and
adjacent areas, highlighting significant variation in service availability and frequency. Communities along
the I-5 Corridor, such as Yreka, Weed, and Mt. Shasta, benefit from the most frequent service, with up
to 15 daily runs in each direction. In contrast, many rural or remote communities, particularly in Census
Tract 2 (Dorris, Macdoel, Mount Hebron) and areas like Tennant and Tulelake, lack any regular public
transportation. Service is concentrated along key corridors, including I-5, Scott Valley (SR 3), and
Klamath River routes (SR 96/SR 263), with limited or no coverage in more isolated regions. Incorporated
cities are more likely to have some level of service, while unincorporated areas tend to face significant
gaps, underscoring potential inequities in access to mobility across the region.

PRIVATE PROVIDERS

Private transportation providers can diversify access and availability of transit services within a region. A
summary of tribal transportation, social services, non-medical transportation providers, and non-
emergency medical transportation providers is provided in Table 17-1 through Table 17-3.

Tribal Services Providers

Karuk Tribal Health Program

The Karuk Tribal Health Program offers limited clinic transportation services at each clinic location for
Karuk Tribal members who are traveling to tribal clinics for an appointment or traveling to a specialist as
a referral from a tribal clinic provider.

QVIR Anav Indian Health Clinic

The QVIR Anav Indian Health Clinic provides tribal members and partnership patients with shuttle
service. For shuttle service outside the service area, the patient must be a tribal member.

Social Services Providers

Many social service organizations provide valuable transportation services that are specialized for the
demographic groups prioritized in the Coordinated Plan. These organizations are described on the
following pages.

Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency (SCHHSA) Adult and Children’s Services

The Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency, Adult and Children’s Services, provides
transportation assistance for eligible families working with CPS and for dependent adults and seniors
who have an open APS case to attend services, medical appointments and other case specified activities.
This can include STAGE passes or gas vouchers, and in some cases, transporters provided by the
department. All services are determined on case-by-case need and availability.

Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency (SCHHSA) - CalWORKS Welfare-to-Work

The CalWORKs Welfare-to-Work program assists families transitioning from welfare to work by offering
supportive services, including childcare and transportation. These services help families with the
logistical needs essential for securing employment and stability.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 29



Table 16: Community Transportation Options

Census Tract Community Routes # of Daily Runs Corridors Census Tract Community Routes # of Daily Runs Corridors
Route 1SB/NB
1 Tulelake* SAGE Stage 1NB, 1SB - Thursdays ONLY Tulelake/Klamath Lakes SR-139 9.01 Weed* Route 2 SB/NB 7NB, 7SB |-5 Corridor
Route 3SB/NB
2 Dorris* No Service No Service Carrick to Dorris - SR-97 9.02 Carrick No Service No Service Carrick to Dorris - SR-97
2 Macdoel No Service No Service Carrick to Dorris - SR-97 9.02 Lake Shastina No Service No Service Carrick to Dorris - SR-97
Route 1SB/NB
Route 2 SB/NB |-5 Corridor
2 i i i Dorris - SR- 10.02 . * B B
Mount Hebron No Service No Service Carrick to Dorris - SR-97 0.0: Mt. Shasta Route 3 SB/NB 7NB,7S Mt. Shasta to McCloud - HWY 89
Greyhound
Route 4 SB/NB Route 2 SB/NB
2NB h 10.02 NB, 4SB |- i
3 Ager 5SB Other 0.0: Upton Route 3SB/NB 3NB,4S 5 Corridor
Route 1SB/NB
Route 4 SB/NB Route 2SB/NB
3 Mont: 4NB Scott Valley - SR-3 11 D ir* 5NB,5SB 1-5 Corridi
ontague 5B cott Valley unsmuir Route 3 SB/NB orridor
Amtrak
Route 4 SB/NB Route 2SB
6 Ft. Jones* 5NB,5SB Scott Valley - SR-3 12 McCloud 1NB, 2SB Mt. Shasta to McCloud - HWY 89
Route 55B/NB Y Route 3 5B/NB
Route 2NB . . . .
7.01 Gazelle 3NB,2SB I-5 Corridor 12 Tennant No Service No Service SR-97 (14 miles SE of SR-97)
Route 3SB/NB
Route 2 SB/NB . .
7.01 Grenada 3 NB,2SB I-5 Corridor 13 Hamburg Route 6 EB/WB 1EB, 1WB Klamath River/ Happy Camp - SR 96
Route 3SB/NB
7.01 Horse Creek Route 6 EB/WB 1EB, 1WB Klamath River/ Happy Camp - SR 96 13 Happy Camp* Route 6 EB/WB 1EB, 1WB Klamath River/ Happy Camp - SR 96
Route 1SB/NB
Route 25B/NB 1-5 Corridor
Route 3SB/NB Route 4 SB/NB .
7.02 Yreka* 15NB, 15SB Scott Valley - SR-3 13 Hornbrook 2NB |-5 Corridor
Route 4 SB/NB Klamath River/Happy Camp - CA-263 Route 558
Route 558 PPy tamp
Route 6 EB/WB
R 4SB/NB
8 Etna* oute 458/ 5NB,5SB Scott Valley - SR-3 13 Seiad Valley Route 6 EB/WB 1EB, 1WB Klamath River/ Happy Camp - SR 96
Route 5SB/NB
. Route 4 SB/NB Castella (Shasta Route 2SB .
8 Greenview 5NB,5SB Scott Valley - SR-3 Shasta County CT - 125 SB2 I-5 Corridor
Route 5SB/NB County) Route 3SB
Route 2 SB/NB Route 2 SB/NB
9.01 Edgewood 3NB,2SB |-5 Corridor 9.01 Ignera 3NB,2SB |-5 Corridor
eew Route 3 SB/NB ' € Route 3 SB/NB '
Note: * Indicates an incorporated community.
2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 30



Table 17-1: Siskiyou County - Transportation Providers

Provider

Website

Phone Number

Service Description

Area(s) Served

Days and Hours of Service

TRIBAL PROVIDERS

Karuk Tribal Health Program

www.karuk.us

(530) 493-1600

The Karuk Tribal Health Program provides limited transportation for tribal
members traveling to tribal clinics or specialist appointments
by referral.

Happy Camp,
Yreka, Orleans, Eureka, CA

Monday-Friday
8AM -5PM
Closed for most holidays

Karuk Tribe Members.

QVIR Anav Indian Health Clinic

https://qvir.com/anav-tribal-health-clinic/

(530) 468-2470

QVIR Anav Indian Health Clinic provides tribal members and partnership
patients shuttle service. For shuttle service outside the service area, the
patient must be a tribal member.

Quartz Valley

Monday-Friday
8 AM-5 PM.
Closed - Sat./Sun.

Federally recognized tribe of Klamath,
Karuk, and Shasta Indians.

SOCIAL SERVICES PROVIDERS

Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency
(SCHHSA) Adult and Children’s Services

www.siskiyoucounty.gov

Adult Services (530) 841-4010
Children’s Services (530) 841-4200

The Siskiyou County Human Services Department offers transportation
assistance for dependent adults and seniors, including STAGE passes, gas
vouchers, and transport services for medical and emergency appointments.

Siskiyou County

Monday-Friday
APS and CPS - 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM
Closed 12 PM-1PM

Adults and Children
Low Income, people with disabilities,
senior population.

Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency
(SCHHSA) — CalWORKS Welfare-to-Work

www.co.siskiyou.ca.us

(530) 841-2700

The CalWORKs Welfare-to-Work program supports families transitioning from
welfare to work by providing childcare, transportation, and other essential
services for employment stability.

Siskiyou County

Monday-Friday
9:00 AM-4:00 PM

Low Income, people with disabilities,
senior population.

Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency
(SCHHSA) — Behavioral Health

https://www.siskiyoucounty.gov/behavioralhealth

(530) 841-4100 - Yreka
(530) 918-7200 - Mt Shasta

Siskiyou County’s Behavioral Health program transports people with mental
illness to and from programs all over the county and state.

Yreka,
Mt Shasta, CA

Monday-Friday
8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

Community members struggling with
mental illness and substance abuse.

Community Resource Centers
Dunsmuir

www.siskiyoucrc.org

(530) 235-4400

Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers but
only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable.

Dunsmuir, CA

Tuesday-Thursday:
9:00 AM - 4:00 PM
Friday:

9:00 AM - 1:00 PM

Dunsmuir Community members.

Community Resource Centers
Happy Camp

http://www.happycampcc.org/

(530) 493-5117

Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers but
only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable.

Happy Camp, CA

Monday-Thursday
9AM -4 PM
Friday 9 AM - 1 PM

Serving the Happy Camp Community.

Community Resource Centers
McCloud

https://www.siskiyoucrc.org/mccloud

(530) 853-1528

Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers but
only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable.

McCloud, CA

Serving the McCloud Community.

Community Resource Centers
Montague

https://www.siskiyoucrc.org/montague

(530) 459.3481

Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers but
only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable.

Montague, CA

Tuesdays/Thursdays 10 AM - 6 PM
Wednesdays 10 AM - 5 PM
Friday Walk-ins, 8 AM - 12 PM

Serving the Montague Community.

Community Resource Centers
Mount Shasta

www.siskiyoucrc.org/mt-shasta

(530) 926-1400

Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers but
only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable.

Mount Shasta, CA

Mon-Thu: 9:00 AM - 4:00 PM

Serving the Mt Shasta Community.

Community Resource Centers
Scott Valley

www.siskiyoucrc.org/scott-valley

(530) 468-2450

Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers but
only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable.

Scott Valley, CA

Tue-Thur: 9:00 AM - 2:00 PM

Serving the Scott Valley Community.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Page 31

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission



Table 17-2: Siskiyou County - Transportation Providers

Provider

Website

Phone Number

Service Description

Area(s) Served

Days and Hours of Service

Eligibility

SOCIAL SERVICES PROVIDERS (Continued)

Community Resource Centers

Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers

Monday - Friday:

R https://www.teachinc.org/pdf/FRCBrochure.pdf 530) 667-2147 N N Tulelake, CA AM-4PM Serving the Tulelake Community.

Tulelake/Newell Family Resource Center psi// 8/pdf/ P (530) but only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable. 8 8 v
Closed 11AM-1PM

Community Resource Centers Weed https://www.siskiyoucrc.org/weed (530 938-9914 Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers Weed, CA 11*00M:l\r;ldazr*;0 oM Serving the communities of Weed,

v ps: stskly o8y but only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable. ' N o Edgewood, Lake Shastina.
Tuesday - Thursday:
N - Emergency demand-response transportation is available at the centers Tuesday - Friday: .
Community Resource Centers Yreka https://www.siskiyoucrc.org/yreka (530) 842-1313 Yreka, CA Community members.

but only as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable.

10:00 AM - 4:00 PM

Krista Foster Homes

https://kristafosterhomes.org/

(530) 246-1259

This organization offers faith-based foster care and transitional housing
for youth in Siskiyou County while supporting their transportation
needs through RABA bus passes, bicycles, and rides to essential
destinations.

Redding, Mount Shasta, and
surrounding counties

Monday - Thursday:
9:30AM - 04:30 PM
Friday:
9:30AM-2PM

Madrone Hospice Inc.

Madrone Hospice
(530) 842-3160

Monday-Friday, Senior Service prepares fresh, nutritious lunches for

Resource Family Approval (RFA).

Fresh meals delivered daily
Monday - Friday.

These services are provided at no

https://www.madronehospice.org/senior-services area seniors, with home delivery available for those who qualify, while Yreka, CA Transportation P
Madrone Senior Services psi// P 8/ Madrone Senior Services v L q ¥ . P ) charge to qualifying individuals 60+.
our bus travels through Yreka, providing door-to-door transportation. Monday - Friday:
(530) 841-2365
QANM_2PNM
The Mount Shasta Recreation and Parks District's Senior Nutrition
Mt. Shasta Recreation and Project provides meals and transportation for seniors 60+ in Mount
C https://www.msrec.org/ (530) 926-2494 Jectp o N p ) n Mount Shasta, CA Varies by location Community members.
Parks District Shasta and Dunsmuir, including rides to meal sites, medical
appointments, and activities, with a suggested $1.00 donation.
The Mount Shasta Senior Nutrition Program provides meals for seniors
Mount Shasta Senior Center 60+ at designated locations, offers Meals-on-Wheels for homebound Monday - Thursday: Seniors residing within Siskiyou
https://www.msrec.org/senior-nutrition (530) 926-4611 g Mount Shasta, CA v u 8 ¥

Nutrition Program

individuals, and assists with transportation and access to services like
tax preparation and legal aid.

11:00 AM - 1:00 PM

County communities.

Planning and Service Area #2
Agency On Aging

https://www.siskiyoucounty.gov/bc/page/planning-|
and-service-area-2-area-agency-aging-advisory-

(530) 842-1687

The PSA 2 Area Agency on Aging provides transportation for seniors 60+
to medical appointments, shopping, and social activities, funded

Lassen, Modoc, Mounty
Shasta, Siskiyou & Trinity

NA

Seniors in Lassen, Modoc, Shasta,
Siskiyou & Trinity counties.

council through the Older Americans Act Title I11 B. counties
The Senior Shuttle, operated by the Weed Recreation and Parks District, Monday: To & from Senior Lunch.
rovides scheduled transportation for seniors to meals, medical Tuesday & Wednesday:
Weed Senior Shuttle https://www.weedrec.org/weed-senior-shuttle (530) 859-8132 P P " Weed, CA 9:00 AM - 3:00 PM for medical |Ages 60+.

appointments, pharmacy visits, and grocery shopping, with advance
reservations required and no same-day or taxi-style service available.

and shopping trips.
Thursday: 9:00 AM - 3:00 PM for

Far Northern Regional Center

https://www.farnorthernrc.org/

(530) 222-4791

The Far Northern Regional Center, contracted with the California
Department of Developmental Services, supports individuals with
developmental disabilities by providing transportation assistance
through vouchers and mileage reimbursement, helping them live
productive and valued lives in their communities.

Mount Shasta, Lassen,
Siskiyou, Modoc and Trinity

Monday - Thursday:
8AM-5PM
Friday:
8AM-4PM

Children and adults with
developmental disabilities and their
families. Low-income requirements
for transportation assistance.

Siskiyou Opportunity Center

https://www.siskiyouoc.org/

(530) 926-4698

The Siskiyou Opportunity Center supports employment for individuals
with developmental disabilities, offering job training, placement, and
both demand-response and fixed-route transportation to work sites
along the I-5 corridor between Yreka and Dunsmuir, with funding from
the Far Northern Regional Center.

Siskiyou and Shasta
counties

Monday - Friday:
8AM-4PM

Adults with intellectual and
developmental disabilities.

Dignity Health Connected Living

https://www.dignityhealth.org/north-
state/locations/connected-living/services

(530) 225-6000

Meals on Wheels - Meals on Wheels volunteers deliver nutritious meals
to seniors in need within the community.

Redding, and
Mount Shasta CA

Monday - Friday

Seniors aged 60+ living within
Siskiyou County.

Great Northern Services

https://www.gnservices.org/programs-and-
services/community-services/siskiyou-senior-
nutrition-community-cafes/

(530) 926-4611

Meals on Wheels - Meals on Wheels volunteers deliver nutritious meals
to seniors in need within the community.

Dunsmuir, McCloud,
Mount Shasta & Weed

Monday - Wednesday

Seniors residing within the four
South County communities.

Northern Valley Catholic Social Services

https://nvcss.org/

(530) 241-0552

Northern Valley Catholic Social Services (NVCSS) offers as-needed
transportation for disabled clients, helping them access vocational and
rehabilitation services.

Butte, Shasta, Siskiyou,
Tehama, Trinity Counties

Monday - Friday:
10AM-2PM

Low-income and people with living
with mental illness.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page 32




Table 17-3: Siskiyou County - Transportation Providers

Provider

Website

Phone Number

Service Description

Area(s) Served

Days and Hours of Service

Eligibility

NON-EMERGENCY MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS

https://locations.dignityhealth.org/mercy-medical-

Mercy Mt. Shasta Medical Center provides free transportation for

Monday - Friday:

This transportation service is

Mercy Mt. Shasta Medical Center center-mt-shasta (530) 926-6111 patients without access to transport, operated by volunteer drivers, to Mount Shasta, CA 8:00 AM - 3:00PM available to all Siskiyou County
various medical facilities and clinics in the area. Advance schedulingis required. |residents.
The Fairchild Medical Center (FMC) Auxiliary supports hospital staff,
tients, and th ity th h volunt i d Monday - Thursday:
Fairchild Medical Center - Clinic https://fairchildmed.org/ (530) 842-3507 pal |en.s. an R © c?mmum Y through volunteer services an Yreka, CA onday ursday General Public.
fundraising, including a volunteer-run transport van program for 7:45AM - 3:30PM
medical appointments.
The Veterans Transportation Service (VTS) provides free, safe, and
https://www_siskiyoucounty.gov/sheriff/page/ reliable transportation for qualifying Veterans facing barriers to Monday - Wednesday:
Veteran Transportation Services ps: - ¥ V-8 pag (530) 842-8010 N pv 9 VV s s . Yreka, CA 8:00 AM - Noon Veterans and their families.
veterans-services accessing medical care, connecting them to nearby VA medical centers 1:00- 5:00 PM

with the help of local shuttle services.

California Accessible Transportation

https://www.californiaaccessibletransportation
.com/

(530) 255-8866

California Accessible Transportation provides local and out-of-state
medical transportation with wheelchair-accessible vehicles, offering
payment through insurance or private rates, with scheduling available
most days based on staff availability.

Redding, Local and
Out of State

Monday - Friday:
9AM-4PM

General Public.

Alyssa Araiza Wings of Angels
Organization

https://www.aawoa.com/

(530) 378-2373

The Alyssa Araiza “Wings of Angels” Organization supports families with
seriously ill children in several counties by providing financial and travel
assistance, prioritizing those facing pediatric cancer, single parents, and
those with limited aid.

Siskiyou County

Determined ona
Case-by-Case basis

Families of children diagnosed with
a pediatric cancer or life-threatening
illness in Siskiyou County.

EDUCATION PROVIDERS

College Of The Siskiyous Extended
Opportunity Program & Services

https://www.siskiyous.edu/eopscare/

(530) 938-5309

The Extended Opportunity Program and Services (EOPS) provides bus
passes to historically underrepresented students, helping them afford
travel between College of the Siskiyous and nearby towns to reduce
transportation barriers and support their success.

Weed CA

Monday - Friday:
8:00AM-5:00PM

Educationally and economically
disadvantaged students.

Evan’s Transportation

Not Available

(530) 842-5424

Evan’s Transportation provides public school bus service across Siskiyou
County, operating multiple routes for local school districts and offering
charter buses primarily for school field trips.

Siskiyou County

School Hours

Public School Children.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page 33




Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency (SCHHSA) - Behavioral Health

Siskiyou County’s Behavioral Health Services program transports people with mental illness to and from
programs all over the county and state.

Community Resource Centers

The Community Resource Centers, located in Dunsmuir, Happy Camp, McCloud, Montague, Mount
Shasta, Scott Valley, Tulelake, Weed, and Yreka, offer various human service programs with an emphasis
on children and families. While the centers provide emergency demand-response transportation, this
service is intended as a last resort when STAGE services are unavailable.

Madrone Hospice Inc.,, Madrone Senior Services, Yreka

The Madrone Senior Center provides curb-to-curb transportation for Yreka residents aged 60 and older.
Services include transportation to medical appointments, shopping trips, and Senior Center meals,
available Monday through Friday from 9:00 AM to 3:00 PM. A $1.00 donation is suggested, and a 48-
hour reservation is required.

Mount Shasta Recreation and Parks District

The Mount Shasta Recreation and Parks District operates the Senior Nutrition Project, which offers
meals and transportation for seniors aged 60 and older in Mount Shasta and Dunsmuir. The service
includes transportation to meal sites, medical appointments, and other senior activities. A $1.00
donation is suggested for rides.

Mount Shasta Senior Center: Nutrition Program

The Mount Shasta Senior Nutrition Program offers meals to seniors aged 60 and older at the City Park
Recreation Center in Mount Shasta and Eagles Hall in Dunsmuir. Meals are available for homebound
seniors through Meals-on-Wheels. The center also provides transportation for senior diners and helps
seniors access additional services such as tax preparation and legal assistance.

Planning and Service Area 2 Agency on Aging

The PSA 2 Area Agency on Aging provides transportation services to seniors aged 60 and older, helping
with travel to medical appointments, shopping, and social activities. This service is funded through the
Older Americans Act Title Ill B.

Weed Senior Shuttle

The Senior Shuttle, operated by the Weed Recreation and Parks District, provides transportation for
seniors to Monday senior lunches, medical appointments, pharmacy visits, and local grocery shopping.
Rides must be scheduled in advance—same-day requests are not accepted, and taxi-style service is not
available.

Service is free for seniors within Weed city limits. Riders living outside the city but within the 96094
zip code pays a $5.00 fee. The shuttle runs on the following schedule:

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 34



e Monday: To and from Senior Lunch
e Tuesday & Wednesday: 9:00 AM-3:00 PM for medical and shopping trips
e  Thursday: 9:00 AM—-3:00 PM for Lake Shastina riders, medical and shopping trips

Far Northern Regional Center

The Far Northern Regional Center is a contract center with the California Department of Developmental
Services. The center serves as a fixed point of reference for individuals and families of individuals with
developmental disabilities. The mission of the center is to provide support that allows persons with
developmental disabilities to live productive and valued lives as welcomed members of their
communities. To this end, the center provides transportation to clients in various forms, including
vouchers and mileage reimbursement.

Siskiyou Opportunity Center

The Siskiyou Opportunity Center promotes employment for people with developmental disabilities.
They provide demand response transportation services while their clients are at the center, and fixed-
route transportation to access work programs through the center. Funding is received from the Far
Northern Regional Center. The Siskiyou Opportunity Center provides job training and placement for
individuals with disabilities. It offers demand-response and fixed-route transportation services for clients
to and from work sites along the I-5 corridor between Yreka and Dunsmuir, supported by the Far
Northern Regional Center.

Dignity Health Connected Living

Dignity Health Connected Living (DHCL) is a private, non-profit agency dedicated to improving the lives
of senior adults, adults with disabilities, and other adults in need. DHCL was founded when the Shasta
Senior Nutrition Program and Golden Umbrella merged in July 2017. Programs provided by DHCL include
Meals on Wheels, adult day activities, senior nutrition, senior companionship, and health and wellness
services, among other initiatives.

DHCL is contracted to operate both the ShastaConnect CTSA and Sunday on-demand services, described
previously under the public transportation providers section (ShastaConnect). Additionally, DHCL
provides rides for senior adults aged 60 or older and adults with mobility impairments with no other
means of transportation within the greater Redding area.

Great Northern Services

Meals on Wheels - Meals on Wheels volunteers deliver nutritious meals, friendly visits, and safety
checks to seniors in need within the community.

Northern Valley Catholic Social Services

Northern Valley Catholic Social Services (NVCSS) provides transportation to disabled clients for
vocational and rehabilitation services. The transportation is provided on an as-needed basis to help
individuals access vital services and support programs.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 35



NON-EMERGENCY MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS

Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) services are often identified as a top transportation
need for senior adults and persons with disabilities. This section reviews NEMT services currently
operating in Siskiyou County.

Mercy Mount Shasta Medical Center

Mercy Mount Shasta Medical Center offers transportation services to those who have no means of
transport to Mount Shasta Mercy Medical Center, Mount Shasta Physical Therapy, Weed Outpatient
Physical Therapy, Lake Shastina Community Clinic, Dignity Health Pine Street Clinic, Mercy Regional
Cancer Center, or a physician on the hospital’s active medical staff. This service is provided at no cost to
the patient and is operated by volunteer drivers.

This service is available Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 3:00 PM, and appointments must be
made at least one week in advance. Appointments are made on a first-come, first-served basis.
Reservations can be made by calling the transportation system coordinator between 10:00 AM and 1:00
PM, Monday through Friday. This service is available to all residents of Siskiyou County.

Fairchild Medical Center

The Fairchild Medical Center (FMC) Auxiliary supports hospital staff, patients, and the community
through volunteer services and fundraising. A volunteer-run transport van program helps transport
patients to and from their medical appointments at the Fairchild Medical Center Clinic or the main
hospital.

Veterans Transportation Service

The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) offers transportation services to ensure Veterans can
access the medical care they need, even when personal transportation is not available. The Veterans
Transportation Service (VTS) provides free, safe, and reliable transportation to and from participating VA
medical centers (VAMCs) in a multi-passenger van for qualifying Veterans. This service is available to
those who face barriers such as financial hardship, medical conditions, or lack of access to a vehicle.
Nearby full-service VA medical facilities include the White City VA in Oregon (approximately 49 miles
from Yreka), Roseburg VA Medical Center (108 miles from Yreka), VA Sierra Nevada in Reno (215 miles
from Yreka), and the Northern California VA Health Care System in Mather (near Sacramento). These
facilities, in coordination with the VTS and local shuttle services, help ensure Veterans throughout the
region can access the care they’ve earned.

California Accessible Transportation

California Accessible Transportation helps people get to and from both local and far-away medical
appointments, including appointments out of state. The California Accessible Transportation fleet has
vehicles capable of accommodating wheelchairs, gurneys, and other devices. Clients can either pay using
medical insurance or negotiate a private rate. Rides can be scheduled Monday through Friday from 7
AM to 5 PM and on Saturday from 8 AM to 2 PM. Appointments for Sundays can sometimes be
scheduled in advance, depending on staff availability.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 36



Alyssa Araiza, Wings of Angels Organization

The Alyssa Araiza “Wings of Angels” Organization supports families with seriously ill children who must
travel 150 miles or more for medical treatment. The organization serves Shasta, Siskiyou, Trinity, Lassen,
and Modoc counties, offering help such as prepaid gas cards, emergency vehicle repairs, and other
travel-related support, in addition to offering assistance with non-medical bills as well. Assistance is
prioritized for families with pediatric cancer diagnoses, single parents, and those with limited financial
aid.

Education Providers

College of The Siskiyous Extended Opportunity Program and Services

Through the Extended Opportunity Program and Services (EOPS), bus passes are provided to students
from groups historically underrepresented in higher education. These passes help cover the cost of
travel between the College of the Siskiyous and several nearby towns, making it easier for students to
commute to campus. The program is designed to reduce transportation barriers and support student
success by easing the financial burden of getting to and from college.

Evan’s Transportation

Evan’s Transportation provides public school bus service throughout Siskiyou County. The company
currently operates five routes for the Yreka Union High School District, as well as one route each for the
Montague and Seiad Elementary School Districts. In addition to its daily routes, Evan’s Transportation
also offers four buses for charter use, primarily serving school field trips.

The company became the county’s primary school transportation provider after acquiring Dole
Transportation. Since taking over, Evan’s Transportation has maintained consistent service with no
major changes to operations.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 37



This page intentionally left blank.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 38



Chapter 4
RECENT PLANNING DOCUMENT OVERVIEW

INTRODUCTION

This chapter briefly reviews the findings and recommendations of planning documents relevant to the
CTP update. These plans include the 2015 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan (2015
Coordinated Plan), the 2021 Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP), and the Transportation Unmet Needs
Processes from FY 2022-23, FY 2023-24, and FY 2024-25.

2015 COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION PLAN OVERVIEW

The Coordinated Plan recommends strategies that will improve coordination between transportation
providers, with the ultimate goal of encouraging the better use of resources and meeting the unmet
transit needs of local residents.

SCLTC, as the designated RTPA for Siskiyou County, is required by the California Transportation
Development Act (TDA) to hold an annual hearing to identify unmet transit needs in the region. TDA
funding must be spent on any unmet transit needs deemed through the unmet transit needs process to
be reasonable to meet before the RTPA can allocate funds to other transportation projects.

For SCLTC, requests for additional services must first be assessed and categorized as an unmet need.
Then the requests must be assessed further to determine if it is reasonable to meet. If both criteria are
true, then the request is defined as an unmet transit need that is reasonable to meet.

Through the public and stakeholder outreach process, the 2015 Coordinated Plan identified the
following needs that arose during the Transportation Unmet Needs Process (Table 18):
1. Service out of Siskiyou County.
Evening/Weekend Service between Weed and Mount Shasta.
Service to Foothill Drive in Yreka.
More education on the transit services provided.

More consistent snow removal at bus stops.

SN

Move the bus stop at Raley’s in Yreka.

7. Include “No Smoking” signs at bus stops.
Since 2015, a new bus shelter has been installed at Raley’s in Yreka. A bus shelter has also been built at
the YMCA in Yreka to support services to Foothill Drive. No Smoking signs have also been installed at all
bus shelters. Snow removal services have increased in frequency, allowing for passengers to access
stops during winter months. Out of county service and increased evening/weekend service between
weed and Mount Shasta is still “in progress” as more demand data is necessary to justify services.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 39



Table 18: 2015 Siskiyou Coordinated Plan - Reasonable to Meet Unmet Needs

Transit Need Area Notes Implemented

Service Out of Siskiyou County Expanded Service  |This is especially necessary to Medford and Redding. In Progress
Evening/Weekend Service Between Weed ) More research is needed to determine if demand is high enough to

Expanded Service | . . In Progress
and Mt. Shasta justify this type of service change.
Service to Foothill Drive in Yreka Expanded Service  [Bus Shelter installed at YMCA in Yreka Yes
More Education on the Transit Services Provided Education/Outreach |Many potential users do not know what services are available. In Progress
More Consistent Snow Removal at Bus Stops Bus Stops This will make waiting for the bus both safer and more pleasant. Yes
Move the Bus Stop at Raley's in Yreka Bus Stops New shelter installed at Raley's. Yes
Include "No Smoking" Signs at Bus Stops Bus Stops Included with all bus shelters. Yes
Source: 2015 Siskiyou County Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan

Status of 2015 Coordinated Plan Strategies

Table 19 outlines the supportive strategies of the 2015 Coordinated Plan. It is recommended that
partially completed strategies under this goal be reorganized under another goal moving forward. Goals
1 through 6 will continue to be considered in the 2025 Coordinated Plan with subtle changes to the
language. Through additional stakeholder interviews and consultation with SCLTC, these goals will also
be prioritized from high to low priority.

Table 19: 2015 Coordinated Plan Strategies

Better and More Frequent Connections Between and Within Communities

Strategy 1
&Y (Retained from the 2008 Coordinated Plan)

Strategy 2 |Faster/More Efficient Service

Strategy 3  |Provide Service/Connect to Services Outside of the County

Strategy 4  |Maintain the Current Level of Transportation Services

Strategy 5 |Increase Outreach/Education (Retained from the 2008 Coordinated Plan)

Strategy 6  |Multi-Organizational Approach to Solutions

Source: 2015 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan)

Strategy 1: Better and More Frequent Connections Between and Within Communities

Originally retained from the 2008 Coordinated Plan, this strategy addressed the continued need for
intercity and local circulator routes and improved service frequency. While outreach for this update
showed less urgency, survey responses confirmed the demand for more reliable countywide
connections. Some transfer points still require long waits and should be reevaluated. Weed and Mount
Shasta could be considered for future circulator service expansion.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 40



Strategy 2: Faster/More Efficient Service

This strategy focused on reducing total travel time without transfers, with all survey respondents
identifying lengthy trips as a service gap. Solutions include consolidating closely spaced stops, creating
more direct routes, and improving boarding times, potentially with travel assistants or policies limiting
time-consuming items. Further study was recommended to determine implementation.

Strategy 3: Provide Service/Connect to Services Outside of the County

There is strong support for out-of-county service, particularly to Medford, Redding, and Yreka, due to
medical, employment, recreational, and legal needs. A pilot route to Medford or Redding could be
launched using FTA funding, or partnerships with neighboring providers could offer cost-effective
transfer options.

Strategy 4: Maintain the Current Level of Transportation Services

Although some needs remain unmet, STAGE riders report high satisfaction with frequent weekly use. In
light of unstable funding, maintaining current service levels is still a top priority. The previous plan
stated that any new funding should first be used to replace lost operational dollars, and regular system
evaluations should ensure efficient resource use.

Strategy 5: Increase Outreach/Education

Outreach and education remain vital to transit success, with 33 percent of non-riders who took the 2015
Coordinated Plan Public Survey citing lack of awareness as a barrier. Continued efforts—especially in-
person engagement at community events and centers—should be prioritized alongside traditional
media campaigns to inform residents of available services.

Strategy 6: Multi-Organizational Approach to Solutions

Improved coordination among stakeholders is needed to address shared transportation challenges,
share resources, and apply for funding. This can be achieved through listservs, joint meetings, or
participation in existing forums. A lead agency or individual should manage outreach and engagement to
ensure consistency and follow-through.

SISKIYOU COUNTY 2021 SHORT RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

A Short-Range Transit Plan (SRTP) serves as a strategic guide for public transportation services over a

5 to 10-year period. It evaluates current transit operations, identifies service gaps and rider needs, and
outlines improvements to routes, schedules, and infrastructure to enhance efficiency, accessibility, and
ridership. STAGE updated their SRTP in 2021.

As a part of this process, unmet transit needs from FY-2018-19 to FY 2020-21 were reviewed, and key
stakeholders were interviewed to understand what transit needs and transit demands existed in
Siskiyou County. Unmet transit needs findings are summarized for each of these years.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 41



FY2018-2019

The commission directed SCLTC staff to either continue research or address the following issues:

1.

6.
7.

Contact Caltrans regarding the implementation of solar-powered passenger-activated lights
at the bus stop located at the Yreka Old ShopSmart.

Implementation of a “day pass” for visitors and residents.

Revise the schedule to show that a break occurs along Lake Shastina at 11:08 AM in Mount
Shasta before the route continues to Weed.

Potentially create an on-demand service to and from the school in Edgewood.

Construct permanent bus stops and shelters within the Main Street Rehabilitation Project
Area.

Facilitate a clearer process in obtaining a college discount pass.

Revisions to summer schedule.

FY 2019-2020

The following unmet needs were identified as reasonable to meet:

o v kA wnN P

4:30 PM or 5:00 PM northbound service from Mount Shasta to Yreka.

Morning service between Campbell Tracks and northern Yreka (to Wellness Center).
New stop at Dotty’s in Etna to better serve those going to the clinic.

Service to the Boles Creek area.

Bus stop at or near the YMCA and low-income housing area in Yreka.

Service to and from the casino and Yreka.

FY 2020-2021

Based on applicable findings and criteria, none of the requests were considered to be unmet transit

needs, nor were they reasonable to meet.

Requests for Service

In addition to the Unmet Needs process, Siskiyou County also allowed members of the community to

call or email STAGE to submit ride requests for places or times that passengers may wish to use public

transit. STAGE staff recorded specific information on these requests to document where there may be a

need for additional transit service. New service requests received by Siskiyou County include:

e Early morning service (5 AM) northbound from Weed to Dos Amigos area.

e Southbound stop at South Elizabeth St. and Northbound stop at Elizabeth St.

e Service between 3 PM and 8 PM to and from Dunsmuir.

e Service between Happy Camp and Yreka.

e Service between McCloud and Yreka is too closely spaced to get errands done.

e Implementation of a permanent stop at Webb and 4th Street (Montague Apartments).

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 42



Stakeholder Interviews:

As part of the 2021 SRTP update, discussions with key stakeholders occurred to gain a better
understanding of the needs present in Siskiyou County. Key issues included the following:

e Service to the College of the Siskiyou — Pre-COVID, approximately 20 employees and 75
students used STAGE on a daily basis. Students and faculty requested later evening services as
night classes begin at 6:00 PM and end at 9:00 PM. A new residence hall is planned to break
ground in October 2025. This project is expected to increase the number of students living near
campus from 140 to 396 students.

e General Route and Schedule Understanding — Stakeholders from the Karuk Tribe and Siskiyou
Opportunity Center mentioned that the existing route schedule is hard to understand. They
were not sure how to get this information from the website, and it was presented in a way that
was difficult to read.

e Expanded Service Areas — After the Slater Fire in 2020, there was an increase in requests for
service to and from Happy Camp. Adult Services received complaints regarding the lack of
service frequency from those travelling to and from Hornbrook.

e Stop Suggestions — Add a bus stop at the intersection of Miner Street and Broadway in Yreka to
serve the various banks, restaurants, and commercial retail businesses in the area.

e Intercity Services — Increased services and information regarding connections to destinations
such as Ashland and Medford, Oregon, and Redding and Sacramento, California. These requests
indicated that many residents would like to connect to these places for shopping and medical
services.

e Other Issues — Issues of frequency and accessibility were also reoccurring during the stakeholder
outreach interviews. Many expressed that existing stops are difficult for ADA and mobility-
limited people to access. It was suggested that moving some stops closer to senior and group
housing could improve accessibility.

e General Support — Many stakeholders expressed gratitude for the STAGE service and their
efforts during the Slater Fire. Others appreciated the existing student pass program and driver
friendliness.

UNMET NEEDS PROCESS

The SCLTC, as the designated Regional Transportation Planning Agency RTPA, is required by the TDA to
hold an annual hearing to identify unmet transit needs. Before allocating TDA funds to other
transportation projects, any unmet needs deemed reasonable to meet must be addressed. SCLTC
evaluates service requests to determine if they qualify as unmet transit needs and whether they are
reasonable to meet. Only requests meeting both criteria are prioritized for funding. A summary of
Unmet Transit Needs from FY 2022-23, FY 2023-24, and FY 2024-25 are shown in Table 20 and are
described below:

FY 2022-2023

No unmet needs were identified that were reasonable to implement.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 43



FY 2023-2024

In FY 2023-24, there were eight requests that were unmet transit needs that were found reasonable to

meet. They were:

1. Reinstate the bus service from Yreka to Happy Camp. Reinstated March 2025

2. Move the Yreka stop into town or add a transfer; a 30-minute walk is unsafe and
inconvenient.

3. Reinstate the 7:50 AM McCloud to Mount Shasta Charter School bus. Currently providing
service on Route 2 to/from McCloud Elementary and McCloud High School.

Add commuter route: Weed to Mount Shasta before 9 AM, return after 5:30 PM.
Add southbound Yreka bus between 1:10 PM and 5:10 PM. - Added

Start service to/from Lake Shastina—No service currently.

N o n A

Restore Evergreen Lodge route, used by seniors (northbound AM, southbound PM). Served
twice a day in each direction, though southbound passengers are required to deboard at Red
Barn and walk 0.2 miles to Evergreen Lodge.

8. Add an early bus to Yreka Courthouse by 8:30 AM for court. Served by Route 4 Northbound
at 7:36 AM and Southbound at 8:35 AM.

There were 3 additional requests that were earmarked to be revisited at a later time.

1. Seasonal route from McCloud to the ski park
2. Added stop on Route 4A at Willow Creek Elementary School
3. Extend the STAGE service to Redding to allow connections to RABA.

Since these were identified, service to Happy Camp has been reinstated.

FY 2024-2025

In FY 2024-25, only one request was found to be an unmet transit need that was also reasonable to

meet:

1. Mount Shasta Route Deviation & Discount Application Access
SSTAC Recommendation: STAGE should publicize discount application methods and accept
electronic applications. Route deviation can be offered upon request, and feasibility.

In addition, five requests were found to require more information from STAGE and SCLTC before the
SSTAC would categorize them as an unmet need that was also reasonable to meet or not:

Mount Shasta High School to McCloud (Afternoon Trip)

Saturday Service During Summer

Rain Rock Casino Partnership

Service to Dorris & Eastern Siskiyou (Butte Valley/SR 97)

Service to Butte Valley/SR 97 (Twice Weekly)

v kA W

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 44



Table 20: Siskiyou County Unmet Needs Findings

Transit Need

Implemented

FY 2022-2023
No Request Was Found to Be Both an Unmet Need and Reasonable to Meet
FY 2023-2024
Requests That Are Both Unmet Transit Needs and Reasonable to Meet
This request is considered reasonable to meet. Staff has applied
Reinstate service from Yreka to Happy Camp. Expanded Service 9 . X PP Yes
for a grant to facilitate this request.
Walking 30 minutes from the station is unsafe, inconvenient, . . . .
. . ) ) X . This request is considered reasonable to meet and transfer times
especially for elderly or families with kids. Suggests rerouting Expanded Service | Yes
) . ) have been implemented.
buses into town or creating a transfer link.
Reinstate 7:50 AM bus from McCloud to Mt. Shasta Golden Eagle . . . .
. X ] . This request is considered reasonable to meet and transfer times
Charter School, as was previously available and ideal for Expanded Service . Yes
have been implemented.
students.
This request is considered reasonable to meet and was referred
Add route arriving at Mount Shasta before 9 AM and returning to . q ; R - A
Expanded Service [to staff forimplementation during route restructuring in the Yes
Weed after 5:30 PM for commuters. future
Add southbound from Yreka bus between 1:10 PM and 5:10 PM, . This reques‘t s con5|der§d reas?nable tomeetand 'wasl referred
. L L Expanded Service |to staff forimplementation during route restructuring in the No
as there is no current southbound service in this window. o
iture
Establish bus service to/from Lake Shastina. No existing service, . This request s consu:leréd reas?nable tomeetand }Nasl referred
. o . Expanded Service |to staff forimplementation during route restructuring in the No
identified community need.
future
Reinstate northbound bus via Evergreen Lodge (late mornin;
) 8 ge ( X e) ) This request is considered reasonable to meet and was referred
and afternoon southbound via same route. Removed service that| Expanded Service R . R Yes
. . . to staff forimplementation on an on-call basis.
was heavily used, especially by seniors.
This request is considered reasonable and has been met. Staff
Early bus to Yreka Courthouse by 8:30 AM for court appointments.| Expanded Service |. a o Yes
increased service in Grenada.
Requests That Require More Information To Categorize as Either Unmet Transit Needs or Reasonable to Meet
This request is not considered reasonable at this time until staff
Add seasonal route change to include McCloud to ski park from can do a comprehensive study to evaluate the
Dec 15-Apr 15. Reason: Public demand, tourism, workforce, Expanded Service |operational/economic feasibility and cost effectiveness in No
economic benefit. relation to fare ratio. Staff will bring recommendation back to the
Commission at a future date.
) This request is not considered reasonable at this time due to the
Add a stop on route 4A at Willow Creek Elementary (York Rd) for ) A o i
] . . Expanded Service [lack of service for a significant amount of population and No
students and residents to access transit services to Yreka. A .
operational feasibility.
Connect Siskiyou County STAGE to RABA in Redding to help This request is not considered reasonable to meet at this time.
STAGE passengers get to medical appointments and create more | Expanded Service |Current bus routes end in Castella. RABA would need to No
regional connectivity. coordinate bus stops in that area for pickups.
FY 2024-2025
Requests That Are Both Unmet Transit Needs and Reasonable to Meet
STAGE should make information about discount application
Route deviation in Mt. Shasta and availability of discount . ) ) pp N
o . . Education or process more publicly available. Passengers can apply via
application process to allow South County residents needing ) L No
I i ) N Outreach electronic methods. Route deviation offered upon request and
discounted fare cards to receive them without traveling north. X A o
confirmation of feasibility.
Requests That Require More Information To Categorize as Either Unmet Transit Needs or Reasonable to Meet
For Mt. Shasta High School Students, an additional afternoon run . X . . .
g . Further information required and research by STAGE to identify
to McCloud allows students to commute home after school and Expanded Service ) . No
) L possible solutions.
after extracurricular activities.
Requested Saturday service during the summer. Expanded Service |Additional information needed to make determination. No
Rain Rock Casino would like to partner with STAGE to provide . STAGE setup meeting to identify specific needs, evaluate current
. Expanded Service N ) o No
more times on the schedule. service provided, and report back on findings.
Service to Dorris and THE eastern Siskiyou County communities
¥ ¥ Expanded Service |Additional information needed to make determination. No
(Butte Valley/Route 97).
Sevice to Butte Valley twice per week. Expanded Service |Additional information needed to make determination. No
Source: Resolution of Unmet Transit Needs Findings for FY2022-2023, FY 2023-2024, FY 2024-2025, SCLTC

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page 45



This page intentionally left blank.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 46



Chapter 5
PUBLIC AND STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH

INTRODUCTION

Public and stakeholder engagement is a cornerstone of effective transportation planning. As an integral
part of the Coordination Plan process, LSC encouraged the participation of various community
perspectives to uncover current challenges within the existing transportation system of Siskiyou County.
The following section provides a summary of the public and stakeholder engagement activities
implemented during the planning process.

Online Community Survey

The online community survey was conducted in May 2025 and was available for three weeks. The survey
instrument was a 17-question survey made available online in both Spanish and English formats. To
inform the public of the survey effort, regional stakeholders were asked to pass along information to
their clientele and post fliers with QR codes and links to the survey. The survey was also posted on
SCLTC's various social networks and website, as well as advertised in Siskiyou News. The survey was
targeted at all residents of Siskiyou County, including those who do not use public transit on a regular
basis. The survey received a total of 144 responses.

A complete and detailed summary of responses is included in Appendix C. The Online Community Survey
instrument is included in Appendix D.

A brief overview of these responses is presented below:

e Survey Participation: 144 total responses were collected over several weeks in May and June
2025 from a wide demographic range, with most respondents between the ages 31 and 60 years
old.

e Vehicle Access: 93 percent of respondents had access to at least one or more vehicles; only 7
percent reported no household vehicle access, a key indicator of transit dependence.

e Transit Use: Only 9 percent of respondents personally use public or specialized transit services,
but

e 50 percent had friends or family who do.

e Most-Used Providers: Among those aware of transit options, STAGE was the most used service
(58 percent), followed by Amtrak (33 percent) and Evans Transportation (18 percent).

e Unmet In-County Transportation Needs: One-third of respondents stated they couldn’t get rides
within Siskiyou County when they needed it. This is especially true for trips to Yreka from Lake
Shastina, Etna, and Weed.

e Unmet Out-of-County Transportation Needs: 28 percent of participants reported that they
needed rides outside Siskiyou County that they couldn’t get—most commonly to Medford, OR
(56 percent), Redding (48 percent), and Ashland, OR (15 percent).

e Trip Purposes: For both in- and out-of-county unmet needs, the top reasons for the trips were
medical appointments, shopping/errands, work, and school.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 47



e Barriers to Transit Use: Top barriers included inconvenient schedules/routes (55 percent),
difficulty finding information about transportation options (40 percent), and unreliable service
(32 percent).

e Service Needs: Most participants needed transportation during weekday daytime hours, with
limited demand on weekends and late nights.

e Public Feedback: Open-ended comments highlighted appreciation for drivers but emphasized
needs for expanded service, especially for vulnerable populations and non-emergency medical
transportation.

STAKEHOLDER AND TRANSPORTATION PROVIDER OUTREACH

Transportation Provider Workshop

On May 14™, 2025, a workshop was held with the objective of gathering all current transit and
transportation providers in Siskiyou County to discuss their services and current challenges with
providing transportation. A total of 12 local transportation and social service providers attended. After a
short presentation by the consultant, the workshop then opened up to a group discussion. During the
workshop, the following major themes were discussed:

o The need for additional transportation options in areas like Dorris, Tulelake, Happy Camp, and
Somes Bar.

e County-wide need for medical trips, particularly for outpatient treatment or probation
meetings.

e Ongoing requests for interregional connections to Redding, Medford, and Klamath Falls.

e Many providers and social service agencies were open to the idea of reimbursement programs,
shared staffing, and flexible service models.

e Challenges related to driver shortages, vehicle costs, and low rural ridership.

Transportation Service Agency Survey

As part of the Stakeholder and Transportation Provider Outreach activities, a survey of public, non-
profit, social service, and private transportation providers was conducted to gather information on
eligibility requirements, service areas, coordination efforts, and operational data. The Transportation
Service Agency Survey (TSA Survey) was distributed via email and in person at the May 14, 2025.
Transportation Provider Workshop. Agencies were given from May 9 to June 16, 2025. Seven
stakeholders ultimately completed the survey. Key findings from the TSA Survey are included in Chapter
3 (by agency), Chapter 7 (coordination strategies and unmet needs), and Appendix E. The Survey
Instrument is included in Appendix F.

Highlights of this include:

e The TSA Survey participants identified the following current, unmet transportation needs in the
Siskiyou County region:

0 Lack of non-medical transportation options (e.g., food, shopping, entertainment,
employment) in rural and smaller town areas.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 48



0 Affordable, timely transportation is needed both locally and for regional travel (e.g., to
airports, bus lines, and specialists).

0 No public transit currently operates between Happy Camp and Somes Bar (along SR 96
and Salmon River Road).

0 Many of the provider’s clients require more frequent service options due to varied
activity schedules throughout the day.

0 Many rural residents need transportation to medical facilities outside their community,
especially in and around Yreka.

0 Residents without Partnership Health are unable to access necessary transport services,
particularly seniors and people with disabilities.

0 Transportation to addiction recovery centers (e.g., in Redding) is a notable unmet need
and is challenging to provide.

e TSA Survey participants serve:

0 Elderly Population (All 7 0 Persons with a low income (6
providers) providers)

0 Persons with sensory 0 Veterans (6 providers)
disabilities (including vision loss 0 Unemployed persons (5
or deafness) (6 providers) providers)

0 Persons with mental disabilities 0 Youth (4 providers)

(6 providers) General Public (4 providers)

0 Persons with physical

e . Persons seeking addiction
disabilities (6 providers)

treatment (1 provider)
e Conversely, TSA Survey participants were NOT able to serve:
0 Youth, due to not having the required permits to transport minors.
0 Certain transportation provider services are limited to those with developmental
disabilities.
0 Organizations like Madrone Senior Services primarily serve those aged 60+, due to
funding restrictions through the Area Agency on Aging.

0 Many vulnerable populations, including veterans and seniors without adequate
insurance, often face barriers to service if they lack coverage through Partnership
HealthPlan or have Medicare, which typically does not cover non-emergency
transportation to areas in California.

e Reported area served within Siskiyou County by participating providers:

Yreka (5 providers) 0 Dunsmuir (3 providers)
0 McCloud (4 providers) 0 Happy Camp (3 providers)
0 Fort Jones (3 providers) 0 Montague (3 providers)
0 Weed (3 providers) 0 Greenview (one provider)
0 Hornbrook (3 providers) 0 Somes Bar (one provider)
0 Etna (3 providers) 0 Dorris (2 providers)
2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 49



0 Tulelake (2 providers) 0 Big Springs (2 providers)

0 Lake Shastina (2 providers) 0 Copco (2 providers)

0 MacDoel (2 providers)
e Reported area served outside of Siskiyou County by participating providers:
Shasta County (4 providers) 0 Butte County (2 providers)
Modoc County (2 providers) Humboldt County (2 providers)
Del Norte County (1 provider)

Medford, OR (1 provider)

Lassen County (3 providers)
Trinity County (1 provider)

Tehama County (1 provider) Sacramento, CA (1 provider)

© OO O O O
©O 0O O O O

Plumas County (2 providers) San Francisco, CA (1 provider)

0 Glenn County (1 provider)

e The following major suggestions were made by participants to increase coordination among
transportation providers in the Siskiyou County region:

0 Participants emphasized the need for more flexible, affordable microtransit options
such as vans and passenger cars for non-medical trips, as taxi fares are prohibitively
expensive for many riders.

0 Suggestions to improve system efficiency included better routing and utilization of
available resources, increasing route frequency, and improving inter-agency
communication.

0 Many stressed the importance of continued collaboration and the pursuit of outside
funding or subsidies to support more affordable transportation options.

SSTAC Presentation and Public Workshop

On October 8™, LSC presented the draft Coordinated Plan to the
current SSTAC members for their review and input of
recommended goals and strategies. Major feedback included
positive support and discussion around the prioritization of the
strategies with some revision to the travel training strategy
being moved up to medium priority as many saw this strategy
to have a lot of potential in implementation throughout various
social service providers.

During the public workshop, one attendee representing the

county Office of Education introduced a new transportation

need that had not been previously identified. They expressed

challenges in placing youth populations into foster homes

throughout the county who still want to attend their existing

schools. Often times, they are not able to place children in the

same community that they originated in, and thus, they struggle to get to and from their existing school
from their new foster home. Revisions to the document reflect this new identified need and a strategy
that aims to support this growing challenge.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 50



Chapter 6
TRANSPORTATION GAPS, NEEDS, AND DUPLICATIVE SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

The primary goal of the Coordinated Plan is to improve the quality and quantity of transportation
services available to senior adults, people living with disabilities, and low-income residents in Siskiyou
County. This is ultimately achieved by reviewing existing transportation conditions, identifying possible
duplicative services for cost efficiency, and recommending coordination strategies to address gaps and
unmet transportation needs in the region.

This chapter first summarizes the transportation needs identified by stakeholders and community
members throughout the planning process. The demographic data is used to quantify the relative need
for transportation services based on community characteristics. Gaps in service are then identified
based on community input and the various demographic analyses conducted during this Coordinated
Plan.

TRANSPORTATION GAPS IN SERVICE
Gaps in service are typically identified under five categories or a combination of them:

1. Geographic gaps are those areas which do not have service available. Besides areas with no services
altogether, geographic gaps also occur when there are no specialized services available within the
region (i.e., no specialized services for people with disabilities) or because there are no services
available to the key destinations where people need to go.

2. Temporal gaps are defined as days or times when service is not available.

3. Eligibility gaps exist when individuals are not eligible for transportation services because they do not
meet the criteria of agencies providing transportation or the programs that fund them.

4. Modal gaps exist where there is a lack of connection between various types of transportation.
Knowledge gaps exist when communities are not aware of the services available to them, either
geographically or eligibility.

The following gaps in service were identified during the development of the 2025 Coordinated Plan
through the review of existing services presented in Chapter 2, stakeholder input, and public outreach.
These gaps are also summarized by type in Table 21.

1. There is a geographic and modal gap in providing connections between Siskiyou County and
surrounding Counties via public transit. The community survey revealed that many people would
like to be able to travel to Redding to the south and Medford, Oregon, to the north.

2. There is an eligibility gap as there are no Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) providers
within the county that provide trips for those who are not recipients of MediCal.

3. There are only a few transportation programs that offer specialized assistance, such as wheelchair
accommodations and door-through-door staff support, for senior adults with limited insurance
coverage.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 51



4. There is a knowledge gap as many of those surveyed expressed a lack of transportation service
understanding.

5. There is a geographic gap as several residents lack any access to public transit including the
communities of Lake Shastina/Carrick.

6. Youth populations who are living in homes lack access to a personal vehicle struggle to get to and
from school. This is particularly common amongst Siskiyou County youths who are living in foster
homes as it is common that their foster home won’t necessarily be located in their community of
origin.

Table 21: Siskiyou County Identified Transportation Gaps

Service Gap Type Identified Gap
There is major gap in providing connections between Siskiyou County and surrounding Counties
Geographic and Modal |via public transit. The community survey revealed that many people would like to be able to
travel to Redding to the south and Medford, Oregon to the north.
Elicibilit There are no current Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) providers within the county
8 v that provide trips for those who are not recipients of MediCal.
There are only a few transportation programs that offer specialized assistance, such as wheelchair
Eligibility accommodations and door-through-door staff support, for senior adults with limited insurance
coverage.
Knowledge There was an overall expressed lack of transportation service understanding demonstrated in the
g community survey.
. There are several residents that lack any access to public transit including the communities of Lake
Geographic . .
Shastina/Carrick.
Youth populations who lack access to a reliable household vehicle struggle to get to and from
Temporal
school.
NEEDS ANALYSIS

In earlier chapters, current population demographics from the 2023 American Community Survey (ACS)
5-Year Estimates and the 2020 Decennial Census were analyzed to assess transportation needs in
Siskiyou County by census tract. With an emphasis on the County’s population who is 65 years or older,
living with a disability, and/or living below the poverty line, the following census tracts and communities
stand to benefit the most from an increase in transportation services:

e Census Tract 3 (Montague) has a fair percentage of persons living with a disability (11
percent or 854 people).

e Census Tract 7.03 (West Yreka) currently has 13 percent, or 917 people, living below the
poverty line.

e Census Tract 9.01 (Weed and Edgewood areas) has 11 percent (860 people) living with a
disability and another 11 percent (757 people) living below the poverty line. Of the 388 zero
vehicle households within the county, 24 percent (95 households) of these are located
within Census Tract 9.01.

e Census Tract 10.03 (East Mount Shasta) has the highest concentration of the county’s senior
population with 1,466 (12 percent) people over the age of 65 residing there.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 52



Strategies that aid the movement of those living in these communities should be prioritized in the
future.

DUPLICATIVE SERVICES

A reoccurring theme throughout the public outreach and stakeholder interviewing process was that
while there are several private and non-profit transportation services in the region, there were still
several communities and residents still living without access either due to geographic or eligibility
barriers. As there are very few transportation services in each category (public, non-profit, and private)
there were no duplicative transportation services observed during this coordinated planning process.

COORDINATION CHALLENGES

Stakeholders and transportation providers within Siskiyou County expressed interest in improving
coordination and increasing services, however, some potential coordination strategies, such as sharing
vehicles between agencies, are logistically difficult to implement. The following challenges were
identified by stakeholders as limiting coordination between transportation providers:

e Regulatory constraints — Most transportation providers in Siskiyou County receive some
level of grant funding. Grants typically have strict requirements about who can use the
funds and how funds may be used, limiting how organizations can share resources.

e Limited organizational capacity — Most transportation service organizations operate with
limited staff and funding. In many cases, there is not even a full-time staff member
dedicated to operating the transportation program nor are there enough drivers to
implement services. These challenges make it difficult to potentially take on additional
commitments related to improving regional coordination.

o Different organizational focuses — Transportation providers in Siskiyou County have
different missions and clients they’re serving; also, transportation is not the primary focus
for most of the organizations identified. The ability to coordinate between organizations is
minimized if programs serve different groups or purposes. The capacity to coordinate
transportation services is also minimized if organizations have other programs requiring
time and resources.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 53



This page left intentionally blank

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 54



Chapter 7
RECOMMENDED GOALS AND STRATEGIES

INTRODUCTION

This chapter begins with an overview of the evaluation criteria used in developing and prioritizing
coordination strategies within Siskiyou County. A description of major goals identified through public
outreach, stakeholder engagement, and SCTLC/STA consultation over the course of the planning process
follows. The chapter concludes with recommended strategies identified to provide improved transit
services that meet the needs of those who are over the age of 65, living with disabilities, and/or living
below the poverty line.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

The 2015 Coordinated Plan identified evaluation criteria. These criteria and questions were used along
with survey data and stakeholder outreach to develop and prioritize the 2015 Coordinated Strategies.
The consultant team reviewed the 2015 evaluation criteria and found it applicable to the 2025 update.
The Evaluation Criteria is as follows:

1. Unmet needs: Does the strategy address transportation gaps or barriers?
Does the strategy:
e Serve a geographic area with limited transportation options and/or demonstrated high need?

e Improve the mobility of clientele subject to state and federal funding sources (i.e. seniors, and
individuals with disabilities)?

e Provide a level of service not currently provided with existing resources?

e Preserve and protect existing services?

2. Feasibility: Can this strategy be feasibly implemented given the timeframe and

available resources?

Does the strategy:

e Meet the requirements for various grant funding?

e Result in efficient use of available resources?

e Have a potential project sponsor with the operational capacity to carry out the strategy?

e Demonstrate the potential to be sustained beyond the grant period?
3. Coordination: How does this strategy build upon existing services?
Does the strategy:

e Avoid duplication and promote coordination of services and programs?

e Allow for and encourage participation of local human service and transportation stakeholders?

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 55



COORDINATION GOALS FOR SISKIYOU COUNTY

The following regional coordination goals were first established in an effort to guide recommended
strategies that met the above criteria.

Goal 1: Maintain a Sustainable, Efficient, and Effective Public Transit System in
Siskivou County

A common theme throughout the public and stakeholder process was an expressed need to maintain
existing levels of transit services available for seniors, disabled, and low-income individuals offered
through STAGE. As the only public transit operator in the county, STAGE has the most resources
available in terms of vehicles and staff in the region as well as knowledge of operating a transit system.
In recent years, operating costs have increased significantly due to inflation of fuel, insurance and labor
rates while sales tax revenue (primary funding source for public transit in California) has not kept pace
with costs. Understanding these challenges, the state has allocated additional funding for transit
agencies through SB 125. However, the longevity of this funding source is unknown.

STAGE provides an important transportation service for disadvantaged residents and its continued
provision of service is a high priority goal for the region. This goal underscores the need to continue a
robust and sustainable public transportation system for travelers throughout Siskiyou County through
recurring and competitive grant funding. Strategies that support this goal, as they relate to schedule,
span or service, and routes, are described in further detail below.

Goal 2: Provide Additional Transportation Services Within and Beyond Siskiyou
County, as Feasible

It is financially and operationally challenging for a rural public transit operator to serve remote
communities and out-of-county destinations; however, these areas represent a mobility need for
residents, particularly, the elderly and disabled. This goal aims to strengthen services toward
establishing effective, sustainable programs that meet the mobility needs of residents traveling out-of-
county, as financially feasible. The recommended strategies which support this goal were generated
through the data gathered in the online community survey, recent unmet transit needs reports, and
stakeholder input.

Goal 3: Expand Public Outreach and Regional Education of Services

Stakeholder and community input indicated there could be greater awareness of both STAGE services as
well as private and non-profit transportation services. Further, STAGE marketing materials can be
confusing to the new transit user and provide a barrier to using public transit. Increasing awareness of
public transit and transportation services provided by other agencies is important to garnering more
ridership and improving mobility for residents and visitors. Related coordinated strategies discussed
below address these issues through website and schedule updates to coordination efforts amongst
various providers.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 56



RECOMMENDED COORDINATION STRATEGIES

The following section presents a prioritized list of recommended coordination strategies, ranked from
highest to lowest priority based on identified community needs and stakeholder discussion (Table 22).
Each strategy is introduced by the associated unmet need or transportation challenge identified during
the coordination planning process, followed by a description of how the recommended strategy could
provide solutions to address the unmet need. The evaluation criteria was then considered as a method
of prioritizing the strategy. Each strategy discussion concludes with implementation steps and the
designation of a responsible party to support action and progress.

Table 22: 2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Plan Strategies

Priority Strategy Description

High Strategy 1 |Maintain the current level of transportation services.

High Strategy 2 |Improve marketing materials and outreach efforts to inform public of available transportation services.
High Strategy 3 |Seek traditional and non-traditional funding sources to fund out-of-county transportation.

High Strategy 4 :;I/c: : ::I::?Ieor:ti:{\i::r:::;n:n;::ic;g;am as a program of last resort to fill gaps in transportation service
High Strategy 5 |Improve regional transportation provider coordination through database and annual meetings.

High Strategy 6 |Implement a travel training program.

Strategy 7 |Improve frequency and coverage of STAGE routes, as resources allow.

Strategy 8 |Expand marketing for existing STAGE voucher programs to human service agencies.

Strategy 9 |Provide transportation information and support to Siskiyou County youth service agencies.

Strategy 1 — Maintain the current level of transportation services.

Currently, STAGE operates a limited transit service between major communities along I-5, SR 3, SR 96,
and SR 89. Although increasing the frequency of public transit services should continue to be a long-
term goal, without additional financial resources, this is challenging due to the dispersed nature of
Siskiyou County communities and a limited budget. Maintaining status quo service levels has become a
challenge for rural public transit agencies. In recent years, public transit operators have seen operating
costs increase significantly (wage, insurance, and fuel costs) while revenues stemming from sales tax and
fuel taxes have not kept pace. Therefore, frequency improvements will need to be balanced by finding
efficiencies elsewhere in the system. In order to better meet the needs of the senior, disabled, and low-
income population, STAGE could make improvements to existing service through increasing service
during times of the greatest need and decreasing service on low-performing runs.

It is also reasonable for STAGE to focus on maintaining and improving service for the major corridors in
Siskiyou County, while smaller transportation providers meet the transit needs in the more remote
areas such as Somes Bar, Lake Shastina, or Dorris. Additional strategies to address the possible provision
of coordinated services to remote portions of the county are addressed in Strategies 3 and 4.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This strategy focuses on Evaluation Criteria #2: Feasibility. It is financially

constrained, and there is a project sponsor in place. As such, this strategy is considered high priority and
the first step in maintaining a coordinated public transit and human service agency transportation
network.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 57



Strategy 1 - Responsible Party / Actions: As the sole public transit operator in Siskiyou County, STA is the
clear responsible entity for this strategy. It also falls within the responsibility of STA to refer requests for
ride requests which lie outside the STAGE service area and span to other transportation providers in the
area.

Strategy 2: Improve marketing materials and outreach efforts to inform public of available
transportation services.

During the online survey, participants were asked which regional public and private transit services they
use. Of the 84 responses, 13 percent had never heard of STAGE. A follow up question listed five other
social service agencies that either provide transportation for their clients, or contract out for
transportation services. Results indicated that another 56 percent had not heard of these providers
either. Lastly, when asked what challenges prevented participants from using transit, 40 percent
indicated they had difficulty finding and understanding the current STAGE schedule. These findings
support a need to redesign and expand upon the existing marketing materials not only for STAGE
services, but for other transit services in the region as well.

The first step should be to create a more user-friendly bus schedule. For example, identifying the
community in which each stop is located will be particularly helpful for visitors who do not know that
Manfredi’s is located in Dunsmuir. Combining Routes 2 and 3 would simplify the schedule as they
operate along the same corridor. Developing a route map showing major stops would provide a good
visual for better understanding of the transit system. The new schedule and route map should be
incorporated into a distributable brochure. In the interest of coordination, a “Regional Transportation
Guide” could also be developed, which provides general information on the transportation providers
included in the inventory list of this plan. Lastly, a small portion of the STAGE operating budget should
be dedicated to annual marketing strategies, such as a social media presence and participation in
County events with informational handouts.

The SCLTC recently entered a contract with a consultant to update the STAGE website and develop a trip
planning tool. This will significantly help with communicating transit information to existing and
potential passengers. These efforts should be further supported by including a section on the website
for information on other transportation services in the region.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This strategy addresses all the evaluation criteria by providing a better

understanding of what services are already being provided. It is anticipated that this strategy will
noticeably increase ridership and improve mobility for the senior and disabled population. The cost of
developing a new schedule and route map is relatively low and considered financially feasible. This is a
high-priority strategy.

Strategy 2 - Responsible Party / Actions: STAGE and SCLTC should continue to maintain various forms of
outreach through online marketing and website maintenance, printed informational tools (such as
schedules brochures, posters, news articles), and social media outlets such as Facebook. Marketing
materials should be distributed both within the county and to nearby counties. Maintaining marketing
materials requires coordination with all transportation services in the region.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 58



Strategy 3 - Seek traditional and non-traditional funding sources to fund out-of-county
transportation.

One of the gaps in service for elderly and disabled Siskiyou County residents is transportation to
destinations outside of Siskiyou County, as major medical and commercial services are unavailable in
Siskiyou County. As part of the online community survey, participants were asked why they needed
transportation out-of-county, 81 percent stated medical appointments and 44 percent stated shopping
and errands. The most commonly requested out-of-county destinations were Medford, OR (34 percent),
and Redding (30 percent).

Both FTA 5310 and FTA 5311(f) funding could be used to subsidize the cost of out-of-county
transportation, depending on how the service is designed. One option would be for SCLTC to assist a
non-profit agency such as Madrone Senior Services to apply for an FTA 5310 grant to provide
transportation for primarily elderly and disabled passengers to select medical and shopping destinations
in Redding and/or Medford. Service could be limited to one day a week/month and with reservations
only. Only 50 percent of operating costs are eligible for reimbursement through the FTA 5310 program;
however, 80 percent of vehicle purchase costs are eligible. This option would require financial and labor
commitment from a non-profit agency. Madrone Senior Services currently provides transportation for
seniors in Yreka. The 5310 program could be used to supplement recurring funding to expand
transportation services out-of-county.

To be eligible for FTA 5311(f) funding, a public transit operator must operate a route which provides
“meaningful connections” with intercity transportation providers such as Amtrak or an airport.
Connections with regional transit operators such as Shasta County’s Redding Area Bus Authority (RABA)
or Rogue Valley Transportation District’s (RVTD) should also be incorporated into the route. It would
also be reasonable for an intercity route to serve a major hospital or medical center. There is a strong
movement among public transit operators on the north coast (Humboldt Transit Authority, Redwood
Coast Transit and Mendocino Transit) to develop a more robust public transit intercity transit network
between Smith River and the San Francisco Bay Area. There could be an opportunity in the future for
STAGE to tap into that grant funding and connect with this network. STAGE could also apply for FTA
5311(f) funds independently for a service to Medford or Redding; however, this is a competitive grant
which has generally reached capacity. An out-of-county shuttle funded through the 5310 program would
have greater flexibility to meet the needs of the target population for this coordinated plan.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This strategy meets eligibility criteria by addressing gaps in service,

particularly for seniors and disabled and encouraging coordination. However, FTA 5310 and 5311(f)
grants are competitive and only pay half of the operating costs. Despite not being financially feasible at
this time, this is a high priority strategy as it addresses long-standing unmet transportation needs.

Strategy 3 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA/SCLTC should assist agencies who primarily cater to elderly
and disabled residents, such as Madrone Senior Services with applying for FTA 5310 funding for both the
purchase of vehicles and operations funding for out-of-county transportation. To support more
interregional connectivity, STA and STA should continue to coordinate with nearby public transit
operators to explore FTA 5311(f) funding opportunities.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 59



Strategy 4: Pilot a mileage reimbursement program as a program of last resort to fill gaps in
transportation service to/from small outlying communities.

The community survey and stakeholder workshop revealed that many Siskiyou residents need
transportation to areas outside the STAGE service area or service span. While there are a handful of
resources for residents eligible for Partnership Health, there are many residents in these small
communities who may not be eligible for Partnership or require travel for a non-medical purpose. To
compound the problem, it is possible that cuts to the Medicaid program through recent federal
legislation may affect eligibility and benefits for some residents. This would increase the number of
people needing transportation to medical appointments.

Several CTSA’s and transit agencies such as in Tuolumne County, El Dorado County, and Placer County
offer mileage reimbursement programs for high-need groups. These programs have been successful in
providing transportation assistance for rural residents while being much more cost efficient than
traditional DAR services.

Under this model, the eligible program participant must find their own driver who provides the ride
using their own personal vehicles. Each ride is then tracked by the participant in a provided form and
submitted at the end of each month for mileage reimbursement. This encourages participants to ask for
help from friends, neighbors, and other community members while allowing them a means to
compensate them for their help. The self-selection of a driver and the use of private vehicle releases the
LTC or transit operator from liability, however a legal professional should be consulted should a program
like this be considered for implementation.

Program eligibility varies from program to program, however, eligible groups typically include disabled
individuals and seniors at a minimum. A maximum number of miles eligible for reimbursement are then
typically established and the milage reimbursement rate is set at the federal milage reimbursement rate
which is currently $0.70 for 2025. SCLTC would establish its own policies to effectively provide this
service in Siskiyou County while protecting against program abuse.

The simplest model would be for SCLTC/STA to administer the program internally. After the initial set up
of the program, it may only require a few hours a week to maintain. In many regions, transportation
reimbursement programs are contracted out to a local social service agency with oversight by the LTC or
public transit operator. Administrative duties include marketing the program, determining eligibility of
applicants, reviewing reimbursement requests and disbursing funds. This often leads to higher actual
cost per mile than if the LTC administered the program, but ridership tends to be higher.

A transportation reimbursement program can be a cost-effective way to provide for the needs of rural
residents, has limited risk for the LTC, and greater flexibility for riders. The disadvantage is that there is
some staff time needed to setup and advertise the program initially.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This strategy addresses all three evaluation criteria. It fills a major gap in

transportation, has a low cost to implementation, and encourages coordination with human service
agencies and transportation providers. This is a high priority strategy.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 60



Strategy 4 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA/SCLTC should implement a mileage reimbursement program.
Tuolumne County’s Transportation Reimbursement would be a good example. In addition to the SCLTC
getting information out to various communities, the program would need to be advertised by social and
medical service providers to their clients. The general guidelines of the program could be as follows:

e The person needing the ride locates his or her own driver,

e Thedriver is then reimbursed for mileage at the IRS mileage reimbursement rate, up to a certain
mileage cap, which is paid to the rider, who in turn pays the volunteer.

e nitially, STA/SCLTC should administer the program. Eligible passengers should include seniors,
disabled and low income. A monthly mileage cap per passenger and eligible trip purposes should
be established. This program could be funded with a small amount of LTF funds, beginning on the
order of S5 — 10,000 annually.

e (Coordination with human service agencies and tribal entities will be important to spread the word
about the new program.

Strategy 5: Improve regional transportation provider coordination through database and
annual meetings.

As part of this coordinated plan effort, a regional transportation provider workshop was held in Yreka.
Attendees included STAGE, Karuk Tribe, Area Agency on Aging, Siskiyou County Human Services, and
private transportation providers. Topics of conversation included an overview of each provider’s
services along with transportation issues they typically encounter. The primary goal of the workshop
was to provide a format for all the transportation related stakeholders in the county to meet and discuss
opportunities for coordination. Following the workshop, the consultant team compiled a database of
transportation provider information in Excel format: Agency, service description, area service, span of
service and eligibility criteria. This database was shared with SCLTC. In the interest of coordination,
SCLTC should maintain, distribute and update this database with the other providers.

Further, SCLTC could annually host a similar regional transportation provider workshop, perhaps as an
extension to an SSTAC meeting. In-person contacts typically garner longer lasting relationships and
improved collaboration. Agenda items for the workshop could include recent changes to services,
planned changes and new grant opportunities.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This low-cost strategy is a relatively easy way to raise awareness about

changes to existing services provided for elderly and disabled residents and increase the potential for
coordination to fill in gaps. This is a high priority strategy.

Strategy 5 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA and STAGE should maintain a shared online database of
contact email addresses and phone numbers of local transportation service providers to distribute
amongst various types of other services in the region (social and medical). This should include an annual
review and verification amongst the providers to ensure that all information is up to date.

Strategy 6: Implement a travel training program.

A travel training program can provide elderly and disabled passengers the confidence to ride the bus
independently. STA should coordinate with social service providers, medical institutions, etc. to contact

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 61



individuals needing transportation but are not frequent users. Travel training programs address the
following for a public transit agency:

¢ Enhances Mobility & Independence — Many individuals, including seniors, people with
disabilities, and those unfamiliar with transit, benefit from hands-on instruction that helps them

confidently travel on their own.

e Boosts Ridership & System Efficiency — By equipping riders with the skills to use public transit
effectively, agencies can increase ridership, optimize service demand, and improve cost-
effectiveness.

e Strengthens Community Engagement — Travel training builds connections between transit
providers and local organizations, fostering trust and collaboration within the community.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This strategy could improve mobility for seniors and disabled residents
who are not currently comfortable riding public transit. This strategy also promotes coordination with
social service providers. Additional staff time would need to be dedicated to this program. This is a low

priority strategy.

Strategy 6 - Responsible Party / Actions: A travel training program can include the following components:
The program should be advertised through STA marketing material as well as the stakeholder database

contacts.

o One-on-One & Group Training — Personalized instruction for individuals or community workshops
to guide new riders through trip planning, fare payments, and safe travel habits.

o Multilingual & Culturally Relevant Materials— Addressing language barriers ensures broader
outreach and support.

e Hands-On Practice & Simulation— Allowing participants to experience real-time transit scenarios
fosters confidence and preparedness.

o Ongoing Support & Refreshers — Periodic check-ins and digital resources help maintain skills and
assist riders as transit systems evolve.

Strategy 7: Improve frequency and coverage of STAGE routes, as resources allow.

During the FY 2023-24 Unmet Transit Needs planning effort, the following service improvements were

deemed “reasonable to meet”:

e Add commuter route: Weed to Mount Shasta before 9:00 AM, return after 5:30 PM.

0 While there is currently two morning routes from Weed to Mount Shasta there is a need
for at least one route leaving Mount Shasta between 5:00 PM and 6:00 PM to
accommodate those working.

e Start service to/from Lake Shastina

0 There are currently no services to/from Lake Shastina. With just over 3,000 people (7
percent of the county’s total population) Lake Shastina represented 27 percent of the
total origin requests from the Online Community Survey, with a specific interest in
connections to and from Yreka.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 62




. Increased frequency to Happy Camp and Saturday service were also major themes from the
online community survey effort.
If SB 125 funding continues beyond the initial four-year period or new funding sources are available,
STAGE should consider increasing transit service to address identified unmet transit needs. Prior to
implementation, STAGE should conduct an evaluation of ridership potential from new/changed services
along with financial feasibility.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This strategy would address transportation gaps and barriers by improving

or increasing service. It would also build on existing services. Financial feasibility is the question and
therefore, it is considered a medium priority strategy.

Strategy 7 - Responsible Party / Actions: To continue to run a successful transit service, an agency must
continue to look for opportunities to maintain efficiency under a constrained budget. STAGE should
conduct a comprehensive review of existing service performance and needs (i.e., passengers per hour,
popular stops, etc.) and make adjustments to service accordingly. Short Range Transit Plans are a way to
measure performance, look for areas to create efficiencies and implement new services. Transit Plans
should also include a capital element. When replacing buses, STAGE should consider peak passenger loads,
senior and disabled needs along with roadway and passenger comfort.

Strategy 8 - Expand marketing for existing STAGE voucher programs to human service
agencies.

In support of the goal to provide reliable public transportation to the County’s most vulnerable
populations, STAGE sells 50-ticket packets at a discounted rate to eligible social service and medical
providers within the county. The agencies can distribute these vouchers to clients as they see fit.

During focus group interviews and workshops, some stakeholders were unaware of the discounted 50-
ticket packets. The online community survey revealed that 63 percent of participants had no reliable
way to get to and from medical appointments. Therefore, expanding marketing efforts to human service
agencies for this program could meet the goals of the coordinated plan.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This strategy meets Evaluation Criteria #3 as it builds upon an existing

program with improved coordination. It is also feasible. This is a medium priority strategy.

Strategy 8 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA and STAGE should annually promote the human service
agency voucher program as part of a separate outreach effort and continued coordination through the
regional transportation provider database.

Strategy 9 - Provide transportation information and support to Siskiyou County youth service
agencies.

During public outreach efforts, the challenge of transporting unhoused youth populations within
Siskiyou County to and from school is an ongoing challenge for various youth service agencies in the
region. With nearly 400 unhoused youth (primarily ages 11-17 years old) currently living in the county,
many find themselves placed in foster homes that are outside their existing communities and familiar
school districts. In support of the coordinated goal to provide reliable public transportation to the
County’s most vulnerable populations, this strategy outlines actions that would bolster coordination and

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 63



education amongst youth service agencies and the children they serve. STAGE should ensure that
agencies such as County Adult Services, Housing Programs, Health & Human Services, and the Office of
Education are included in the regional transportation provider database and annual meetings (Strategy
5). Youth services agencies should also have access to discounted 50-ticket booklets. Lastly, working in
coordination with county school districts to provide travel training programs for their staff and students
would ensure more supportive STAGE scheduling and improved transportation knowledge amongst
students and school staff.

Evaluation and Prioritization: This strategy meets Evaluation Criteria #3 as it builds upon an existing

program with improved coordination. It is also feasible. This is a medium priority strategy.

Strategy 9 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA and STAGE should annually coordinate with youth social
service agencies and county school districts to ensure that the STAGE schedule is most aligned with bell
times (where feasible) and that students are aware of the transportation services available to them.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 64



Chapter 8
TRANSPORTATION FUNDING SOURCES

INTRODUCTION

A wide range of potential transit funding sources is available, particularly within California. The following
discussion provides an overview of these programs.

Federal Funding Sources

The following are brief descriptions of federal transit funding programs available to rural areas.

FTA Capital Program Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Grants

This program allocates funding for capital projects to replace, rehabilitate, and purchase buses, vans,
and related equipment, and to construct bus-related facilities. A sub-program provides competitive
grants for bus and bus facility projects that support low and zero-emission vehicles.

FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities

This recurring program is intended to enhance mobility for seniors and persons with disabilities by
providing funds for programs to serve the special needs of transit-dependent populations beyond
traditional public transportation services and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) complementary
paratransit services. This program consolidates the old New Freedom Program with the Elderly and
Disabled Program. Grants are available for both capital (20 percent local match) and operating purposes
(50% local match) to areas with less than 200,000 in population. Projects to be funded with FTA 5310
funds must be derived from a Coordinated Public Transit Human Services Transportation Plan.

Traditional Section 5310 project examples include:

e Buses and vans

o  Wheelchair lifts, ramps, and securement devices

e Transit-related information technology systems, including scheduling/routing/one-call systems
e  Mobility management programs

e Acquisition of transportation services under a contract, lease, or other arrangement

Nontraditional Section 5310 project examples include:

e Travel training
e Volunteer driver programs

e Construction of an accessible path to a bus stop, including curb cuts, sidewalks, accessible
pedestrian signals, or other accessible features

e Improvements to signage, or way-finding technology
e Incremental cost of providing same-day service or door-to-door service

e Purchase of vehicles to support new accessible taxi, rides sharing, and/or vanpooling programs

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 65



e Mobility management programs

FTA Section 5311 Rural Transit and Intercity Bus

Federal transit funding for rural areas (population of less than 50,000) is currently provided through the
FTA Section 5311 Non-Urbanized Area Formula Grant Program. In California, an 11.47 percent local
funds, administered by Caltrans, are segmented into “apportioned” and “discretionary” programs. The
bulk of the funds are apportioned directly to rural counties based on population levels. The remaining
funds are distributed by Caltrans on a discretionary basis and are typically used for capital purposes.

Rural Transit Assistance Program (RTAP)

The RTAP (49 USC. 5311(b)(3)) provides a competitive source of funding to assist in the design and
implementation of training and technical assistance projects and other support services tailored to meet
the needs of transit operators in non-urbanized areas. RTAP has both state and national program
components. The state program provides an annual allocation to each state to develop and implement
training and technical assistance programs in conjunction with the state’s administration of the Section
5311 formula assistance program. The national program provides for the development of information
and materials for use by local operators and state administering agencies and supports research and
technical assistance projects of national interest. There is no federal requirement for a local match.

State Funding Sources

A mainstay of funding for transit programs in California is provided by the Transportation Development
Act (TDA). The TDA provides two major sources of funding for public transportation: the Local
Transportation Fund (LTF), which began in 1972, and the State Transit Assistance (STA) fund, established
in 1980.

Local Transportation Fund (LTF)

The majority of TDA funds are provided through the LTF. These funds are generated by a one-fourth
cent statewide sales tax and returned to the county of origin. Consequently, LTF funds are based on
local population and spending. The LTF may be allocated by the SCLTC for the following prioritized
purposes:

e Whatever reasonable amount is needed by the SCLTC for TDA administration. This amount
varies between RTPAs.

e Up to 3 percent of annual LTF revenues may be allocated to the RTPA for the conduct of the
transportation planning and programming process.

e Two percent of the remaining amount may be provided for pedestrian and/or bicycle facilities.

e Up to five percent of remaining funds may be allocated for coordinated community transit
services.

e The remaining funds must be spent for transit and paratransit purposes unless the
Transportation Commission finds that either no unmet transit needs or that unmet needs
cannot be reasonably met.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 66



e [f there are no reasonable-to-meet unmet transit needs, remaining funds may be allocated to
local streets and roads to jurisdictions based on population.

State Transit Assistance (STA)

In addition to LTF funding, the TDA includes an STA funding mechanism. The sales tax on diesel fuel is
used to fund public transit operations and capital improvements. This amount is augmented by the
diesel fuel sales tax increase from SB1 that began in 2017.

The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)

LCTOP is one of several programs that are part of the Transit, Affordable Housing, and Sustainable
Communities Program established by the California Legislature in 2014 by Senate Bill 862. The LCTOP
was created to provide recurring operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities.
Eligible projects include new or expanded bus or rail services and expanded intermodal transit facilities
and may include equipment acquisition, fueling, maintenance, and other costs to operate those services
or facilities, as long as each project reduces greenhouse gas emissions. For agencies whose service area
includes disadvantaged communities, at least 50 percent of the total money received shall be expended
on projects that will benefit disadvantaged communities. This program is administered by Caltrans in
coordination with the Air Resource Board (ARB) and the State Controller’s Office (SCO).

Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP)

Also created by SB 862, this competitive program provides funding from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction
Fund, for rail or intercity rail feeder bus projects that reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Eligible
applicants must be public agencies, including joint powers agencies, which operate or have planning
responsibility for existing or planned regularly scheduled intercity or commuter passenger rail service
(and associated feeder bus service to intercity rail services), urban rail transit service, or bus or ferry
transit service (including commuter bus services and vanpool services). The recently passed SB 125 will
change this program to allow use for operations purposes.

Hybrid and Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive Project (HVIP)

Administered by the California Air Resources Board (CARB), this program aims to accelerate the
adoption of cleaner, more efficient trucks and buses by providing fleets based in California with
vouchers when they purchase zero-emission buses. The amount of the voucher depends on vehicle
weight class, type of use, and whether or not it is in a disadvantaged community. For a large transit
vehicle purchase, a transit agency could receive around a $150,000 voucher. The California State Budget
for FY 2025-26 proposes a $132 million investment in zero-emission vehicles. This could create
additional funding sources for ESTA and the County of Inyo to meet CARB’s goal to have a zero-emission
bus fleet by 2040. A variety of smaller credit and voucher programs are available through the state to
assist with the transition to ZEV.

2024 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page 67






Appendix A
DEMOGRAPHIC MAPS

DETAILED DEMOGRAPHIC MAPS

A large proportion of transit riders belong to what is known as the transit-dependent population. The

following demographic maps provide additional context about where transit-dependent persons live in
Siskiyou County, building on the discussion presented in Chapter Two of this Short Range Transit Plan
(SRTP). The subpopulations reviewed in this Appendix include:

Figure A-1, Youths under 18 years of age — most children are unable to drive or do not have
a parent/guardian to give them a ride, yet still have commitments outside of the home.
Those who can drive may not have a car available.

Figure A-2, Senior population ages 65 and older — senior adults need to travel to attend
medical appointments, go grocery shopping, or do other errands, but many are either not
comfortable driving or not able to drive anymore.

Figure A-3, Individuals with a disability — disabled persons may be unable to drive due to
medical concerns.

Figure A-4, The population living below the poverty level — there are many financial barriers
preventing people from owning a private vehicle. The low-income population is defined by
factors such as household income and the number of dependent children.

Figure A-5, Households without a vehicle available — public transit may be the best
alternative for traveling longer distances for those who live in homes without vehicles.

2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix A LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page A-1



2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix A LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page A-2



2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix A LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page A-3



2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix A LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page A-4



2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix A LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page A-5



2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix A LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page A-6



Appendix B
STAGE ROUTE AND SCHEDULE

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix B LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page B-1



Hori

Fo nes

Greenfflew

Gazplle

[ SK L7 OU

P S, O

£

N\

e ] - Cascade Flyer (Express)

2 - Dunsmuir/McCloud/
Yreka

3 - McCloud/Dunsmuir/
Yreka

= 4 - Scott Valley/Hornbrook | .
e 5 - Yreka/Montague Local

6 - Happy Camp/Yreka

J

=7

ger

La
45 a
97

d
v ick

Mo

C O

McClou

hbaista

Dung@huir

we/ [

Tennant

89







Effective: 04/02/2024

Route 1 — Cascade Flyer (Express)

Route 1

Southbound
Stop First Second Third
Yreka Transit Center 7:00 AM 9:55 AM 1:10 PM
Raley's Shopping Center 7:03 AM 9:58 AM 1:13 PM
Weed Dollar General 7:36 AM 10:31 AM 1:46 PM
Weed Boles Creek Apartments 7:36 AM 10:31 AM 1:46 PM
Mt. Shasta Shopping Center 7:52 AM 10:47 AM 2:02 PM
Cedar Lodge 8:05 AM 11:00 AM 2:15 PM
Dunsmuir Dollar General 8:08 AM 11:03 AM 218 PM
Across from Park @ Top of the Hill 8:11 AM 11:06 AM 2:21 PM
Manfredi's 8:30 AM 11:45 AM 2:40 PM
Northbound
Stop First Second Third

Manfredi's 8:30 AM 11:45 AM 2:40 PM
Park @ the Top of the Hill 8:36 AM 11:51 AM 2:46 PM
Dunsmuir Dollar General 8:39 AM 11:54 AM 2:49 PM
Mt. Shasta Shopping Center 8:51 AM 12:06 PM 3:01 PM
Weed Dollar General 9:06 AM 12:21 PM 3:16 PM
Weed Boles Creek Apartments 9:06 AM 12:21 PM 3:16 pm
Raley's Shopping Center 9:38 AM 12:53 PM 3:48 PM
Yreka Museum On Call On Call

Yreka Transit Center 9:55 AM 1:10 PM 3:54 PM




Effective: 04/02/2024 Route 2
Route 2 —-Dunsmuir/McCloud/Yreka
SOUTHBOUND

Stop First Second
Yreka Transit Center 6:00 AM 10:55 AM
Raley's Shopping Center 10:58 AM
Across from Easy Street Mart On Call
Cove Mobile Home Park On Call
Grenada Shasta & Siskiyou On Call
Edgewood On Call
Across from Weed Ray's Market 6:25 AM 11:28 PM
Weed Dollar General 6:30 AM 11:30 AM
Boles Creek Apartments 6:32 AM 11:32 AM
Weed Elementary On Call On Call
Weed City Hall 6:34 AM 11:34 AM
College of the Siskiyous 6:38 AM 11:39 AM
Siskiyou Gardens (Siskiyou Way) 6:41 AM 11:42 AM
Greyhound & Comfort Inn 6:44 AM 11:45 AM
Truck Village On Call On Call
Abrams Lake On Call On Call
Mercy Hospital 6:59 AM 12:00 PM
Dr. Centeno, DDS. 7:01 AM 12:02 PM
Mt. Shasta Shopping Center 7:03 AM 12:19 PM
Berryvale 7:05 AM 12:21 PM
Gold Room 7:07 AM 12:23 PM
Big Red Barn 7:08 AM 12:24 PM
Golden Eagle Charter School 7:08 AM 12:27 PM
Reginato’s 7:30 AM
US Forest Service On Call
Corner of Shasta and Colombero 7:31 AM
Across from McCloud Post Office 7:32 AM
Across from McCloud Community Services Office 7:33 AM
Mt Shasta High School 7:58 AM
Mt Shasta Shopping Center 8:00 AM
Cedar Lodge 8:09 AM
City Park Near Rail Car 8:10 AM
Dunsmuir Dollar General 8:12 AM
All Aboard Espresso 8:15 AM




Effective: 04/02/2024 Route 2
SOUTHBOUND
Stop First Second
Across from Park @ the Top of the Hill 8:17 AM
Parking Lot Before City Hall 8:19 AM
S. Dunsmuir Ave./Branstetter 8:22 AM
Manfredi's 8:25 AM
Crag View Dr. 8:28 AM
Soda Creek 8:33 AM

Castella Post Office

8:38 AM



Effective: 04/02/2024

Route 2

Route 2 -Dunsmuir/McCloud/Yreka Northbound
Stop First Second
Manfredi's 8:54 AM
Branstetter 8:57 AM
Burger Barn 8:58 AM
Park @ the Top of the Hill 9:00 AM
Dunsmuir Inn and Suites 9:01 AM
Dunsmuir Dollar General 9:01 AM
Evergreen Lodge 12:27 PM
Alpine Lodge 12:28 PM
Petal/s Floriest 12:28 PM
Mt Shasta Shopping Center 9:16 AM 12:28 PM
Dignity Health 12:33 PM
Mercy Hospital 12:35 PM
Cold Creek Inn 12:40PM
Valley Pacific 12:41 PM
Mt. Shasta Veterinarian Clinic 12:42 PM
Abrams Lake On Call On Call
Truck Village On Call On Call
Greyhound & Comfort Inn 9:28 AM 12:50 PM
College of the Siskiyous 12:55 PM
Siskiyou Gardens (Siskiyou Way) 12:57 PM
Weed Dollar General 1:00 PM
Boles Creek Apartments 1:01 PM
Weed Elementary On Call
Weed City Hall 1:02 PM
Weed Ray's Market 9:34 AM 1:05 PM
Edgewood On Call On Call
Gazelle Post Office 9:46 AM On Call
Grenada - Shasta & Siskiyou On-Call On Call
Cove Mobile Home Park 10:00 AM On Call
Easy Street Mart On Call On Call
Easy Street and Walters Lane On Call On Call
Westside Road On Call On Call
Raley's Shopping Center 10:11 AM 1:30 PM
Yreka Transit Center 10:14 AM 1:33 PM




Effective: 04/02/2024

Route 3 — McCloud/Dunsmuir/Yreka

Route 3

Southbound

Stop First Second
N Main/Miner Diner 5:10 PM
Carquest 5:11 PM
New Courthouse 5:17 PM
Main Street/Across from Museum 5:18 PM
Yreka Child Support 5:19 PM
Fairchild Medical 5:21 PM
Yreka Transit Center 12:55 PM 5:25 PM
Pfeiffer vacuum 5:25 PM
COS/Across from Behavioral Health 5:25 PM
Chevron/Across from Black Bear Diner 5:26 PM
Raley's Shopping Center 12:58 PM: 5:28 PM
Across from Easy Street Mart On Call On Call
Cove Mobile Home Park On Call 5:38 PM
Grenada Shasta & Siskiyou On Call On-Call
Gazelle Post Office On Call 5:45 AM
Edgewood On Call On Call
Across from Weed Ray's Market 1:25 PM 6:04 PM
Weed Dollar General 1:27 PM 6:06 PM
Boles Creek Apartments 1:29 PM 6:08 PM
Weed Elementary On Call
Weed City Hall 1:31 PM 6:10 PM
College of the Siskiyous 1:35 PM 6:14 PM
Siskiyou Gardens (Siskiyou Way) 1:36 PM 6:15 PM
Greyhound & Comfort Inn 1:41 PM 6:20 PM
Truck Village On Call On Call
Abrams Lake On Call On Call
Mercy Hospital 1:55 PM 6:33 PM
Dr. Centeno, DDS 1:57 PM 6:34 PM
Mt. Shasta Shopping Center 2:00 PM 6:36 PM
Berryvale 2:04 PM On Call
Gold Room 2:05 PM On Call
Big Red Barn 2:06 PM On Call
Golden Eagle Charter School 2:07 PM On Call
Reginato's 2:38 PM




Effective: 04/02/2024 Route 3

Southbound

Stop First Second
US Forest Service Complex On Call
Cedar Lodge 6:46 PM
City Park Near Rail Car 6:47 PM
Dunsmuir Dollar General 6:49 PM
All Aboard Espresso 6:51 PM
Across from Park @ the Top of the Hill 6:53 PM
Parking Lot Before City Hall 6:55 PM
S. Dunsmuir Ave/Branstetter 6:56 PM
Manfredi’s 6:59 PM
Crag View Drive 7:04 PM
Soda Creek 7:07 PM
Castella Post Office 7:12 PM




Effective: 04/02/2024

Route 3

Route 3 — McCloud/Dunsmuir/Yreka Northbound
Northbound

Stop First Second

US Forest Service Complex On Call

Corner of Shasta & Colombero 2:39 PM

Across from McCloud Post Office 2:42 PM

Across from McCloud Community Services Office 2:43 PM

Manfredi’s 7:35 PM

S. Dunsmuir/Branstetter 7:38 PM

Burger Barn 7:39 PM

Park @ the Top of the Hill 7:41 PM

Dunsmuir Inn & Suites 7:42 Pm

Dollar General 7:45 PM

Golden Eagle Charter School 3:00 PM

Mt. Shasta Fitness Club 3:00 PM

Evergreen Lodge 3:01 PM

Alpine Lodge 3:02 PM

Petals Flower Shop 3:05 PM

Mt. Shasta Shopping Center 3:11 PM 7:57 PM

Dignity Health 3:12 PM

Mercy Hospital 3:15 PM

Cold Creek Inn 3:17 PM

Valley Pacific 3:18 PM

Mt. Shasta Veterinarian Clinic 3:19 PM

Truck Village On Call

Abrams Lake On Call

Greyhound & Comfort Inn 3:26 PM 8:08 PM

College of the Siskiyous 3:36 PM 8:09 PM

Siskiyou Gardens (Siskiyou Way) 3:37 PM 8:10 PM

Weed Dollar General 3:40 PM 8:12 PM

Boles Creek Apartments 3:42 PM 8:12 PM

Weed Elementary On Call

Weed City Hall 3:44 PM

Weed Ray's Market 3:48 PM

Edgewood On Call




Effective: 04/02/2024

Route 3

Northbound
Stop First Second
Gazelle Post Office 4:00 PM
Grenada Shasta & Siskiyou On Call
Cove Mobile Home Park 4:12 PM
Easy Street Mart On Call
Easy Street and Walters Lane On Call
Westside Road On Call
Raley's Shopping Center 4:22 PM
Yreka Transit Center 5:00 PM 8:40 PM




Effective: 04/02/2024

Route 4A — Scott Valley/Yreka/Montague

Northbound

Stop First Second Third
Etna City Yard/Howell/Church St. 6:40 AM 9:43 AM 12:06 PM
Across from Etna Ray’s Market 6:45AM  9:48 AM 1211 PM
Etna Motel 6:45AM 948 AM  12:11 PM
Greenview Post Office 6:55 AM  9:58 AM 12:21 PM
Ft. Jones Post Office 7:04 AM  10:07 AM  12:30 PM
Raley's Shopping Center 724 AM 10:25AM  12:48 PM
Yreka Transit Center 727 AM  10:30AM  1:18 PM
Fairchild Medical 729AM  10:32AM  1:20 PM
Mt. Shasta Title 7:33AM  10:34 AM  1:23 PM
Museum 7:34 AM  10:35AM  1:24 PM
New Courthouse 7:36 AM 10:39 AM 1:27 PM
Yreka Motel 7:39AM  10:41 AM  1:29 PM
Dollar General 7:40 AM  10:43 AM 1:31 PM
Hornbrook Post Office 7:55 AM 1:51 PM
Ager Road VIA VIA
Montague Community Center 8:15 AM
Montague 7t" & Webb 8:15 AM
Montague City Hall 8:15 AM

Southbound

Stop First Second Third
N. Main/Miner Diner 834 AM 10:43AM  2:21 PM
Between Carquest and Smokin' Deals 835AM 1044 AM  2:23 PM
New Courthouse 8:39AM 10:46 AM  2:26 PM
Main Street/Across from Museum 840 AM  10:47 AM  2:27 PM
Yreka Child Support 841 AM 1048 AM  2:28 PM
Fairchild Medical 843 AM 1049 AM  2:30 PM
Yreka Transit Center 9:02AM  11:25AM  2:36 PM
Raley's Shopping Center 9:05AM  11:29AM  2:41 PM
Across from Ft. Jones Post Office 926 AM  11:49AM  3:01 PM
Greenview Post Office On Call On Call On Call
Etna City Yard/Howell/Church St. 9:43AM  12:.06 PM  3:30 PM
Across from Etna Ray's Market 9:43 AM  12:06 PM End

Route 4



Effective: 04/02/2024 Route 5

Route 5 — Yreka/Montague Local/Scott Valley Northbound
Stop First Second Third Fourth Fifth

Etna City Yard/Howell/Church St. On Call

Across from Etna Ray’s Market 4:05 PM 6:17 PM
Etna Motel 4:05 PM 6:18 PM
Greenview Post Office On Call

Ft. Jones Post Office 4:18 PM 6:28 PM
Raley’s Shopping Center 10:55 AM 4:36 PM 6:48 PM
Yreka Transit Center 12:20 PM 2:42 PM 4:48 PM 6:51 PM
Pfeiffer Vacuum 12:22 PM 2:44 PM

C.0.S./Across from Behavioral Health 12:23 PM 2:45 PM

Chevron/Across from Black Bear Diner 12:24 PM 2:46 PM

Raley's Shopping Center 12:26 PM 2:48 PM

Rain Rock Casino 12:33 PM 2:55 PM 4:51 PM

Campbell Tracts 12:36 PM 2:58 PM 4:53 PM

Fairchild Medical 12:42 PM 3:04 PM 4:59 PM

Mt. Shasta Title 12:46 PM 3:08 PM 5:02 PM

Museum 11:00 AM 12:47 PM 3:09 PM 5:03 PM

New Courthouse 12:49 PM 3:11 PM 5:05 PM

Y.M.C.A 12:53 PM 3:15 PM 5:09 PM

Yreka Motel 11:00 AM 12:56 PM 3:18 PM 5:11 PM

Yreka Dollar General 11:02 AM 12:57 PM 3:20 PM 512 PM

Montague 7th and Webb 11:15 AM 1:10 PM 5:25 PM

Montague Community Hall 11:15 AM 1:10 PM 5:25 PM

Montague City Hall 11:15 AM 1:10 PM 5:25 PM




Effective: 04/02/2024

Route 5 — Yreka/Montague Local/Scott Valley Southbound
Stops First Second Third Fourth
N. Main/Miner Diner 11:30 AM 1:25 PM 3:20 PM 5:40 PM
Between Carquest and Smokin’ Deals 11:31 AM 1:26 PM 3:21 PM 5:40 PM
Y.M.C.A 11:35 AM 1:30 PM
New Courthouse 11:37 AM 1:32 PM 3:23 PM 5:45 PM
Main Street/Across from Museum 11:40 AM 1:35 PM 3:24 PM
Yreka Child Support 11:41 AM 1:36 PM 3:25 PM
Fairchild Medical 11:43 AM 1:38 PM On Call On Call
Veteran's Services 11:47 AM 1:42 PM -
Campbell Tracts 11:49 AM 1:44 PM -
Rain Rock Casino 11:53 AM 1:48 PM -
Raley's Shopping Center 12:01 PM 1:56 PM
Black Bear Diner 12:03 PM 1:58 PM -
Behavioral Health 12:04 PM 1:59 PM -
Social Security 12:05 PM 2:00 PM -
Yreka Transit Center 12:20 PM 2:42 PM 3:28 PM 5:45 PM
Raleys Shopping Center 3:34 PM 5:48 PM
Across from Ft. Jones Post Office 3:52 PM 6:04 PM
Greenview Post Office On Call On Call
Etna City Yard/Howell On Call On Call
Across from Etna Rays Market 4:05 PM 6:17 PM

Route 5



Effective: 03/10/2025

Happy Camp to Yreka

Stop

Karuk Museum

Happy Camp High School
Partners Deli

Ray’s Market

Indian Meadows

Karuk Head Start

Seiad Valley

Hamburg

Horse Creek

Quigley’s

Across from Dollar General
Six Stones

Carquest

Courthouse

Across from Human Services
Child Support

Fairchild Medical Hospital
Veteran’s Services
Campbell Tracks

Rain Rock Casino

Raley’s

Black Bear Diner
Behavioral Health

Social Security

Transit Center

7:56 AM
7:56 AM
7:59 AM
8:00 AM
8:04 AM
8:08 AM
8:23 AM
8:38 AM
8:48 AM
9:14 AM
9:43 AM
9:43 AM
9:43 AM
9:43 AM
9:45 AM
9:45 AM
9:49 AM
9:52 AM
9:54 AM
9:56 AM
10:02 AM
10:05 AM
10:06 AM
10:07 AM
10:10 AM

Route 6



Effective: 03/10/2025

Route 6 — Happy Camp

Yreka to Happy Camp

Stop

Raley’s

Black Bear Diner

Behavioral Health

Social Security

Transit Center

Fairchild Medical Hospital
Veteran’s Services

Campbell Tracts

Rain Rock Casino

Mt Shasta Title Co.

Human Services

Courthouse

Corner of Main St. and Meamber
Dollar General

Klamath River/Quigley’s

Horse Creek

Hamburg

Seiad Valley

Karuk Head Start “Drop off only
Indian Meadows “Drop off only
Ray’s Market “Drop off only
Double J “Drop off only

Happy Camp High School “Drop off
only

Karuk Museum *“Drop off only

3:00 Pm
3:02 PM
3:03 PM
3:04 PM
3:06 PM
On Call
3:08 PM
3:10 PM
3:12 PM
3:17 PM
3:18 PM
3:19 PM
3:21 PM
3:22 PM
4:04 PM
4:20 PM
4:30 PM
4:41 PM
*5:05 PM
*5:08 PM
*5:11 PM
*5:12 PM
*5:14 PM

*5:14 PM

Route 6



Appendix C
ONLINE COMMUNITY SURVEY RESULTS

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-1



Appendix C
ONLINE COMMUNITY SURVEY RESULTS

INTRODUCTION

The online community survey conducted for the 2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Plan (Coordinated
Plan) was conducted over several weeks in May and June 2025. The survey instrument was a 17-
guestion survey made available online in English and Spanish. To inform the public of the survey effort,
regional stakeholders were asked to pass along information to their clientele and post fliers with QR
codes and links to the survey. The survey was targeted at all residents of Siskiyou County, including
those who do not use public transit on a regular basis. The survey received a total of 144 responses in
English, with O participants taking the survey in Spanish.

DEMOGRAPHICS
Age

Participants were asked to provide their age (Figure C-1). The survey received only 1 percent of
responses from individuals 18 years old or younger and 3 percent of responses from adults aged 19 to
30. The majority of responses were either from those aged 31 to 45 (36 percent) or those who were
aged 46 to 60 (35 percent). Older respondents accounted for a combined 24 percent, with those aged 61
to 75 accounting for 20 percent of responses and those 76 years old or older accounting for 4 percent of
responses.

Figure C-1: Age
0-18 Total Respondents: 142
18-30
g 31-45 36%
©
L 46-60 35%
61-75
76+
0% 10% 20% 30% 40%
Percentage of Respondents

Household Vehicle Access

Participants were asked how many working vehicles their household had access to, as a lack of vehicle
access is a significant factor contributing to transit dependence. A total of 142 participants responded to
this question (Figure C-2).

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-2



Only 7 percent of responses reported no household access to vehicles. The majority of participants

reported having access to at least one or more vehicles in their households (93 percent combined).

45%

Figure C-2: Vehicles Available

40%

40%

Total Respondents: 142

35%

30%

30%

25%

24%

20%

15%

Percentage of Respondents

10% 7%
5%

D% - T

1 Vehicle

Number of Household Vehicles Available

2 Vehicles 3 or more Vehicles

TRANSIT USE

Transit and Specialized Transportation Service Use

Participants were asked if they use public transit or specialized transportation services, such as

paratransit, to meet some or all of their travel needs. This question was presented in a yes-or-no format,

and 142 participants provided an answer (Figure C-3). Only 9 percent of participants reported using

these services for some or all of their travel needs, while the remaining 91 percent of participants

indicated that they did not use these services.

Participants were also asked if they had any friends or family members who use transit services to meet

some or all of their transportation needs in a yes-or-no format. This question was answered by 142

participants (Figure C-4). Compared to the earlier question, a significantly higher number of participants

reported that they have friends or family who use public or specialized transportation services to meet

Figure C-3: Personal
Transportation Service Use

No, | DO NOT use
transit or
transportation
services to meet
travel needs
91%

service
trave

Total Respondents: 142

Yes, | use transit
or transportation

s to meet
I needs.
9%

Figure C-4: Family and Friend
Transportation Service Use

No, my

friends/family Yes, my
DO NOT use friends/family
transit or use transit or
transportation transportatio
services to n services to
meet travel meet travel
needs. needs.

50% 50%

Total Respondents: 142

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page C-3



some or all of their travel needs (50 percent). The other 50 percent of responses indicated that they did
not have friends or family members who used these services.

The combination of these questions suggests that while transit use is not widespread among the survey
participants, there are likely many individuals who rely on transportation services but did not participate
in the survey.

Use of Regional Transit Provider Services

Participants were asked if they used services provided by various agencies operating within the region
and were allowed to select any or all of the agencies and services they used. There was also an option
for participants to select if they had not heard of any of these providers. This question received 84
responses (Figure C-5).

Among those who responded, the majority of participants (58 percent) reported using Siskiyou Transit
and General Express (STAGE), followed by 33 percent who used Amtrak and 18 percent who used Evans
Transportation. Approximately 14 percent indicated they used other unspecified providers, while 13
percent of respondents stated they had not heard of any of the listed providers. Smaller shares reported
using Dignity Health transportation services (4 percent), Redding Area Bus Authority (RABA) (2 percent),
and Shasta Shuttle (2 percent).

Figure C-5: Use of Regional Transit or Transportation Service

Siskiyou Transit and General Express (STAGE) 58%
Amtrak

Evans Transportation

Other Unspecified Providers

| have not heard of any of these providers
Dignity Health

Shasta Shuttle

Redding Area Bus Authority (RABA)

Transportation Services Used by Respondents

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Total Respondents: 84 Percentage of Respondents

Social Service Transit Providers

Participants were asked if they used services from any regional social service or transit providers, with
the option to select all agencies whose services they use. The question was answered by 63 participants
(Figure C-6).

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-4



Figure C-6: Social Services Use

| have not heard of any of these providers 56%

Siskiyou County Human Service Department
(SCHSD) Adult And Children’s Services

Far Northern Regional Center
Mt. Shasta Recreation and Parks District

Madrone Hospice Inc

Social Services Used by Respondents

PSA 2 Area Agency on Aging 5%
|

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Total Respondents: 63 Percentage of Resondents

More than half of the participants who answered the question (56 percent) reported that they had not
heard of any of the listed providers in Siskiyou County. Among those who were familiar with local
services, the Siskiyou County Human Services Department (SCHSD) Adult and Children’s Services was
reported as being used the highest, with 24 percent of responses. Other agencies that participants
selected include the Far Northern Regional Center (14 percent), Mt. Shasta Recreation and Parks District
(13 percent), Madrone Hospice Inc. (11 percent), and the PSA 2 Area Agency on Aging (5 percent).

POTENTIAL UNMET TRANSIT NEEDS
Transit Needs Within Siskivou County

Participants were asked if they ever needed a ride to destinations within Siskiyou County and were
unable to get one. The yes-or-no question was answered by 141 participants. One-third of respondents
(33 percent) reported that they needed a ride in Siskiyou County but did not have one. The remaining 67
percent stated that they always have a ride available to make trips to where they need to go in Siskiyou
County.

For those participants who needed a ride in Siskiyou County but did not have one, a follow-up question
asked them to list the places they needed a ride to or from. Table C-1 displays the responses from the
participants with specific locations generalized to their respective communities, and the results for both
requested origin (“From”) and requested destination (“To”) combined.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-5



Table C-1: Unmet Transit Needs Within Siskiyou County

Requested Origin Requested Destination
Community # %
Yreka 12 | 16 B s | 28 93% |
Lake Shastina 8 0 0% 8 L %
Fort Jones 6 B 20% 0 0% 6 B | 20%
Mount Shasta 1 B 3% 5 B 17% 6 B | 20%
Weed 3 b 0% 3 | W 10% 6 L | 20%
Dunsmuir 0 0% 3 [ 10% 3 [ 10%
Etna 2 [ 7% 1 1 3% 3 [ 10%
Happy Camp 1 B 3% 2 Bl 7% 3 [ 10%
Dorris 1 B 3% 1 1] 3% 2 | 7%
Montague 1 B 3% 1 ] 3% 2 [ 7%
Redding (Shasta County) 1 B 3% 1 1] 3% 2 [ 7%
Cove Mobile Home Park (Transit Stop) 0 0% 1 1 3% 1 ] 3%
Easy Street Market (Transit Stop) 1 B 3% 0 0% 1 3%
Hornbrook 1 D 3% 0 0% 1 ﬂ 3%
McCloud 0 0% 1 [ 3% 1 3%
Quartz Valley 0 0% 1 ] 3% 1 [ 3%
Sawyers Bar 0 0% 1 U 3% 1 ﬂ 3%
Greenview 1 Bl 3% 0 0% 1 | 3%
Tulelake 0 0% 1 ] 3% 1| 3%
Weaverville 0 0% 1 U 3% 1 ﬂ 3%
Total Respondents: 30
2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-6



The majority of requests participants made for locations in Siskiyou County originated from or were

destined for Yreka. 40 percent of origin requests and 53 percent of destination requests listed Yreka,
accounting for 93 percent of the total participant responses. This underscores Yreka’s central role in
regional transportation needs, both as a starting point and destination for travel.

Other notable destinations included Lake Shastina (27 percent of origin requests), Fort Jones (20
percent), and Weed and Mount Shasta (each at 10 percent and 3 percent, respectively, for origin and
destination combined). Although some locations, such as Dunsmuir, Etna, and Happy Camp, appeared
with lower frequency (10 percent each), their repeated mention still indicates a localized demand for
improved connectivity.

Several smaller or more rural communities—including McCloud, Hornbrook, Greenview, and Sawyers
Bar—had isolated requests, suggesting occasional but potentially critical needs for transit access in more
remote parts of the county. Overall, the data highlights a clear concentration of unmet demand
centered around Yreka, as well as the importance of ensuring reliable connections to surrounding
communities.

The Origin/Destination pairs for unmet travel in Siskiyou County requested are presented in Table C-2. A
total of 39 unmet transit origin/destination pairs were requested by 30 participants. The most
commonly requested destination was Yreka, with 16 trips originating from 10 different locations,
including Lake Shastina (4), Weed (2), Fort Jones (1), and others. This further reinforces Yreka’s role as a
key regional destination in need of stronger transit connectivity.

Other notable destinations included Mount Shasta (5 requests), Weed and Dunsmuir (3 each), and a
variety of rural or hard-to-reach locations such as Etna, Redding, and Tulelake, each with one request.

Most origin points were distributed across smaller communities, with Lake Shastina (8 origin requests)
and Fort Jones (6) being among the more frequently cited starting points. Some rural areas, like Etna,
Hornbrook, and Greenview, appeared with one or two requests each.

Participants who initially answered yes to needing rides within Siskiyou County that they did not have
were also asked about the purpose of these trips they were unable to make. Figure C-7 shows the
responses given by the 32 participants who answered this question. The most common reason for
needing a ride was for medical appointments, reported by 63 percent of participants. Shopping/Errands
was the second most frequent reason, with 50 percent of responses by participants, followed by 31
percent of participants reporting needing to commute to or from work, and 25 percent of participants
needing to commute to or from school/educational training.

A key finding from this series of survey questions is the potential need to explore service expansions to
Yreka, Weed, and Mount Shasta from more rural and remote communities across Siskiyou County,
destinations participants reported needing to reach for accessing healthcare, stores and services, work,
and school.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-7



Table C-2: Unmet Origin/Destination Pairs in Siskiyou County

Requested Destination

Yreka

Mount
Shasta

Weed

Dunsmuir

Happy
Camp

Cove
Mobile
Home Park

Dorris Etna Montague

Quartz
Valley

Sawyers
Bar

Weaverville

McCloud

Redding

Tulelake

Total
Origin

Requested Origin

Dorris

0

Easy Street Market

Etna

Fort Jones

Greenview

Happy Camp

Hornbrook

Lake Shastina

Montague

Mount Shasta

Redding

Weed

Yreka

(=3 =} [«} | V) o} (o} (o} | _J lo} lo} (=]

RlO|lO|O|O|rr|O|lO|O | |Oo|Oo |

RlO|lO|0O|O|R|O|O|O |k |O|O|OC

NO|lO|Oo|Oo|o|o|o|0o |0 |o|o|o

R|O|O|O|O|Oo|o|o|Oo |0 |o|o

[l [el e} o] [«] o] [} (o} (o} [o} o} (o} [«
[l [=l=}e] [} (o] [} (o} (o} [o} o} (o} [«
R|lO|O|O|Oo|Oo|o|o|o|Oo|o|o|o

RlOlO|0O|0O|O|O|Oo|O|O|o|Oo|O

(===l =] =] o} (o} (o} (o} (o} (o} (=]

R|O|O|O|O|O|O|Oo|O|O|O|O|O

olo|lo|0o|o|o|o|o|o|r|o|o|o

olo|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|r|o|lo|o

olo|lo|o|o|o|o|r|O|O|o|o |

O N 0 N N (N SR T

Total Destination:

EHNOD—‘HID—‘OI—‘I—\ND—‘H

v

w

w

N

(=Y

[y
[y
(=Y

=

=

[y

=

(=Y

[y

w
(]

Total Respondents:

30

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page C-8



Figure C-7: Trip Purpose (In Siskiyou County)

Social Services Appointment

Going Home

Recreation

Commute To/From School or Educational Training

Commuting To/From Work

Shopping/Errands

Purpose of Trip in Siskiyou County

Travel To/From a Medical Appointment 63%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Total Respondents: 32 Percentage of Respondents

Transit Needs Outside Siskivou County

Participants were asked if they ever needed rides to destinations outside of Siskiyou County and were
unable to get one. Of the 130 participants who answered, 72 percent of participants responded to
always having a ride to travel outside of Siskiyou County, while 28 percent reported needing a ride to
destinations outside of Siskiyou County but not having transportation. This question was the first in a
three-part series for those who initially answered "yes” to needing a ride.

As shown in Table C-3, 27 participants identified the destinations outside of Siskiyou County that they
were not able to get a ride to. The top destinations participants needed to reach outside of Siskiyou
County included Medford, OR (56 percent of participants), Redding (48 percent of participants), and
Ashland, OR (15 percent of participants). These destinations are tied to access to healthcare, major
shopping centers, and transportation connections such as airports.

Yreka was the most frequently requested trip origin, listed by 67 percent of participants, reinforcing its
role as a regional hub even for those starting outside the county Other destinations outside the county
that were mentioned multiple times include Chico and Sacramento (7 percent of participants each), and
individual mentions of farther locations like Coos Bay, Davis, Red Bluff, San Francisco, and even
Washington State.

The Origin/Destination pairs for unmet travel outside of Siskiyou County are presented in Table C-4. A
total of 43 origin/destination requests were submitted by 27 participants. The most commonly
requested destination was Medford, OR, with 15 trips originating from communities such as Yreka (5),
Etna (3), Mount Shasta (2), and others. This highlights the strong demand for interregional travel into
southern Oregon, likely for shopping, medical, and regional connections.

Redding was the second most frequently mentioned destination, with 13 requests from eight different
communities. Other out-of-county destinations included Ashland, OR (4 requests), Chico and
Sacramento (2 each), and individual requests for San Francisco, Davis, Washington State, Red Bluff, Coos
Bay, and Rogue Valley.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-9



Table C-3: Unmet Transit Needs to Locations Outside of Siskiyou County

Requested Origin Requested Destination
Community # % # %

Yreka 18 67% | o 0% 18 |
Medford, OR 0 0% 15 B s6% 15

Redding 0 0% 13 W 48% | 13

Etna 5 B 19% 0 0% 5 B 19%
Mount Shasta 5 B 19% 0 0% 5 B 19%
Ashland, OR 0 0% 4 B 15% 4 B 15%
Fort Jones 4 B | 15% 0 0% 4 B 15%
Hornbrook 3 L] 1% 1 [ 4% 4 L | 15%
Lake Shastina 3 ] 1% 0 0% 3 Ll 1%
Chico 0 0% 2 I 7% 2 | 7%
Montague 2 [ 7% 0 0% 2 [ 7%
Sacramento 0 0% 2 D 7% 2 D 7%
Weed 2 [ 7% 0 0% 2 [ 7%
Coos Bay, OR 0 0% 1 [ 4% 1l 4%
Davis 0 0% 1 [ 4% 1l 4%
Greenview 1 D 4% 0 0% 1 ﬂ 4%
Red Bluff 0 0% 1 [ 4% 1 [ 4%
Rogue Valley 0 0% 1 [ 4% 1|l 4%
San Francisco 0 0% 1 [ 4% 1l 4%
Washington 0 0% 1 [ 4% 1l 4%

Total Respondents: 27
2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page C-10



Table C-4: Unmet Origin/Destination Pairs - Out of County

Requested Destination
Medford, Redding Ashland, Chico |Sacramento |Hornbrook Sarl Davis Washington Red Bluff Coos Bay, | Rogue Total Pairs
OR OR Francisco State OR Valley, OR
Etna 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5
< |FortJones 2 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
g" Greenview 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
_05 Hornbrook 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 3
g Lake Shastina 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
g |Montague 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2
Z [Mount Shasta 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
% |Weed 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Yreka 4 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 18
Subtotal Pairs: 15 13 4 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 43
Total Respondents: 27
2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-11



Yreka stood out as the most common location of origin, with 18 outbound requests to a wide range of
destinations. Other frequent origin points included Etna (5 requests), Mount Shasta (5), and Fort Jones
(4), indicating that residents in more rural communities are seeking better access to regional hubs both
within and beyond the county. The variety and geographic spread of the destinations underscore the
importance of interregional connectivity for residents throughout Siskiyou County.

Participants were then asked about the purpose of their out-of-county trips; a breakdown of the 27
responses is provided in Figure C-8 below. Similar to the in-county series of questions, attending medical
appointments was the most common reason, cited by 81 percent of participants. Shopping/errands was
the second most frequent reason, with 44 percent of participants. Traveling to school and recreational
reasons were each reported by 19 percent of participants. The least frequently selected purposes, each
receiving 11 percent of responses, were commuting to or from work and traveling to the airport.

Figure C-8: Trip Purpose (Out of County)

Going to or from a medical appointment 81%

Shopping/Errands

Recreational

Going to or from school or educational
training

Traveling to Airport

Going to or from work

Purpose of Trip Outside of Siskiyou County

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

Total Respondents: 27 Percentage of Responses

SERVICE NEEDS

Participants were asked which days of the week they generally need transportation, and 41 participants
responded (Figure C-9). Weekday transportation needs were consistently high, with Monday through
Wednesday each seeing 83 percent of participants, Thursday reported by 80 percent of participants, and
Friday reported by 78 percent of participants. Weekend transportation needs declined significantly, with
49 percent of participants needing transportation on Saturdays and 34 percent of participants needing
transportation on Sundays.

Figure C-10 shows which times of day when transportation is needed by the 43 participants who
responded to the question. The peak transportation times were all between 8:00 AM and 6:00 PM, with
an average of 60 percent of participants needing transportation services between these times. Late
night from 9:00 PM to Midnight (21 percent of participants) and Midnight to 6:00 AM (9 percent of
participants) were the least requested times of day participants reported needing transportation.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-12



Figure C-9: Days Transportation Needed
o0% 83% 83% 83%
. . . 80% 78%
80% - ’
n
# 70% -
[
o
c
2 60% -
@
£ 49%
s 50% - °
@
Qo
£ 40% —
§ 34%
3
C 30% -
20% A
10% -
0% - T T T T T T
Monday Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday
Total Respondents: 41 Day of Week Transportation is Needed

Figure C-10: Time Transportation Needed

9:00 p.m. to midnight
6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.
4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 60%
Noon to 4:00 p.m. 60%
8:00 a.m. to noon 63%

6:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m.

Time of Day Transportation is Needed

Midnight to 6:00 a.m.

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Total Respondents: 43 Percentages of Respondents

Barriers To Public Transit Use

Participants were asked to identify any issues that prevented them from using public transit or other
privately provided transportation services. A total of 93 participants responded, and a full breakdown of
their responses is provided in Figure C-11 below.

The top three barriers were that the bus route, service schedule, or frequency did not meet participant
needs (55 percent of responses), difficulty finding schedule and service information (40 percent of
participants), and the reliability of services (32 percent of participants). The least frequently reported
barriers were a lack of wheelchair-accessible vehicles, never considering using the service, and that
Uber/Lyft are not accessible in Siskiyou County, each being selected by 5 percent of participants.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-13



Bus route/schedule/frequency doesn’t match my needs

Difficulty finding schedules/information

Reliability of services

Too far to walk to access service

Does not apply / there are no issues deterring me from using these services
Too expensive

Family/friends help me

| do not know how to use listed services

Barriersto Transit Use

| do not qualify for transportation programs

| have personal safety concerns, health concerns, or am apprehensive/fearful
Uber/Lyft are not accessible in Siskiyou County

I've just never considered usingthese services

Wheelchair accessible vehicles are not available when | need them

Total Respondents: 75

Figure C-11: Issues Preventing Transit Use

55%

0%

10%

20% 30% 40%

Percentage of Respondents

50%

60%

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Page C-14



Open-Ended Comments

Participants were allowed to provide additional comments or suggestions. In total, 19 participants
submitted a variety of feedback, with a full listing of comments provided in Table C-5 below. The
comments reveal a mix of appreciation and frustration regarding public transportation services in the
rural county. Many participants expressed gratitude for the existing services and the kindness of the
drivers. However, there are notable concerns about the availability and accessibility of transportation,
especially for the elderly, disabled, and those without personal vehicles. Common requests include more
reliable and frequent services, particularly for medical appointments and trips outside the county, as
well as the need for insurance-covered non-emergency medical transportation.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-15



Table C-5: Respondent Comments

Access to community events and rural activities.

Bus never matches up with my schools schedule | have to hang around Yreka for a few hours before | get to go home.

Buses on Saturday's during the summer. Buses out of county to connect to other services

During the summer/early fall season, there is an increased need for transportation to/from Etna and Seiad Valley
which this survey doesn’t seem to take into account.

Even though | don't personally use it, | recognize the critical importance of it for many people in our community. We
should continue looking for opportunities to provide continued and improved transportation access, especially for
those who need it most. Please recognize many elderly and poor people will not see or reply to this online survey.

Have transportation to/from the airport would be very helpful.

I have transportation but | work for the Siskiyou Resource Collaborative and many of our clients have no
transportation and have difficulty getting resources due to limited STAGE schedules.

| personally have access to a reliable vehicle, but | work at a school where many of our students and families face
transportation issues, specifically with getting children to and from school in Mt. Shasta and Yreka, and to College of
the Siskiyous.

| wanted to start UBER in Scott Valley, but the cost to the riders is too much.

I would use transit if it ran M-S and would get me to work and from work in a timely manner. It also costs $4 a ride
with no discounts. Should really be no more than $2.50 for regular riders with breaks on monthly passes (which
would make sense at about $70/mo for regular riders), breaks for students at $1.25/ride or student monthly passes,
breaks for Siskiyou County Employees at $50/mo for monthly passes, breaks for folks on welfare programs like
CalWORKs, breaks for elders at $1.25 a ride or monthly passes, breaks for tribal employees at $50/monthly pass... it
would be smart to provide a low cost shuttle for STAGE users to the Casino. It would be smart to run on Saturdays...
people work on Saturdays too. Have alook at RVTD. Get some sponsors. Talk with the Karuk Casino.

If there were options in our area, | would like my kids to use public transportation.

It would be nice to have something to help people off of the I-5 corridor.

It would be so helpful if there was even ONE shuttle to Redding from Siskiyou County.

Just that lots of people from Happy Camp really need transportation out and around Yreka.

My husband rode the STAGE for 10+ years to work. I'm not working now, but would consider riding the bus from Etna
to Yreka to save gas money. Getting on the bus from Kellems Lane would be a concern as well as the schedule for an
8-5job. Thank you for providing this valuable service to our community!

Partnership provides transportation to medical and dental care.

The STAGE schedule and map is very complicated to read and to figure out. | have traveled to Europe and have better
luck traveling their public transportation than Siskiyou County. | feel the STAGE accommodates people that aren't
working 8-5. Weekend ends are needed as well.

They need to add a bus stop at the Siskiyou Crossroads apartments.

When | went through cancer treatment, it was a struggle to get back and forth as | did not have a support system.
| had to stay in Redding the day before and after my treatment so that | could drive myself. The Greyhound bus
doesn't even stop in Yreka anymore.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix C LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page C-16



Appendix D
ONLINE COMMUNITY SURVEY INSTRUMENT

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix D LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page D-1



Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Online Community Survey

Welcome to our online community survey! The Siskiyou Transportation Agency and Siskiyou County Local
Transportation Commission aims to better understand existing transportation and transit conditions in the region.

Your input will influence future recommended strategies that aid the community’s access to transportation and
transit. Let’s begin!

1. What is your age?

D 18 years or younger D 46-60
| 1930 | | 6175
| | 3145 | | 76 years or older

2. How many working vehicles does your household have access to?

D None D 3 or more Vehicles

D 1 Vehicle D None

D 2 Vehicles

3. Do you use transit and/or specialized transportation services to meet some or all of your
travel needs? Specialized transportation services are programs catered to the needs of
specific groups, such as the elderly or disabled.

D Yes
D No

4. Do you have friends or family members who use transit and/or specialized transportation
services to meet some or all of their travel needs?

D Yes
D No



5. Which of these public and private transit providers, if any, do you use (Check all that
apply).

D Siskiyou Transit and General Express (STAGE) D Evans Transportation

D Redding Area Bus Authority (RABA) D Shasta Shuttle

D Amtrak D Dignity Health

D Other D I have not heard of any of these providers

6. Which of these social service and transit providers services, if any, do you use (?) Check all
that apply

D Madrone Hospice Inc

D Mt. Shasta Recreation and Parks District

D PSA 2 Area Agency on Aging

D Siskiyou County Human Service Department (SCHSD) Adult And Children’s Services
D Far Northern Regional Center

D I have not heard of any of these providers

7. Do you ever need a ride to destinations within Siskiyou County and do not have one?

D Yes
D No

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Online Community Survey

8. Where within Siskiyou County do you need to go but can’t currently find a ride?

to:

from:




9. What is the purpose of this trip? (Please select all that apply.)
D Going to or from a medical appointment
D Going to or from work
|| Going shopping
D Going to or from school or educational training

D Other (please specify)

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Online Community Survey

10. Do you ever need a ride to destinations outside Siskiyou County and do not have one?

D Yes
| | No

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan

Online Community Survey

11. Where outside Siskiyou County do you need to go but can’t currently find a ride?

to:

from:




12. What is the purpose of this trip? (Please select all that apply.)

Going to or from a medical appointment

Going to or from work

Going shopping

Going to or from school or educational training

Other (please specify)

13. What days of the week do you generally need transportation (either receiving a ride or
using public transit/services)? Please skip this question if it does not apply. (Please select all

that apply.)

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday

Thursday

Friday
Saturday

Sunday

14. What times of the day do you generally need transportation (either receiving a ride or
using public transit/services)? Please skip this question if it does not apply. (Please select all

that apply.
Midnight to 6:00 a.m.
6:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m.
8:00 a.m. to noon

Noon to 4:00 p.m.

4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.
6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.

9:00 p.m. to midnight

15. What issues, if any, prevent you from being able to use public transportation,
taxis/Uber/Lyft, and other services? (Please select all that apply.)

I do not know how to use listed services
Reliability of services

Difficulty finding schedules/information

Too far to walk to access service

Bus schedule/frequency doesn’t match my needs

Too expensive

Other (please specify)

I do not qualify for transportation programs
Family/friends help me

I have personal safety concerns, health concerns,
or am apprehensive/fearful

Wheelchair accessible vehicles are not available
when I need them

I've just never considered using these services

Does not apply / there are no issues deterring me
from using these services



16. Is there anything else you would like to add?

17. Do you want to know more about transit and other specialized transportation services
available to you? If so, please provide your name and email:

Name:

Email:

Thank you so much for participating in our survey! If you have any
questions, please reach out to:

Ari Keplinger, Assistant Planner
LSC Transportation Consultants
ari@lsctrans.com
(530) 583-4053



Appendix E
TRANSPORTATION SERVICE AGENCY SURVEY RESULTS

INTRODUCTION

During the development of the Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan (Coordinated Plan), an
inventory of existing public, non-profit, social service, and private transportation providers in Siskiyou
County was taken. The Transportation Service Agency Survey (TSA Survey) was designed to gather more
information about existing providers, including specific program eligibility requirements and service
areas, current coordination agreements, and recent operations data, among other topics. The TSA
Survey Instrument can be seen in Appendix F.

The TSA Survey was distributed to the existing transportation services providers identified in Chapter 3
(“Inventory of Transportation Services”) by email, and attendees of the Transportation Provider
Workshop held on May 14", 2025, were offered printed copies of the survey to complete and return.
Agency representatives were able to complete the TSA Survey from May 9% to June 16™, 2025. Each
organization received three reminders to participate during that time period. Overall, seven
transportation providers completed the TSA Survey.

Operating data provided by the agency representatives for the TSA Survey is summarized under the
appropriate agency description in Chapter 3. Takeaways related to unmet transportation needs and
recommended coordination strategies are summarized both in Chapter 6 and this appendix. Other,
more detailed results generated by the TSA Survey are also summarized in this appendix.

DETAILED SURVEY RESULTS
Respondent Organization Information

The following transportation providers or organizations participated in the TSA Survey:

e Siskiyou County Department of Health and Human Services Agency- Adult Services (SCHHSA -
Adult Services)

e Dignity Health Connected Living (DHCL)

e Far Northern Regional Center (FNRC)

e Southern Cascades Community Services District (Southern Cascades CSD)
e Madrone Senior Services

e Karuk Tribe

e Mt. Shasta Taxi

These organizations can be classified into the following categories:

e Non-profit, social service organizations (3 respondents)

Private non-profit transportation companies (1 respondent)

County government agencies (1 respondent)

Tribal Government (1 respondent)

Private for-profit transportation company (1 respondent)

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix E LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page E-1



Unmet Transportation Needs in the Siskivou Region

The TSA Survey asked providers to describe any transportation needs that they feel are currently unmet
in Siskiyou County. The TSA Survey participants identified the following current, unmet transportation
needs:

e lack of non-medical transportation options (e.g., food, shopping, entertainment, employment)
in rural and smaller town areas.

e Affordable, timely transportation is needed both locally and for regional travel (e.g., to airports,
bus lines, and specialists).

e No public transit currently operates between Happy Camp and Somes Bar (along SR-96 and
Salmon River Road).

e FNRC clients require more frequent service options due to varied activity schedules throughout
the day.

e Many rural residents need transportation to medical facilities outside their community,
especially in and around Yreka.

e Residents without Partnership Health are unable to access necessary transport services,
particularly seniors and people with disabilities.

e Transportation to addiction recovery centers (e.g., in Redding) is a notable unmet need.

Existing Coordination Agreements

Existing coordination agreements between transportation providers in Siskiyou County include:

e Siskiyou County Department of Health and Human Services Agency- Adult Services

0 Adult Services clients currently use Partnership Healthplan of California for medical-
related transportation

0 Madrone Senior Services for other transportation needs within their service area,
depending on availability.

0 The agency also has two drivers available that are primarily assigned to Child Protective
Services, who can be used for Adult Protection Services clients when needed/available
for short-term or emergency needs.

e Dignity Health Connected Living (DHCL)

O DHCL currently has a transportation agreement with Shasta Regional Transit Authority,
which is the current Consolidated Transportation Services Agency (CTSA) contract
holder. Once the Redding Area Bus Authority (RABA) takes over the CTSA contract on
July 1st, 2025, they will pursue a transportation agreement with them.

0 Title llI-B transportation service funded through PSA 2 Area Agency on Aging.

0 Vendor for rides for Far Northern Regional Center members.

0 It should be noted that DHCL does not currently provide rides for Siskiyou County
residents.

e Far Northern Regional Center (FNRC)

0 Due to the rural setting, FNRC has to rely on vendors to assist with Transportation.

Often this type of transportation is set to or from a specific location.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix E LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page E-2



e Southern Cascades Community Services District (Southern Cascades CSD)
0 Currently contracted with Partnership Health of California.
0 Southern Cascades CSD is actively looking to expand its service area and work with
additional agencies to fill transportation gaps in rural Northern California.
e Karuk Tribe
0 The Karuk Tribe medical clinic provides medical transport for their patients (available to
all patients, tribal or non-tribal).
e Mt. Shasta Taxi
0 Local service offering taxi, airport, and charter services
0 Provides:

= NEMT Services for those using Partnership Health.

= Emergency room transportation with Mercy Mt. Shasta.

=  Evacuation transportation with Shasta View Nursing Home.

= Registered with the VA clinic in Redding.

= Registered with Workers’ Compensation Medical Transportation brokers,
including OneCall.

Populations Served

Figure E-1 summarizes what population segments are served by the organizations/agencies that
completed the TSA Survey. Of the seven stakeholders who responded and represent
organizations/agencies which provide transportation assistance, seven serve elderly persons, six serve
people with sensory disabilities (including vision loss or deafness), mental disabilities, physical
disabilities, persons with a low income, or veterans. Those who serve unemployed persons were
reported by five of the participating organizations/agencies. Comparatively, not as many of the
organizations represented in the results cater towards the specific needs of youths, the general public,
or those seeking addiction treatment.

Figure E-1: Population Served

Elderly 7
People with Sensory Disabilities
People with Physical Disabilities
People with Mental Disabilities

Low Income

QY

Veterans
Unemployed 5
Youth 4
General Public 4

Population Served

People seeking Addiction Treatment 1

Number of Responding Providers

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix E LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page E-3



Several providers only serve their own clients or program participants and do not offer services to the
general public. Specific eligibility-related limitations reported include:

e Some providers do not have the required permits to transport youth under the age of 18.

e Certain services are limited to those with developmental disabilities.

e Organizations like Madrone Senior Services primarily serve those aged 60+, due to funding
restrictions through the Area Agency on Aging.

e Many vulnerable populations, including veterans and seniors without adequate insurance, often
face barriers to service if they either 1) lack coverage through Partnership HealthPlan and/or 2)
are only covered under Medicare, which typically does not cover non-emergency transportation
to areas in California.

Areas Served

The six TSA Survey respondents who responded to this question reported serving a wide range of areas
across Siskiyou County, with the most commonly served location being Yreka (five providers), followed
by McCloud (four providers), and several others, including Fort Jones, Weed, Hornbrook, Etna,
Dunsmuir, Happy Camp, Montague, and the Hwy 96 Corridor each served by three of the providers
surveyed. Less commonly served areas included Greenview and Somes Bar (one provider), while Dorris,
Tulelake, Lake Shastina, MacDoel, Big Springs, and Copco each had two providers reporting service
coverage. This suggests the strongest concentration of services is centered in and around Yreka and
McCloud, with more limited coverage in outlying or rural parts of the county. Communities within
Siskiyou County served by the TSA Survey respondents are shown in Figure E-2.

Figure E-2: Areas Served Within Siskiyou County

5

McCloud

Montague

Dunsmuir

Hornbrook

W W wwww

Fort Jones

|

Community Served

Big Springs Area

Lake Shastina

NNNNN

Dorris

1
1

—
Greenview |T———

o

1 2 3 4 5 6
Number of Participating Providers

Of the seven organizations that responded to the TSA survey, five of them serve areas outside of
Siskiyou County as well. Figure E-3 summarizes the other counties served by the TSA Survey
respondents. Of the organizations surveyed, only Mt. Shasta Taxi will bring clients as far south as
Sacramento or San Francisco.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix E LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page E-4



Figure E-3: Areas Served Outside of Siskiyou County

Shasta County 4
Lassen County 3
Humboldt County
Butte County

Plumas County

NN NN

Modoc County
San Francisco, CA
Sacramento, CA
Medford, OR

Del Norte County
Glenn County
Tehama County
Trinity County

Community Served

L = Y= Y Ry

0 1 2 3 4 5

Number of Participating Providers

Trip Requests that Transportation Service Agencies are Unable to Meet

Of the seven providers who responded to the survey, six reported that their organizations are unable to
meet some of their clients’ transportation needs. These organizations have difficulty meeting requests
for transportation to the grocery store, doctor’s appointments, and other errands, and recreational trips
to visit family, seek entertainment, or attend community events. Mt. Shasta Taxi, Madrone Senior
Services, and FNRC all reported the need for transportation to more rural areas and to further away
locations like Medford or Redding for medical appointments, prescription pickup, and shopping or
errands.

How Siskivou Region Agencies Provide Transportation Services

The TSA Survey asked respondents to detail how their respective agencies provide transportation
services. The respondents were able to indicate multiple answers. The majority of the organizations
reported that their transportation programs consist of agency staff operating vehicles owned or leased
by the agency (six of seven organizations). Four organizations contract with another agency, meaning
the contracted operator supplies the staff and vehicles needed to provide the transportation service.
Those who contract with a provider, provide only short-term/emergency transportation, or do not
provide any transportation services at all were each reported by one operator. Further details on how
the seven Siskiyou region transportation service agencies indicated providing their services are shown in
Figure E-4 and summarized in Chapter 3 of the main report.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix E LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page E-5



Figure E-4: How Siskiyou Region Agencies
Provide Transportation Services

Operate vehicles 6
@ Contract with another agency 4
g Short Term/Emergency Transportation 1
1]
% Does not provide any transportation services 1
c
.'g Contract with operator 1
<)
a Buy passes for public transit services | 0

Provide referral only | 0

Volunteer Drivers | 0

0 2 4 6 8

Number of Participating Providers

Recommended Improvements and Coordination Strategies

The TSA Survey participants were asked to identify strategies that they believe would enhance
coordination among Siskiyou County region transportation providers and improve mobility for their
respective clients. The four participants who responded had the following suggestions to increase
coordination among transportation providers in Siskiyou County:

e Participants also emphasized the need for more flexible, affordable micro transit options such as
vans and passenger cars for non-medical trips, as taxi fares are prohibitively expensive for many
riders.

e Suggestions to improve system efficiency included better routing and utilization of available
resources, increasing route frequency, and improving inter-agency communication.

e Many also stressed the importance of continued collaboration and the pursuit of outside
funding or subsidies to support more affordable transportation options.

The following strategies were identified as being likely to improve mobility in Siskiyou County:

e Subsidy programs for taxis, Lyft, and Uber to make these services more affordable.
o More affordable fares.

e Improved coordination between existing services.

e More on-demand service options.

e More frequent services.

2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix E LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page E-6



Appendix F
TRANSPORTATION SERVICE AGENCY SURVEY INSTRUMENT

2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Transportation Plan — Appendix F LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Page F-1



Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

Introduction

The Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission is currently updating their 2025 Coordinated Public Transit-
Human Services Transportation Plan for Siskiyou County (2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Plan). As part of this planning
process, an inventory of existing public, tribal, non-profit, and for-profit or Non-Emergency Medical Transportation
(NEMT) programs is being undertaken. This survey is designed to gather information about transportation
resources and services specifically designed to meet the needs of senior adults, disabled, and low-income residents
in the study area with the ultimate goal of improving coordination between all transportation providers.

Please complete the survey by Friday, May 30, 2025. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Ari by
phone or e-mail. If you are trying to send data files that are too large to send via email, please email Ari and she will
work with you to send the files. We will review your responses to the survey and will contact you to clarify any
responses and obtain more information, if necessary.

Thank you in advance for your help!
Ari Keplinger, Assistant Planner

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
(530) 583 4053

ari@lsctrans.com

Thank you in advance for your help!

1. Please provide general information about your organization.

Organization Name

Contact Person

Contact Person's Title

Address

City

State

Zip

Phone

Email

Website




Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

Unmet Transportation Needs & Coordination

2. Please describe any transportation needs in the community that you feel are currently not
met or will become a need in the future that current transportation services cannot
accommodate.

3. Please describe any existing coordinated transportation arrangements that you have with
other transportation providers, social service agencies, and/or other entities.




Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

Program Information

4. What population segments does your organization/agency serve? (Please indicate all that
apply.)

| | General Public

|:| Elderly

|| Youth

|| Veterans

D Unemployed

D Low Income

D People with Mental Disabilities

D People with Physical Disabilities

D People with Sensory Disabilities (vision, hearing)

D Other (please specify)

5. Are there any population segments that your organization/agency does not serve? If so,
why not?




6. What areas of Siskiyou County does your organization/agency primarily serve? (Please
indicate all that apply.)

If you have a shapefile or map of your service area, please email Ari Keplinger at
ari@lsctrans.com to coordinate sending files.

Yreka

Fort Jones

Weed

McCloud
Hornbrook

Etna

Dunsmuir

Dorris

Tulelake

Lake Shastina
Happy Camp
Montague
MacDoel
Greenview

Big Springs Area
Copco Area

Hwy 96 Corridor

Other (please specify)

7. Does your organization/agency serve areas outside of Siskiyou County? (If so, where?)



8. Which of the following best describes your organization/agency? (Please indicate only one.)
O Municipal Government Agency
Q County Government Agency
() State Government Agency
O Public Transit System
O Private For-Profit Transportation Company
Q Private Nonprofit Transportation Company
(") Tribal Government

O Other (please specify)

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

Transportation Service Provision

9. Are there any trip requests/needs that your clients need transportation services for, but
your organization/agency is unable to help with? (Please list. Examples could be grocery
shopping, etc.

10. How does your organization/agency provide transportation services? (Check all that
apply)

I:] Operate vehicles

D Volunteer Drivers

D Contract with another agency (Please Specify)

I:] Contract with operator (Please Specify)

D Provide referral only

D Does not provide any transportation services

D Buy passes for public transit services

I:] Other (please specify)




Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

11. Are your organization/agency's transportation service services provided on a scheduled or
an on-demand/as needed basis?

D Scheduled

D On-Demand / As Needed

D Other (please specify)

12. What days are your organization/agency’s transportation services available? (Please
indicate all that apply.)

D Monday
|| Tuesday
D Wednesday
| | Thursday
D Friday

D Saturday

D Sunday

13. What are the hours of operation for the transportation service on weekdays?

Start Time
Time AM/PM
I [
End Time
Time AM/PM

B




14. What are the hours of operation for the transportation service on weekends?

Start Time
Time AM/PM
hl 18 - =
\ J
End Time
Time AM/PM
hi nm - -

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

15. Do you charge fees to the users of your organization/agency's service?

ONO

O Yes, (Please specify your rates/fare structure below and Indicate if you provide waivers or trip passes.)

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

Level of Service

Before listing data, please indicate whether the data being provided is for the calendar
(January through December) or fiscal year (State: July through June; or Federal: October
through September). Any information you can provide is appreciated. If appropriate,
please email ridership, financials (expenses and revenue), and operational data (revenue
hours and miles by mode) to

ari@lsctrans.com.



16. Please indicate what time periods you are reporting data for:
O Calendar Years
Q State Fiscal Years (July through June)

Q Federal Fiscal Years (October through September)

17. How many passenger trips did your organization/agency provide in:

20237

20247

18. How many vehicle service hours of transportation service did your organization/agency
operate in:

20237

20247

19. How many vehicle service miles of transportation service did your organization/agency
operate in:

20237

20247

20. If you would like to provide further details on the data that you have provided, please do
so below.

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

Funding & Expenses
Again, as appropriate, please record whether the data provided is for the calendar or
fiscal year (state or federal).
21. Please indicate what time periods you are reporting data for:
(") Calendar Years
() State Fiscal Years (July through June)

O Federal Fiscal Years (October through September)



22. What was your organization/agency’s approximate annual budget for operating
transportation services in:

20237

20247

23. What are your organization/agency’s sources of funding? For each source listed, please
indicate the amount.

Transportation
Development Act -
Local Transportation
Fund

Transportation
Development Act -
State Transit
Assistance

Low Carbon Transit
Operations Program

FTA 5310

Medicaid

Older Americans Act -
Title IIIB

Fares

Donations

24. For each of the sources you listed in the previous question, please indicate any limitations
on what the funds can be used for (e.g., only capital needs).

Transportation
Development Act -
Local Transportation
Fund

Transportation
Development Act -
State Transit
Assistance

Low Carbon Transit
Operations Program

FTA 5310

Medicaid

Older Americans Act -
Title IIIB

Fares

Donations



25. Please list any other funding sources not previously mentioned that your
organization/agency utilizes to provide transportation services. Indicate how much funding
your organization/agency receives from each additional source, and any limitations on the
funding.

Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

Vehicles, Equipment, and Technology
If your organization/agency owns or leases vehicles, please email your fleet inventory
information to ari@lsctrans.com. If you would rather provide your fleet information
directly through the survey, please provide this data in the following question.

26. List your organization/agency's vehicles: Make, Model, Seating Capacity, Fuel Type, Age,
Whether Vehicle is Owned or Leased

27. Does your organization/agency use route/scheduling software?

If yes, what is the
name of the software?

If no, what do you use
to schedule drivers
and trips?




Siskiyou County Coordinated Transportation Plan - Transportation Service Agency

Survey

Comments

28. What ideas/suggestions do you have with respect to improving mobility for your clients.
How can transportation services within Siskiyou County be better coordinated?




Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Item: 6
Voting Agency: SCLTC
Subject: Discussion, direction, and possible action regarding appointment of Legal Counsel for the
Commission.
Past Action:

Pursuant to prior direction from the Commission, staff issued a 30-day cancellation notice to the law firm currently
under contract to provide legal services to the Commission. In accordance with the terms of the existing
agreement, the termination of that contract will take effect on December 19, 2025.

Summary of Item:
With the termination of the current legal services agreement, the Commission will need to appoint subsequent
legal counsel to provide ongoing legal support and representation. Staff is seeking direction from the Commission

regarding the selection or appointment process for legal counsel, including any preferences for contracting with
the Siskiyou County Counsel’'s Office or other qualified legal service providers.

Financial Impact: Yes [ No X
None.

Recommended Action:
Discussion, direction, and possible action regarding appointment of Legal Counsel for the Commission.

Attachments (0)



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Item: 7
Voting Agency: SCLTC

Subject: Discussion, direction, and possible action regarding draft Joint Powers Agreement forming the
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission and establishing the SCLTC as the
designated regional transportation planning agency for Siskiyou County and discussion
regarding transition of employees away from County employment.

Past Action:
None.
Summary of Item:

At the last meeting, the Commission directed staff to recreate the formation document for the Siskiyou County
Local Transportation Commission, as no original documents have been located that established when the LTC
was formally created. The enclosed Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) represents the first draft of this recreated
formation document and is provided for the Commission’s review and comment.

Following the last meeting, additional discussion occurred regarding the potential future transition of staff
currently provided by the County to employment under the Commission and Transportation Agency itself. This
direction was not formally provided by the Board during the meeting. As part of this agenda item, staff
recommends the Commission hold a full discussion and provide clear direction on whether the
Commission/Agency intends to proceed with transitioning staff employment away from the County.

Once the draft JPA is finalized, staff will distribute it to each member agency for their internal review and approval
processes prior to obtaining the required signatures.

Financial Impact: Yes X No [

There are no anticipated operational cost changes associated with the formation of the Joint Powers Agreement
itself. However, the potential transition of staff from County employment to employment under the agency could
result in financial impacts that are unknown at this time. Additional analysis will be required once the Commission
provides directions on whether to proceed with such a transition.

Recommended Action:
Discussion, direction, and possible action regarding the draft Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission Joint Powers Agreement and transition of employees away from County employment.

Attachments (1)
- Draft Joint Powers Agreement of the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission



JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE
SISKIYOU COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION [SCLTC]

This Joint Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the date of the last
signature affixed hereto by and among the COUNTY OF SISKIYOU, and the, CITY OF DORRIS,
CITY OF DUNSMUIR, CITY OF ETNA, TOWN OF FORT JONES, CITY OF MONTAGUE, CITY
OF MT. SHASTA, CITY OF TULELAKE, CITY OF WEED, and the CITY OF YREKA, herein
referred to as “MEMBERS” or “MEMBER”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the people residing within the incorporated and unincorporated areas of Siskiyou
County have an interest in a well-coordinated and planned transportation system; and

WHERAS, the parties to this JPA jointly possess in common the authority to conduct regional
transportation planning, programming and related activities within their jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the California Government Code § 29535 states within each county which is not
within the jurisdiction of a statutorily created regional transportation planning agency or a council
of governments, a local transportation commission shall be established and composed of three
members appointed by the Board of Supervisors and three members appointed by the city
selection of the county, and

WHEREAS, the SCLTC was created as the Local Transportation Commission and Regional
Transportation Planning Agency as a result of the Transportation Development Act (TDA),
California Senate Bill 325 in 1972; and

WHEREAS, Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission is recognized as the designated
Regional Transportation Planning Agency for County of Siskiyou; and

WHEREAS, the Agreement will remain in effect until amended ad
NOW, THEREFORE, the MEMBERS agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

1.1.  “Agreement” shall mean this Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, as the name now exists
or as it may from time to time be amended by any supplemental agreement entered into
pursuant to the provisions hereof.

1.2.  “Commission” shall mean the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission, a Joint
Powers Agency hereby established and created by the Agreement.

1.3.  “Fiscal Year” shall mean that period of twelve months commencing on July first of any
year.

1.4. “Government Code” shall mean the California Government Code.

1.5. “Joint Powers Law” or “Act” shall mean Article |, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 (commencing

with Section 6500) of the Government Code.



1.6.

1.7

2.1.

2.2.

3.1.

41.

‘MEMBER” or “MEMBERS” shall mean any entity which has executed this Agreement and
become a member of the Agency.

“Appointing Organization”: Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors or the Siskiyou County
League of Local Agencies

ARTICLE 2 - CREATION AND PURPOSE OF THE AGENCY

Creation of Public Agency. Pursuant to this act, there is hereby created a public agency to
be known as the “Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission” hereinafter referred
to as the “Commission.” The Commission is formed by this Agreement pursuant to the
provisions of Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title | (commencing with Section 6500) of the
Government Code; two or more public agencies may, by agreement, form a Joint Powers
Agency to exercise those powers and functions that are common to the contracting
parties. It is the intent of the MEMBERS that the Commission shall be a public agency
separate and apart from any MEMBER.

Purpose. The purpose of the Agreement is to create a public agency to exercise the
common power of providing, coordinating, administering, and conducting regional and
local transportation planning and operating transit services within Siskiyou County, as
outlined in Article 4.

ARTICLE 3 - LIMITATION AND LIABILITY

To the extent permitted under State law, and specifically pursuant to the provisions of
Government Code Section 6508.1, the debts, liabilities, and obligations of the Commission
shall be its own and shall not constitute debts, liabilities, and obligations of any of the
MEMBERS.

ARTICLE 4 - POWERS OF THE COMMISSION

The Commission shall have all powers common to the MEMBERS and all additional
powers set forth in the joint powers of law of the State of California and is hereby expressly
authorized to perform all acts necessary for the exercise of said powers. Such powers
include, but are not limited to, the following:

a) Regional transportation planning functions required under Government Code
§29532 et seq., Public Utilities Code §§99200-99406, and Government Code
§65080;

b) Development and adoption of the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP);

C) Administration of LTF, STA, and other transportation funds;
d) Provision of multimodal coordination;

e) Operation, management, administration, contracting, or oversight of public transit
services as permitted under the Transportation Development Act (TDA), including
service under Articles 4, 4.5, 6.5, and 8;



f)

)

Authority to assume, consolidate, or manage transit functions currently exercised
by any Member Agency, upon approval of the Commission;

Development of federally required transportation plans (e.g., Coordinated Human
Services Transportation Plan);

Any other transportation planning or transit operational functions authorized by
state or federal law.

To make and enter into contracts and expend revenues, leases and other
agreements, including contracts with federal, state, and other governmental
agencies;

To acquire, accept, and utilize sufficient revenues to retire debt and to fulfill the
financial obligations of the Commission from any source including Transportation
Development Act funds, State or Federal Transportation funds, and state or federal
grants;

To incur debts, liabilities, and obligations, which do not constitute a debt, liability,
or obligation of the MEMBERS;

To employ agents, employees, consultants, advisors, independent contractors,
and other staff;

To acquire, hold, or dispose of property by eminent domain, lease, lease purchase,
or sale;

To acquire, construct, manage, maintain, and operate any buildings, works, or
improvements;

To sue and be sued in its own name, except that the Commission shall not sue its
own Commissioners;

To invest, in accordance with the provisions of Section 6509.5 of the Government
Code, money in the treasury of the Commission that is not required for immediate
necessities of the Commission;

To pay expenses reasonably and necessarily incurred in the conduct of business,
including travel expenses to attend meetings and conferences relating to the
business of the Board to the extent budgeted; and

All other services which are necessary for the Commission to fulfill its duties and
responsibilities.

ARTICLE 5 - MEMBERS, OFFICERS, AND TERMS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

5.1.  Members and Alternate Members. The Commission shall be administered by three
delegates appointed by the Siskiyou County Board of Supervisors and three delegates
appointed by the Siskiyou County League of Local Agencies. Pursuant to Section 3.0 of

3



5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5

6.1.

the Bylaws of the Commission, delegates must be an elected official of one of the member
agencies.

Alternate Members. Each Appointing Organization shall have one alternate seat on the
Commission. Any alternate must have the same qualifications as the appointed delegates.

Officers. At the first regular meeting of each calendar year, the Commission shall elect
from its membership a Chair and Vice Chair of the Board, to serve for one-year terms. In
the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall preside over and conduct all meetings of
the Commission.

Terms of Office. Each member of the Commission shall serve at the pleasure of their
Appointing Organization.

Vacancies and Removal of Commissioners

If any appointed Commissioner is absent from two (2) or more regular meetings the
Executive Director will notify the Appointing Organization so they can review appointments
and consider a replacement. If a Commissioner is no longer an elected official they must
relinquish their position as a Commissioner. A position shall be declared vacant if the
incumbent resigns or is removed from the position by a majority vote of their Appointing
Organization. Alternate Commissioners may fill the position until a new delegate is
appointed by the Appointing Organization. A vacant seat shall be filled by the Appointing
Organization at their next regular meeting following the vacancy.

ARTICLE 6 - POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Commission shall have the following powers and functions:

a) The Commission shall exercise all powers and conduct all business of the
Commission, whether directly or by delegation to the Executive Director or other
committees as may be established by the Commission and subject to such
restrictions and limitations as are set forth herein.

b) The Commission shall have the authority to appoint or employ necessary staff in
accordance with Article 9.

c) The Commission shall cause to be prepared, and shall review, modify as
necessary, and adopt the annual operating budget of the Commission. The budget,
at a minimum, shall include staff administration costs, capital costs,
apportionments, and operating costs for transportation services. Adoption of the
budget may not be delegated.

d) The Commission shall approve the execution of each contract or agreement to be
entered into by the name of the Commission.

e) The Commission shall receive and act upon periodic reports and audits of the
funds of the Commission, as required by Articles 10 and 11 of this Agreement.



7.

7.2.
7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

8.1.

8.2.

9.1.

h) The Commission shall have such other powers and duties reasonably necessary
to carry out the purposes of the Commission.

ARTICLE 7 - MEETINGS OF THE COMMISSION

Initial Meeting. No later than Sixty (60) days following the effective date of this Agreement
and the establishment of the Commission, the initial meeting of the Commission shall be
called and convened. For the purpose of calling such a meeting, the Executive Director
shall prepare the initial agenda for the Commission and shall call and post such notices
as are required by the Brown Act. Any MEMBER requesting an item on the agenda for the
initial meeting shall provide the request no later than Twenty (20) days following the
effective date of this Agreement.

Meetings. At a minimum the Commission shall meet annually.

Brown Act. All meetings of the Commission shall be called, noticed, held, and conducted
in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 54950, et seq.

Minutes and Records. The Executive Director of the Commission shall provide for the
keeping of minutes of regular and special meetings of the Board and shall provide a copy
of the minutes to each member of the Commission at the next scheduled meeting.

Quorum. A quorum, and the approval of any action of the Commission, shall require the
presence and affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the delegates or their duly
appointed alternates.

ARTICLE 8 - COMMITTEES

The Commission may establish committees, as it deems appropriate, to conduct the
business of the Commission. Members of the committees shall be appointed by the Board,
to serve one-year terms, subject to reappointment by the Board. Each committee shall be
composed of at least three members and shall have those duties as determined by the
Board or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws. The members of each committee shall
annually select one of their members to chair the committee. Each committee shall
annually prepare and submit a report to the Commission as to the activities and programs
provided by or overseen by the committee.

All committee meetings shall be called, noticed, held, and conducted in accordance with
the provision of Government Code Section 54950, et seq., the Brown Act.

ARTICLE 9 - STAFF

Executive Director. The Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Executive
Director shall be the Executive Director of the Commission.



9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

Legal Counsel. The Siskiyou County Counsel’s Office shall provide legal services to the
Commission.

Treasurer. The Treasurer of the County of Siskiyou shall be the treasurer of the
Commission.

Auditor. The Auditor of the County of Siskiyou shall be the auditor of the Commission.

Administrative and Staffing Support. The County of Siskiyou shall provide administrative
and staffing support to the Commission. Employees will be eligible for all benefits,
optional or required by law, as employees of the County of Siskiyou.

Clerk. The Clerk of the County of Siskiyou shall be the designated officer for the
acceptance service of process in civil proceedings and filing of Agreement termination
notices.

ARTICLE 10 - ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

Annual Budget. The Commission shall annually adopt by resolution an operating budget
pursuant to Article 6 of this Agreement.

Funds and Accounts. The Auditor shall establish and maintain such funds and accounts
in compliance with Government Code 29534. Accounting records of the Commission shall
be available for inspection by each MEMBER at all reasonable times. Support staff shall
prepare fund and account balances in conjunction with the Auditor’s accounting records
for the Commission. The Commission shall adhere to the standard of strict accountability
for funds as set forth in Government Code Section 6505.

Annual Audit. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505, the Commission shall either
make or contract with a certified public accountant to perform an annual fiscal audit of all
accounts and records of the Commission, conforming in all respects with the requirements
of that section. The annual audit may be performed in conjunction with the annual audit
requirements of the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission. A report of the
audit shall be filed as a public record with the Auditor within twelve months of the end of
the fiscal year under examination pursuant to Government Code 6505. The costs of the
audit shall be considered an administrative cost of the Commission.

ARTICLE 11 - RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FUNDS AND PROPERTY

Auditor. The Auditor shall be responsible for disbursement of the Commission’s funds in
compliance with Government Code Section 6505.5. The Auditor shall draw warrants to
pay demands against the Commission, making such payments from Commission funds,
as approved by the Commission or their designated representative.



11.2.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

12.1.

12.2.

Treasurer’s Duties. Pursuant to Government Code 6505.5, the Treasurer shall receive and
Acknowledge receipt for all funds of the Commission and place them in the Treasury to
the credit of the Commission.

Reports to the Commission. Pursuant to Government Code 6505.5 (e), at the request of
the Commission, the Auditor and Treasurer shall verify and report in writing to the agency
and to the contracting MEMBERS to the Agreement, the amount of money that is held for
the Commission, the amount of receipts since the last report, and the amount paid out
since the last report.

Property. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.1, the Executive Director, and such
other persons as the Commission may designate, shall have charge of, handle, and have
access to the property of the Commission. All Property, including any Rolling Stock
identified in Attachment A, attached hereto as part of the Agreement, shall be transferred
to the Commission within 90 days of execution of the Agreement. It is recognized by each
MEMBER that property was purchased by Commission from various transportation funds
with the intended use being for transportation planning related services.

Outstanding Revenues or Expenditures. The Commission shall be responsible for all
expenditures and receive all revenues generated prior to the formation of the Commission.

Bonds. Pursuant to Government Code 6505.1, the Commission shall secure and pay for
a fidelity bond or bonds in an amount or amounts and in the form specified by the Board
covering all officers and staff of the Commission and all officers and staff that are
authorized to have charge of, handle, and have access to property of the Commission.

ARTICLE 12 - INSURANCE AND LIABILITY OF THE COMMISSION,
OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES

Insurance. The Commission shall maintain liability insurance or equivalent, including but
not limited to owned and non-owned auto liability coverage, with limits of not less than five
million dollars ($5,000,000), that applies to bodily injury, property damage, personal injury,
and public officials’ error and omissions.

Indemnification. The following indemnification requirements apply to this Agreement:

a) The MEMBERS shall indemnify and hold each other harmless against any and all
liability imposed or claimed, including attorney’s fees and other legal expenses,
arising directly or indirectly from any act or failure of the Members, their employees,
or agents, including all claims relating to the injury or death of any person or
damage to any property arising out of the performance of this Agreement. It is
understood that the duty of either Members to indemnify and hold harmless
includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or
claims for damages whether any applicable insurance policies shall have been



13.1.

14.1.

15.1.

determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, the Members acknowledge
and agree to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of
consideration of this Agreement.

The Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission shall indemnify and hold
County harmless against any and all liability imposed or claimed, including all
claims relating to the injury or death of any person or damage to any property, and
attorney’s fees and other legal expenses, arising directly or indirectly from any act
or failure of County’s assistants, employees or agents, contractors, engaged in the
operation of the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission pursuant to this
Agreement. It is understood that the duty of the Siskiyou County Local
Transportation Commission to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to
defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. This
indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for
damages whether any applicable insurance policies shall have been determined
to apply. By execution of this Agreement, the Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission and the County acknowledge and agree to the provisions of this
Section and that it is a material element of consideration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 13 - BYLAWS

Bylaws. The Commission is hereby authorized to adopt, and from time to time amend,
such bylaws as they deem appropriate to govern the transaction of the business of the
Commission and the conduct of the officers and employees of the Commission.

ARTICLE 14 - AMENDMENTS

Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended by the adoption of a Resolution by
each MEMBER. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of said amendment, the
amendment shall be filed with the office of the Secretary of State. The notice shall contain

the following:

a) The name of each MEMBER to the Agreement;

b) The date upon which the amendment to the Agreement is effective; and
C) A description of the amendment made to the agreement.

ARTICLE 15
MISCELLANEOUS

Section Headings. The section headings herein are for convenience only and are not to
be construed as modifying or governing the language in the section referred to.



15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

15.5.

16.1.

Consent or Approval. Wherever any consent or approval is required within this Agreement,
the same shall not be unreasonably withheld.

This Agreement is made in the State of California, under the Constitution and laws of such
State and is to be so construed.

If any one or more of the terms, provisions, promises, covenants or conditions of this
Agreement shall to any extent be adjudged invalid, unenforceable, void, or voidable, for
any reason whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, each and all of the remaining
terms, provisions, promises, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement shall not be
affected thereby and shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

The MEMBERS shall not assign any rights or obligations under this Agreement without
the written consent of all other MEMBERS.

ARTICLE 16 - TERM

Pursuant to applicable statutory requirements, this Agreement shall remain in effect unless
and until it is amended by all Member Agencies.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement on the dates set forth below,
each signatory represents that they have the authority to execute this agreement and to bind the
Party on whose behalf their execution is made.

MEMBER: City of Yreka

Date:

Mayor, City of Yreka

MEMBER: City of Dorris

Date:

Mayor, City of Dorris

MEMBER: City of Dunsmuir



Date:

Mayor, City of Dunsmuir

MEMBER: City of Etna

Date:

Mayor, City of Etna

MEMBER: Town of Fort Jones

Date:

Mayor, Town of Fort Jones

MEMBER: City of Montague

Date:

Mayor, City of Montague

MEMBER: City of Mt Shasta

Date:

Mayor, City of Mt Shasta

MEMBER: City of Tulelake

Date:

Mayor, City of Tulelake

MEMBER: City of Weed
10



Date:

MEMBER: County of Siskiyou

Date:

Mayor, City of Weed

ATTEST:

Laura Bynum
Clerk, Board of Supervisors

By:

Deputy

Ray Haupt, Chair
Board of Supervisors
County of Siskiyou
State of California

11



Attachment A
Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Joint Powers Agreement

Property List
ROATag # Purchase Date Item Description Type
Facility 12/1/2015 Siskiyou County Transit Center Facility

** Transit Center ownership splitis:

- STAGE 87% (Fund 5660)

- Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission (less than 1%) (Fund 2505)
- Solid Waste 8.3% (Fund 5350)

- Flood Control 3.8% (Fund 2501)

1of1



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Item: 8
Voting Agency: SCLTC

Subject: Discussion, direction, and possible action regarding the draft first amendment to the Siskiyou
Transportation Agency Joint Powers Agreement and discussion regarding transition of
employees away from County employment.

Past Action:

At the last meeting, the Commission directed staff to draft an amendment to the Siskiyou Transportation Agency
(STA) Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) designating the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission as the
Board of Directors for STA and bring the draft back for initial feedback at the next meeting.

Summary of Item:

Following the last meeting, additional discussion occurred regarding the potential future transition of staff
currently provided by the County to employment under the Transportation Agency itself. This direction was not
formally provided by the Board during the meeting. As part of this agenda item, staff recommends the Board
hold a full discussion and provide clear direction on whether the Agency intends to proceed with transitioning
staff employment away from the County.

Once the draft JPA is finalized, staff will distribute it to each member agency for their internal review and approval
processes prior to obtaining the required signatures.

Financial Impact: Yes X No [

The full extent of the financial impact is unknown as of the posting of the agenda. the potential transition of staff
from County employment to employment under the agency could result in financial impacts that are unknown at
this time. Additional analysis will be required once the Commission provides directions on whether to proceed
with such a transition.

Staff will continue to gather data to present to the Board during the discussion of this matter.
Recommended Action:
Discussion, direction, and possible action regarding the draft first amendment to the Siskiyou Transportation

Agency Joint Powers Agreement and transition of employees away from County employment.

Attachments (1)
- Draft First Amendment to the Siskiyou Transportation Agency Joint Powers Agreement.



SISKIYOU TRANSPORTATION AGENCY

Joint Powers Agreement

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of , 2026, by and among
the COUNTY OF SISKIYOU, and the CITY OF YREKA, CITY OF DORRIS, CITY OF DUNSMUIR,
CITY OF ETNA, TOWN OF FORT JONES, CITY OF MONTAGUE, CITY OF MT. SHASTA, CITY
OF TULELAKE, CITY OF WEED, and the SISKIYOU COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION
COMMISSION, herein referred to as “MEMBERS” or “MEMBER”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the California
Government Code Section 6500 et seq., two or more public agencies may, by agreement, form a
Joint Powers Agency to exercise those powers and functions that are common to the contracting
parties; and

WHEREAS, under California law, each MEMBER is responsible for providing transportation in
compliance with the Transportation Development Act; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the MEMBERS to create a public agency that will perform the
functions set forth in the Transportation Development Act,

NOW, THEREFORE, the MEMBERS agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1.  “Agreement’ shall mean this Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, as the name now exists
or as it may from time to time be amended by any supplemental agreement entered into
pursuant to the provisions hereof.

1.2.  “Agency” shall mean the Siskiyou Transportation Agency, a Joint Powers Agency hereby
established and created by the Agreement.

1.3.  “Board of Directors” or “Board” shall mean the governing body of the Agency.

1.4. “Fiscal Year” shall mean that period of twelve months commencing on July first of any
year.

1.5.  “Government Code” shall mean the California Government Code.

1.6.  “Joint Powers Law” or “Act” shall mean Article I, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 (commencing

with Section 6500) of the Government Code.



1.7.

2.1.

2.2.

3.1.

4.1.

‘MEMBER” or “MEMBERS” shall mean any entity which has executed this Agreement and
become a member of the Agency.

ARTICLE 2
CREATION AND PURPOSE OF THE AGENCY

Creation of Public Agency. Pursuant to this act, there is hereby created a public agency to
be known as the “Siskiyou Transportation Agency” hereinafter referred to as the “Agency.”
The Agency is formed by this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Article 1, Chapter
5, Division 7, Title | (commencing with Section 6500) of the Government Code; two or
more public agencies may, by agreement, form a Joint Powers Agency to exercise those
powers and functions that are common to the contracting parties. It is the intent of the
MEMBERS that the Agency shall be a public agency separate and apart from any
MEMBER.

Purpose. The purpose of the Agreement is to create a public agency to exercise the
common power of directing and coordinating actions relating to transportation in Siskiyou
County and the City of Yreka, City of Dorris, City of Dunsmuir, City of Etna, Town of Fort
Jones, City of Montague, City of Mt Shasta, City of Tulelake, City of Weed, and the County
of Siskiyou and the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission.

ARTICLE 3
LIMITATION AND LIABILITY

To the extent permitted under State law, and specifically pursuant to the provisions of
Government Code Section 6508.1, the debts, liabilities, and obligations of the Agency shall
be its own and shall not constitute debts, liabilities, and obligations of any of the
MEMBERS.

ARTICLE 4
POWERS OF THE AGENCY

The Agency shall have all of the powers common to the MEMBERS and all additional
powers set forth in the joint powers of law of the State of California and is hereby expressly
authorized to perform all acts necessary for the exercise of said powers. Such powers
include, but are not limited to, the following:

a) To supervise and oversee the performance of transportation service operations;

b) To make and enter into contracts and expend revenues, leases and other
agreements, including contracts with federal, state, and other governmental
agencies;



5.1.

)

k)

To act on behalf of the MEMBERS to specify the level of service to be provided,
the operating plan to implement the service, how the service is to be coordinated
with the public transportation within the respective areas, and to act as claimant as
defined in the Transportation Development Act;

To acquire, accept, and utilize sufficient revenues to retire debt and to fulfill the
financial obligations of the Agency from any source including Transportation
Development Act funds, State Transit Assistance Funds, Federal Transportation
Act funds, and state or federal grants;

To incur debts, liabilities, and obligations, which do not constitute a debt, liability,
or obligation of the MEMBERS;

To employ agents, employees, consultants, advisors, independent contractors,
and other staff;

To acquire, hold, or dispose of property by eminent domain, lease, lease purchase,
or sale;

To acquire, construct, manage, maintain, and operate any buildings, works, or
improvements;

To sue and be sued in its own name, except that the Agency shall not sue its own
Board of Directors;

To invest, in accordance with the provisions of Section 6509.5 of the Government
Code, money in the treasury of the Agency that is not required for immediate
necessities of the Agency;

To raise transportation fare revenues or adjust fares for transit services;

To pay expenses reasonably and necessarily incurred in the conduct of business,
including travel expenses to attend meetings and conferences relating to the
business of the Board to the extent budgeted; and

All other services which are necessary for the Agency to provide public
transportation services.

ARTICLE 5

MEMBERS, OFFICERS, AND TERMS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members and Alternate Members. The Agency shall be administered by a Board of
Directors, initially consisting of the Commission members and alternates of the Siskiyou
County Local Transportation Commission. The Agency Board of Directors and alternates
shall be the same individuals as each MEMBER entity appoints to serve on the Siskiyou
County Local Transportation Commission and alternates thereof. The Board shall be
named the “Siskiyou Transportation Agency Board of Directors.”



5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

6.1.

Alternate Members. Alternates shall be the same individuals as each entity appoints to
serve on the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission. Any alternate must have
the same qualification as the individual originally appointed.

Officers. At the secend-first regular meeting of each calendar year, the Board of Directors
shall elect from its membership a Chair and Vice Chair of the Board, to serve for one-year
terms. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall preside over and conduct all
meetings of the Board.

Terms of Office. Each member of the Commission shall serve at the pleasure of their

cease to serve upon termination of that public office, unless so otherwise re-Appointed by
that governmental MEMBER. Vacancies shall be filled pursuant to the applicable
procedures set forth in the Agency Bylaws.

ARTICLE 6
POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors shall have the following powers and functions:

a) The Board shall exercise all powers and conduct all business of the Agency,
whether directly or by delegation to the Executive Director or other committees as
may be established by the Board and subject to such restrictions and limitations
as are set forth herein.

b) The Board shall have the authority to appoint or employ necessary staff in
accordance with Article 9.

c) The Board shall cause to be prepared, and shall review, modify as necessary, and
adopt the annual operating budget of the Agency. The budget, at a minimum, shall
include staff administration costs, capital costs, apportionments, and operating
costs for transportation services. Adoption of the budget may not be delegated.

d) The Board shall approve the execution of each contract or agreement to be
entered into by the name of the Agency.

e) The Board shall negotiate, prepare, and contract for transportation services and
the claims for funds to be submitted to the Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission in accordance with the Transportation Development Act and its
regulations.

f) Within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year, the Agency will prepare and
submit to the MEMBERS an annual report on its operation of the transportation
services for the fiscal year.



g) The Board shall receive and act upon periodic reports and audits of the funds of
the Agency, as required by Articles 10 and 11 of this Agreement.

h) The Board shall have such other powers and duties reasonably necessary to carry
out the purposes of the Agency.

The Member Agencies hereby designate the Siskiyou County Local Transportation
Commission (“Commission”) as the duly appointed governing board of the transit agency
created under this Agreement. The Commission shall serve as the official governing body
responsible for exercising all rights, powers, duties, responsibilities, and authorities
necessary to conduct the business and affairs of the transit agency.

Acting as the governing board for transit purposes, the Commission shall possess all

a. Government Code §6500 et seq. (Joint Exercise of Powers Act);

b. The Transportation Development Act (TDA), including authority applicable to transit

c. All applicable state and federal requlations governing public transportation programs;

d. Any authority otherwise granted through this Agreement or delegated by the Member

ARTICLE 7
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Initial Meeting. No later than Sixty (60) days following the effective date of this Agreement
and the establishment of the Agency, the initial meeting of the Board of Directors shall be
called and convened. For the purpose of calling such a meeting, the Executive Director
shall prepare the initial agenda for the Board of Directors and shall call and post such
notices as are required by the Brown Act. Any MEMBER requesting an item on the agenda
for the initial meeting shall provide the request no later than Twenty (20) days following

Meetings. At a minimum the Board shall meet annually.

6.2. Designation of Governing Board.
6.3. Authority and Powers.
powers granted under:
operators under Public Utilities Code §§99200-99400;
and
Agencies.
7.
the effective date of this Agreement.
7.2.
7.3.

Brown Act. All meetings of the Board shall be called, noticed, held, and conducted in
accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 54950, et seq.



7.4.

7.5.

8.1.

8.2.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.
9.4.
9.5.

Minutes and Records. The Executive Director of the Agency shall provide for the keeping
of minutes of regular and special meetings of the Board and shall provide a copy of the
minutes to each member of the Board at the next scheduled meeting.

Quorum. A quorum, and the approval of any action of the Board, shall require the presence
and affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the delegates or their duly appointed
alternates.A-maiority-of the membe of-the Board-sh onstitute-a-guorym-to-condy >

...... Ay,

ARTICLE 8

COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors may establish committees, as it deems appropriate, to conduct the
business of the Agency. Members of the committees shall be appointed by the Board, to
serve one-year terms, subject to reappointment by the Board. Each committee shall be
composed of at least three members and shall have those duties as determined by the
Board or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws. The members of each committee shall
annually select one of their members to chair the committee. Each committee shall
annually prepare and submit a report to the Board of Directors as to the activities and
programs provided by or overseen by the committee.

All committee meetings shall be called, noticed, held, and conducted in accordance with
the provision of Government Code Section 54950, et seq., the Brown Act.

ARTICLE 9
STAFF

Executive Director. The Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission Executive
Director shall be the Executive Director of the Agency.

Legal Counsel. The Siskiyou County Counsel’'s Office shall provide legal services to the
Agency.

Treasurer. The Treasurer of the County of Siskiyou shall be the treasurer of the Agency.
Auditor. The Auditor of the County of Siskiyou shall be the auditor of the Agency.

Administrative and Staffing Support. The County of Siskiyou shall provide administrative
and staffing support to the Agency. Employees will be eligible for all benefits, optional or
required by law, as employees of the County of Siskiyou.



9.6.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

11.2.

3.

Clerk. The Clerk of the County of Siskiyou shall be the designated officer for the
acceptance service of process in civil proceedings and filing of Agreement termination
notices.

ARTICLE 10
ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

Annual Budget. The Agency shall annually adopt by resolution an operating budget
pursuant to Article 6 of this Agreement.

Funds and Accounts. The Auditor shall establish and maintain such funds and accounts
in compliance with Government Code 29534. Accounting records of the Agency shall be
available for inspection by each MEMBER at all reasonable times. Support staff shall
prepare fund and account balances in conjunction with the Auditor’s accounting records
for the Agency. The Agency shall adhere to the standard of strict accountability for funds
as set forth in Government Code Section 6505.

Annual Audit. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505, the Agency shall either make
or contract with a certified public accountant to perform an annual fiscal audit of all
accounts and records of the Agency, conforming in all respects with the requirements of
that section. The annual audit may be performed in conjunction with the annual audit
requirements of the Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission. A report of the
audit shall be filed as a public record with the Auditor within twelve months of the end of
the fiscal year under examination pursuant to Government Code 6505. The costs of the
audit shall be considered an administrative cost of the Agency.

ARTICLE 11
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FUNDS AND PROPERTY

Auditor. The Auditor shall be responsible for disbursement of the Agency’s funds in
compliance with Government Code Section 6505.5. The Auditor shall draw warrants to
pay demands against the Agency, making such payments from Agency funds, as approved
by the Board of Directors or their designated representative.

Treasurer’s Duties. Pursuant to Government Code 6505.5, the Treasurer shall receive and
Acknowledge receipt for all funds of the Agency and place them in the Treasury to the
credit of the Agency.

Reports to the Agency. Pursuant to Government Code 6505.5 (e), at the request of the
Board, the Auditor and Treasurer shall verify and report in writing to the agency and to the
contracting MEMBERS to the Agreement, the amount of money that is held for the Agency,
the amount of receipts since the last report, and the amount paid out since the last report.

7



11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

12.1.

Property. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.1, the Executive Director, and such
other persons as the Board of Directors may designate, shall have charge of, handle, and
have access to the property of the Agency. Property and Rolling Stock as identified in
Attachment A, attached hereto as part of the Agreement, shall be transferred to the Agency
within 90 days of execution of the Agreement. It is recognized by each MEMBER that said
rolling stock was purchased by County from various transit grants with the intended use
being for transit services.

Outstanding Revenues or Expenditures. The Agency shall be responsible for all
expenditures and receive all revenues generated prior to the formation of the Agency. The
Agency shall receive all future dividends authorized by the CalTIP Board of Directors.

Bonds. Pursuant to Government Code 6505.1, the Agency shall secure and pay for a
fidelity bond or bonds in an amount or amounts and in the form specified by the Board
covering all officers and staff of the Agency and all officers and staff that are authorized to
have charge of, handle, and have access to property of the Agency.

ARTICLE 12
WITHDRAWAL, DISSOLUTION, OR TERMINATION
AND DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS

Minimum Commitment PeriodWithdrawal-from-the-Ageney. It is anticipated that each
MEMBER hereto shall participate in the Agency until purposes set forth in this Agreement

are accomplished.

No Member Agency may withdraw from this Agreement for a period of three (3) years

12.2

following the effective date of this Agreement (the “Minimum Commitment Period”). Any
notice of withdrawal submitted prior to the expiration of the Minimum Commitment Period
shall be deemed invalid and of no force or effect.

Withdrawal After Minimum Commitment Period

After the Minimum Commitment Period, a Member Agency may withdraw from this
Agreement only upon providing 180 days prior written notice to the Board following a
properly noticed public hearing of the Member.

Withdrawal shall be effective only at the end of the fiscal year unless otherwise approved

by the Board.

The withdrawal of either MEMBER, either voluntary or involuntary, shall cause the

Agreement to be terminated according-to-thefollowing-conditionsbut




12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

13.1.

13.2.

123 Termination-ofthe Ageney-shall not relieve the Agency of its debts or other liabilities
prior to the effective date of the MEMBER’S notice of withdrawal. All debts,

liabilities, and obligations incurred by the Agency shall be honored prior to
apportionment and or distribution of remaining funds, including but not limited to
contracts for transit services.

Service Continuity Clause: No withdrawal shall occur if such withdrawal would
materially impair the Agency’s ability to provide mandated services unless
approved by a supermaijority vote.

Dissolution of Agency. Upon dissolution of the Agency, there shall be a partial or complete
distribution of assets and liabilities as follows:

a) Upon termination of the Agency, all funds including the proceeds of the sale of
property, in the possession of the Agency after payment of all costs, expenses, and
charges validly incurred under this Agreement, shall be returned to the MEMBERS
in proportion to their contribution as shall be determined by the Board.

Distribution of Assets. The assets listed in Attachment A shall be returned to each
MEMBER. Additional assets acquired by the Agency shall be distributed to the MEMBERS
in proportion to their contribution as shall be determined by the Board in compliance with
the Transportation Development Act. The distribution of assets may be made in kind or
assets may be sold and the proceeds thereof distributed to the MEMBERS at the time of
dissolution after the discharge of all enforceable liabilities.

Surplus Revenues. Upon termination of the Agency, all funds including the proceeds of
the sale of property, in the possession of the Agency after payment of all costs, expenses,
and charges validly incurred under this Agreement, shall be returned to the MEMBERS in
proportion to their contribution as shall be determined by the Board.

ARTICLE 13
INSURANCE AND LIABILITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES

Insurance. The Board of Directors shall maintain liability insurance or equivalent, including
but not limited to owned and non-owned auto liability coverage, with limits of not less than
five million dollars ($5,000,000), that applies to bodily injury, property damage, personal
injury, and public officials’ error and omissions.

Indemnification. The following indemnification requirements apply to this Agreement:

a) The MEMBERS shall indemnify and hold each other harmless against any and all
liability imposed or claimed, including attorney’s fees and other legal expenses,
arising directly or indirectly from any act or failure of the Members, their employees,
or agents, including all claims relating to the injury or death of any person or



14.1.

15.1.

damage to any property arising out of the performance of this Agreement. It is
understood that the duty of either Members to indemnify and hold harmless
includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or
claims for damages whether any applicable insurance policies shall have been
determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, the Members acknowledge
and agree to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of
consideration of this Agreement.

b) The Siskiyou Transportation Agency shall indemnify and hold County harmless
against any and all liability imposed or claimed, including all claims relating to the
injury or death of any person or damage to any property, and attorney’s fees and
other legal expenses, arising directly or indirectly from any act or failure of County’s
assistants, employees or agents, contractors, engaged in the operation of the
Siskiyou Transportation Agency pursuant to this Agreement. It is understood that
the duty of the Siskiyou Transportation Agency to indemnify and hold harmless
includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or
claims for damages whether any applicable insurance policies shall have been
determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, the Siskiyou Transportation
Agency and the County acknowledge and agree to the provisions of this Section
and that it is a material element of consideration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14
BYLAWS

Bylaws. The Board of Directors is hereby authorized to adopt, and from time to time
amend, such bylaws as they deem appropriate to govern the transaction of the business
of the Agency and the conduct of the officers and employees of the Agency.

ARTICLE 15
AMENDMENTS

Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended by the adoption of a Resolution by
each MEMBER. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of said amendment, the
amendment shall be filed with the office of the Secretary of State. The notice shall contain
the following:

a) The name of each MEMBER to the Agreement;
b) The date upon which the amendment to the Agreement is effective; and

c) A description of the amendment made to the agreement.

10



16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

17.1.

ARTICLE 16
MISCELLANEOUS

Section Headings. The section headings herein are for convenience only and are not to
be construed as modifying or governing the language in the section referred to.

Consent or Approval. Wherever any consent or approval is required within this Agreement,
the same shall not be unreasonably withheld.

This Agreement is made in the State of California, under the Constitution and laws of such
State and is to be so construed.

If any one or more of the terms, provisions, promises, covenants or conditions of this
Agreement shall to any extent be adjudged invalid, unenforceable, void, or voidable, for
any reason whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, each and all of the remaining
terms, provisions, promises, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement shall not be
affected thereby and shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

The MEMBERS shall not assign any rights or obligations under this Agreement without
the written consent of all other MEMBERS.

ARTICLE 17
TERM

This Agreement shall become effective upon adoption of the MEMBERS and shall remain
in full force and effect until it is terminated by the unanimous consent of the MEMBERS
hereto and upon the proper discharge of all legal obligations incurred or undertaken by
the Agency.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement on the dates set forth below,
each signatory represents that they have the authority to execute this agreement and to bind the
Party on whose behalf their execution is made.

MEMBER: City of Yreka

Date:

Corey-R-Middleton, Mayor, City of Yreka

11



MEMBER: City of Dorris

Date:

MEMBER: City of Dunsmuir

Date:

MEMBER: City of Etna

Date:

Abner Weed, Mayor, City of Dorris

MEMBER: Town of Fort Jones

Date:

Michael Clarno, Mayor, City of Dunsmuir

MEMBER: City of Montague

Date:

Cliff Munson, Mayor, City of Etna

MEMBER: City of Mt Shasta

Date:

Merecedes-Gareia, Mayor, Town of Fort Jones

Takeshi Murakami, Mayor, City of Montague

John-Stackfleth, Mayor, City of Mt Shasta
12



MEMBER: City of Tulelake

Date:

Tom Cordonier, Mayor, City of Tulelake

MEMBER: City of Weed

Date:

Darrell Parham, Mayor, City of Weed

MEMBER: Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission

Date:

Bruce-Deutsch, Chair

MEMBER: County of Siskiyou

Date:
Michael-N-KeobseffRay Haupt, Chair
Board of Supervisors
County of Siskiyou
State of California
ATTEST:

Laura Bynum
Clerk, Board of Supervisors

By:

Deputy

13



Agenda Worksheet Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
Siskiyou Transportation Agency

Date: December 18, 2025 Agenda Item: 9 A/B/C
Agency: SCLTC and STA

Subject: Other Business

Past Action:

N/A

Summary of Item:
A. Executive Director — Other updates for the Board or Commission.
B. Other Business - Other topics from the Board that do not require a formal agenda item.

C. Next regular meeting — February 10, 2026 at 10:30 a.m.

Financial Impact: Yes [ No X
Recommended Action:
Adjourn meeting following any discussion.

Attachments (0)



	Agenda - December 18, 2025 
	Item 4A(1) through 4A(8)
	Item 4B - Executive Director Report
	Item 4C - Minute Approval
	Item 4D - Contract with Vestra Resources, Inc.
	Item 4E - Contribution of RSTP Funds/LSR Needs Assessment
	Item 4E - STA FY 2025/2026 Amended Claim
	Item 5(1) - Public Hearing - Coordinated Plan Update
	LSC Presentation
	Coordinated Plan Update Resolution
	Notice of Exemption
	Public Hearing Notice
	2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Plan - Final_10292025.pdf
	Introduction
	Coordinated Plan context and approach
	Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
	Siskiyou Transportation Agency Joint Powers Agency
	Current Council Members and Alternates
	Social Services Transportation Advisory Council

	Federal Coordination Requirements
	Introduction
	Geography
	Demographics
	Population Characteristics
	Transit Dependency

	Economy
	Transit Activity Centers
	Human Services & Tribal Agencies
	Government / Public Services
	Affordable and Senior Housing
	Nutritional Assistance Programs
	Shopping
	Education
	Healthcare and Medical Access


	Employment
	Employment and Unemployment Statistics
	Travel Behavior and Patterns

	Introduction
	Public Transportation Providers
	Siskiyou Transit and General Express
	Current Fixed Route Services
	Route 1 – Cascade Flyer Express
	Route 2 – Dunsmuir/McCloud/Yreka
	Route 3 – McCloud/Dunsmuir/Yreka
	Route 4 – Scott Valley/Yreka/Montague
	Route 5 – Yreka/Montague/Scott Valley
	Route 6 – Happy Camp

	STAGE Fare System
	STAGE Ridership Trends

	Other Regional Transportation
	Sage Stage
	Greyhound Lines, Inc./FlixBus
	Amtrak
	Public Transportation Provider Summary

	Private Providers
	Tribal Services Providers
	Karuk Tribal Health Program
	QVIR Anav Indian Health Clinic

	Social Services Providers
	Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency (SCHHSA) Adult and Children’s Services
	Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency (SCHHSA) – CalWORKS Welfare-to-Work
	Siskiyou County Health & Human Services Agency (SCHHSA) – Behavioral Health
	Community Resource Centers
	Madrone Hospice Inc., Madrone Senior Services, Yreka
	Mount Shasta Recreation and Parks District

	The Mount Shasta Recreation and Parks District operates the Senior Nutrition Project, which offers meals and transportation for seniors aged 60 and older in Mount Shasta and Dunsmuir. The service includes transportation to meal sites, medical appointm...
	Mount Shasta Senior Center: Nutrition Program
	Planning and Service Area 2 Agency on Aging
	Weed Senior Shuttle
	Far Northern Regional Center
	Siskiyou Opportunity Center
	Dignity Health Connected Living
	Great Northern Services
	Northern Valley Catholic Social Services

	NON-EMERGENCY MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS
	Mercy Mount Shasta Medical Center
	Fairchild Medical Center
	Veterans Transportation Service
	California Accessible Transportation
	Alyssa Araiza, Wings of Angels Organization

	Education Providers
	College of The Siskiyous Extended Opportunity Program and Services
	Evan’s Transportation


	Introduction
	2015 Coordinated Transportation Plan Overview
	Status of 2015 Coordinated Plan Strategies
	Strategy 1: Better and More Frequent Connections Between and Within Communities
	Strategy 2: Faster/More Efficient Service
	Strategy 3: Provide Service/Connect to Services Outside of the County
	Strategy 4: Maintain the Current Level of Transportation Services
	Strategy 5: Increase Outreach/Education
	Strategy 6: Multi-Organizational Approach to Solutions


	sISKiyou County 2021 Short Range Transportation Plan
	FY 2018-2019
	FY 2019-2020
	FY 2020-2021
	Requests for Service
	Stakeholder Interviews:

	Unmet Needs Process
	FY 2022-2023
	FY 2023-2024
	FY 2024-2025

	Introduction
	Online Community Survey

	Stakeholder and Transportation Provider Outreach
	Transportation Provider Workshop
	Transportation Service Agency Survey
	SSTAC Presentation and Public Workshop

	Introduction
	Transportation Gaps in Service
	Needs Analysis
	Duplicative Services
	Coordination challenges
	Introduction
	Evaluation Criteria
	1. Unmet needs: Does the strategy address transportation gaps or barriers?
	2. Feasibility: Can this strategy be feasibly implemented given the timeframe and available resources?
	3. Coordination: How does this strategy build upon existing services?

	Coordination Goals for Siskiyou County
	Goal 1: Maintain a Sustainable, Efficient, and Effective Public Transit System in Siskiyou County
	Goal 2: Provide Additional Transportation Services Within and Beyond Siskiyou County, as Feasible
	Goal 3: Expand Public Outreach and Regional Education of Services

	Recommended coordination Strategies
	Strategy 1 — Maintain the current level of transportation services.
	Strategy 2: Improve marketing materials and outreach efforts to inform public of available transportation services.
	Strategy 3 - Seek traditional and non-traditional funding sources to fund out-of-county transportation.
	Strategy 4: Pilot a mileage reimbursement program as a program of last resort to fill gaps in transportation service to/from small outlying communities.
	Strategy 4 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA/SCLTC should implement a mileage reimbursement program. Tuolumne County’s Transportation Reimbursement would be a good example. In addition to the SCLTC getting information out to various communities, the ...
	 The person needing the ride locates his or her own driver;
	 The driver is then reimbursed for mileage at the IRS mileage reimbursement rate, up to a certain mileage cap, which is paid to the rider, who in turn pays the volunteer.
	 Initially, STA/SCLTC should administer the program. Eligible passengers should include seniors, disabled and low income. A monthly mileage cap per passenger and eligible trip purposes should be established. This program could be funded with a small ...

	Strategy 5: Improve regional transportation provider coordination through database and annual meetings.
	Strategy 5 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA and STAGE should maintain a shared online database of contact email addresses and phone numbers of local transportation service providers to distribute amongst various types of other services in the region...

	Strategy 6: Implement a travel training program.
	Strategy 6 - Responsible Party / Actions: A travel training program can include the following components: The program should be advertised through STA marketing material as well as the stakeholder database contacts.
	 One-on-One & Group Training – Personalized instruction for individuals or community workshops to guide new riders through trip planning, fare payments, and safe travel habits.
	 Multilingual & Culturally Relevant Materials – Addressing language barriers ensures broader outreach and support.
	 Hands-On Practice & Simulation – Allowing participants to experience real-time transit scenarios fosters confidence and preparedness.
	 Ongoing Support & Refreshers – Periodic check-ins and digital resources help maintain skills and assist riders as transit systems evolve.
	Strategy 7 - Responsible Party / Actions: To continue to run a successful transit service, an agency must continue to look for opportunities to maintain efficiency under a constrained budget. STAGE should conduct a comprehensive review of existing ser...

	Strategy 8 – Expand marketing for existing STAGE voucher programs to human service agencies.
	Strategy 8 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA and STAGE should annually promote the human service agency voucher program as part of a separate outreach effort and continued coordination through the regional transportation provider database.

	Strategy 9 – Provide transportation information and support to Siskiyou County youth service agencies.
	Strategy 9 - Responsible Party / Actions: STA and STAGE should annually coordinate with youth social service agencies and county school districts to ensure that the STAGE schedule is most aligned with bell times (where feasible) and that students are ...



	Introduction
	Federal Funding Sources
	FTA Capital Program Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Grants
	FTA Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
	Traditional Section 5310 project examples include:
	Nontraditional Section 5310 project examples include:
	FTA Section 5311 Rural Transit and Intercity Bus
	Rural Transit Assistance Program (RTAP)

	State Funding Sources
	Local Transportation Fund (LTF)
	State Transit Assistance (STA)
	The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)
	Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP)
	Hybrid and Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive Project (HVIP)


	Siskiyou Coordinated - TOC.pdf
	ChapterS               PAGE
	Tables               PAGE
	FIGUREs              Page

	Siskiyou - CPT - HSTP Cover.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	2025 Siskiyou Coordinated Plan Appendices A-F.pdf
	Appendix A - 2025 Siskiyou CTP.pdf
	Detailed Demographic Maps

	Appendix B - STAGE Route and Schedules
	Combined STAGE Route and Schedule.pdf
	Routes.pdf
	april_2_2024_bus_schedule.pdf
	Route 1 – Cascade Flyer (Express)
	Southbound
	STAGE Route 5.pdf
	Route 5 – Yreka/Montague Local/Scott Valley Northbound
	Route 5 – Yreka/Montague Local/Scott Valley       Southbound

	STAGE Route 4.pdf
	Route 4A – Scott Valley/Yreka/Montague
	Northbound
	Southbound


	STAGE Route 3.pdf
	Route 3 – McCloud/Dunsmuir/Yreka
	Route 3 – McCloud/Dunsmuir/Yreka                   Northbound

	STAGE Route 2.pdf
	Route 2 –Dunsmuir/McCloud/Yreka
	Route 2 –Dunsmuir/McCloud/Yreka Northbound



	happy_camp_route_6_-_starts_march_10_2025.pdf
	Route 6 – Happy Camp
	Happy Camp to Yreka


	Blank Page


	Appendix C - Community Survey Summary
	Introduction
	Demographics
	Age
	Household Vehicle Access

	Transit Use
	Transit and Specialized Transportation Service Use
	Use of Regional Transit Provider Services
	Social Service Transit Providers


	Potential Unmet Transit Needs
	Transit Needs Within Siskiyou County
	Transit Needs Outside Siskiyou County

	Service Needs
	Barriers To Public Transit Use
	Open-Ended Comments


	Appendix D - Online Community Survey Instrument
	Appendix E - Agency Survey Results
	introduction
	Detailed survey ReSULTS
	Respondent Organization Information
	Unmet Transportation Needs in the Siskiyou Region
	Existing Coordination Agreements
	Populations Served
	Areas Served
	Trip Requests that Transportation Service Agencies are Unable to Meet
	How Siskiyou Region Agencies Provide Transportation Services
	Recommended Improvements and Coordination Strategies


	Appendix F - Agency Survey Instrument



	Item 6 - Appointment of Legal Counsel
	Item 7 - Draft SCLTC JPA
	Item 8 - Draft Amendment to STA JPA
	Item 9 - Other Business

	From Public Agency: 
	County of 2: 311 Fourth Street, Room 201
	Project Title: 2025 Siskiyou County Coordinated Public Transit – Human Services Transportation Plan
	Project Applicant: Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission (SCLTC)
	Project Location  City: Various
	Project Location  County: Siskiyou
	Name of Public Agency Approving Project: 
	Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: 
	Ministerial Sec 21080b1 15268: 
	Declared Emergency Sec 21080b3 15269a: 
	Emergency Project Sec 21080b4 15269bc: 
	Categorical Exemption State type and section number: X
	Statutory Exemptions State code number: 
	Contact Person: Melissa Cummins
	Area CodeTelephoneExtension: 530.842.8238
	Date: 
	Title: Executive Director
	Date Received for filing at OPR: 
	FromAddress1: Siskiyou County Local Transportation Commission
	FromAddress2: 190 Greenhorn Road, Yreka, CA 96097
	County of 1: Siskiyou
	County of 3: Yreka, CA 96097
	Description of Nature: The SCLTC has developed an updated Coordinated Public Transit – Human Services Transportation Plan to enhance the efficiency, accessibility, and sustainability of public transportation services.
	Project Location: County of Siskiyou
	Categorical Exemption Type and Section Number: Feasibility and Planning Studies  (15262)
	Statuatory Exemptions: Code: 
	ReasonExempt: The Coordinated Plan is a planning document that outlines potential improvements but does not commit to or approve any specific projects.
	NOWfiledno: Off
	YesNOWfiled: Off
	Signed by Applicant: Off
	Signed by Lead Agency: Off
	Date_2: 


